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Anglian Water Group Limited

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of Anghlan Water Group
Lirmited (the "‘Company') for the year andad 31 March 2024

Principal activities, business review and future developments

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries together ‘the Group') during the yesr were water
suppdy, treatrent and distribution; sewage collection and treatment; and retail services to water and water
recycling customers. No changes are envisaged to the Group’s principal activities. The Group's principal
business is Anglian Water Services Limited ("Anglian Water'). The information that fulfils the requirement of
the Strategic Report, induding the Company's financial risk management objectives, i= s&t out on page: 7 1o
B3

Group results and returns to shareholders
The income statement on page B8 shows the Group's results for the year. No dividends were paid during the
year (2023: £91.8 million). The Directors are hot recornmending payment of a final dividend

Directors
The Directors wha held office during the year and to the date of this repart, unless otherwdse stated, are et
out below,

Ros Rivaz Mon-Executive Chair appointed 21 November 2023*
John Hirst Mon-Executive Chairman resigned 24 lanuary 2024
Peter Simpson Chief Exetutive Officer

Tony Donnelly Interim Chief Financial Officer appointed 23 November 2023
Steve Buck Chief Anancial Officer resigned 22 November 2023
Mon-Executive Directors:

Jeremy Aflalo INF  ([alternate director)

John Barry CIL

James Bryce CPP

Deepu Chintamaneni [FihA resigned 14 December 2023
hiall Milke [P

Alexandros Nassuphis [P {alternate director)

Batiste Ogier crp

Liusis Pisco INF

David Stirton IFWt  [alternate director)

Albena Vassiteva [FM appointed 14 December 2023

CPP  Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
P lkgneo Infrastructure Farniers

INF  Infinity Investments S.A

IFM IFM Investors

Ol  Camulodunum Investments Lid
*Riog Phiez wias appointed 35 Chel Detigrats on 21 Novemier 2013 end was sspoirtad Chalr on 25 Isnusry 7004

Of the directors, {excluding the alternate directors) two directors are female and seven are male.

Claire Russell and Intertrust Corporate Services (Jersey) Limited continued to serve as joint Company Secretary
throughotrt the year.
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Directors' indemnities

During the 2023/24 financial year and up until the date of the signing of the financial statements, the Group
has maintained directors’ and officers’ iability insurance, which glves appropriate cover for legal action

brought against its Directors

Shareholders

The Investors in the Company and their respective Group shareholdings as at 31 March 2024 are a5 follows:

Number of shares held
ClassAno  ClassBno Mo par value

par value par value pref
Geshuy ey shares

shares shares

PP Investment Board Private Holdings [6) Inc.* 4453126 B56,246 36,138,583.249
First Sentier Investors 2,411,500 - 17,056,537,602
Infinity Investments 5.4, 2,588,500 - 18,308,458,4561
Global infraCo (HK) E. Limited ** 3065623 21,683,149 948
Camulodunum Investments Lid 2,325,005 - 16,444, ,758534
14,843,754 656,246 109,631,487,734

*® an indirect subsidiany of Canada Pension Plan Investrent Board
“* an indirect subsidiary of IFM Investors

As at the date of this report, the investors in the Company also held unsecured loan notes of £0.01 each in
Osprey Holdeo Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Anglian Water Group Limited, as follows:

CPP Investrment Board Private Holdings (6) Inc.®
First Sentier Investors

Platinum Atlas ZA 2014 Limited Partnership**
Global InfraCo (HE) D. Limited***
Camulodunum fnvestments Lid

* an indirect subsidiary of Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
=% an affiliate of Infinity Investments 5.4
&%= an indirect subsidiary of IFM Investors

Number of loan
notes held

15,229,224 556
7,187,825 807
7,715,399,999
9,137,534,734
£,930,014,904

46, 200,000,000
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Governance Code

I January 2019, Ofwat published revised Board Leadership, Transparency and Governance Principles (BLTG
Principles), These revised BLTG Principles removed the requirement for 3 Holding Company Governance Code,
which had been in place since 2014, The Anglian Water Services Limited Corporate Governance Code 2020
(the 2020 Code) came into effect on 1 October 2020. The 2020 Code only applles to Anglian Water. The 2020
Code incorporates the BLTG Principles and supperting provisions along with mast of the provisions contained
in the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code. Only the parts of the UK Corporate Governance Code that cannot
sensibly be apphied to a company in private ownership, such as the provisions relating to shareholder
meetings, have been omitted. Although compliance with the Wates Corporate Governance Principles (in
addition to the BLTG Principles) would be sufficient, the Anglian Water Board was keen to adopt more
stretching corporate governance requirements found in the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, The 2020
Code and the previous Corporate Governance Codes applied by &nglian Water can be found at
anghamwater.co.uk/governance,

Infermation on Anglian Water's compliance against the 2020 Code can be found in its Annual Integrated
Report.

Compliance with the "Walker Guidelines’

For continued transparency, Anglian Water Group Limited has elected to comply with the Guidelings for
Enhanced Disclosure by Portfolio Companies and Private Eguity Firms published by the Private Equity
Reporting Group (the "Walker Guidelines') (last updated in December 2017}, on a voluntary basis.

Political donations and expenditure
Mo political donations or expenditure were made during the year [2023: Enil).

Research and development
The Group has a continuing policy of undertaking market-focused research and development on process plant,
biosolids treatment, sewers and water supply networks, and other water and water recycling related matters,

Financial instruments disclosures
Details are included on pages 10 to 11 of the Strategic Report and in note 19 of the financial statements.

Employees

The Group keeps emplovees informead of changes in the business and general financial and econamic factors
influencing the Company. This is achieved through a systematic approach to employee communication, which
inchudes regutar briefings, presentations and electronic mailings, Weekly Newstream emails provide
emplayees with & round-up of important news across the Company. The Company's intranet is also an
extensive source of information. The Company’s Open House forum is a chance for employees to hear directly
from members of the Management Board and senior leaders about the business, progress updates and ask
any questions. The sessions take place every quarter and travel to different sites across the region, with
employees also able to join remotely. The sessions are recorded so employess can watch them at a later date.
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Angiian Water has implemented inclusive hiring in line with the Company's Business Disability Forum
membership by

»  Trialling providing interiew guastions 1o candidates in advance to support their interview preparation.
This helps those who may suffer from andety due to mental health conditions or neurodiversity.

*  Introducing updated neuradiversity e-learning for team members and managers, with a prompt for
managers 1o refresh their training before interviewing,

o Warking with our Internal Ability Netwark to gain deeper insights on bullding trust with internal or
external disabled candidates.

anghian Water is currently working on an application for Disability Confident Level 3 — Disability Confident
Leader. Anglian Water is currently championing Disability Confident with businesses and organisations within
the community and its supply chain to encourage them to |ain the scheme.

The Disability Confident scheme has also been reflected In company policies; the Supporting Attendance Policy
Procedure covers disability, reasonable adjustrments, return to work and sickness and absence, This policy is
briefed 1o all Managers and the Employee Relations and Occupational Health teams support employees and
managers where needed.

Stakeholder engagement
Dietails of how Directors acrass the Group have engaged with customers, suppliers, and other stakeholders
inchuding thoss repretenting communitiss and the emvironment, can be found in the section 172 statement on

pages 26-31.

Ernissions
Information relating to carbon emissions can be found on page 60 to &3.

Health and safety
Information relating to heaith and safety can be found on page 33.

Events occurring after the reporting period
There have been no events between the balance sheet date, and the date on which the finandial statements
wera approved by the Board, which would require adjustment to the financial statements or any additionat

disclosiires,

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annusl Report and consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Companies (lersey) Law 1991 (the ‘Jersey Companies Law’) requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors have electad to prepare the Group and
parent company financial statements which are adopted for use within the United Kingdom by virtue of
Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 2 of the International Aceounting Standards and European Pubdic Limited-Liability
Company (Amendment etc. ) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019,
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The Group financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as ssued by the LASE and the Company financial statements have been prepared in acoordance with
L¥ adopted international accounting standards and as applied In accordance with the reguirements of the
Companies (lersey) Law 1991, Under Company Law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period, In preparing these finandal statsments,
International Accounting Standard 1 requires that the Directors,

»  properly select and apply accounting policies;

o present information, including accounting policies, in 3 manner that provides refevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable infarmation;

s provide additional disclosures when compliance with the spedfic reguirements in IFRSs are insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on
the entity's financial position and financizl performance, and

*  make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Cormpany’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
{Jersey) Law 1991, They are atso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legislation under
Jersey Companies Law governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legiclation in other jurisdictions,

Each of the Directors, whose narnes and functions are listed in the Directors section on page 1 confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge:
= the Group financial staterments, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted for
use within the United Kingdom, give a true and falr view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Group and the Company, and
= the Directors’ Report and Strategic Report contained in the Annual Report include a fair review of the

development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and the Company,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that It faces.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the Graup
and Comipany’s parformance, business model and strategy.

Statement of Directors’ disclosure of information to Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are Directors a1 the time when the report is approved, the following

applies:

&) sofar as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit infermation of which the Company's Auditor is
unaware; and

b} hefshe has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken a5 a Director in order 1o make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information 2nd to establish that the Company's Auditor is
aware of that information,
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Annual General Meeting and appointment of Auditor

Pursuant to Article 87(d) of the Companies [Jersey) Law 1991, Anglian Water Group Limited has dispensed with
the obligation to hold an Annual General Meeting and the Company has dispensed with the requirement o fay
the annual report and financial statements before the Company In 3 general mesting

The Auditor, Deloitte LLP have indicated their wallingness 1o continue in office and are deemed o be
reappointed.

Going concem

The Directors believe, after due and careful enquiry, that the Group has sufficient resources to continue in
operational existence for the foresesable future and, therefore, consider it appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the 2024 financial statements. Further details of thiz review can be found on pages

9710 98.

By arder of the Board

Company Secretary
10 July 2024

Registered Office: 44 Esplanade, 5t Hefier, Jersey IE4 9WG
Registered in Jersey No. 94523
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Strategic report
for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors present the strategic report of the Anglian Water Group Umited ("the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2024, This strategic report should be read in conjunction with the strategic report of Anglian
Water Services Limited, which does not farm part of this report, which can be found at

hatps: ffwww angliznwater. co uk/about-usour-reports and provides 3 more detalled insight into the
regulated business,

Group overview

Angitan Water Group Limited's principal business is Anglian Water Services Limited {‘Anglian Water'), the
Group's regulated water and sewerage company, which supplies water and water recycling services to almost
seven million customers in the East of England and Hartlepool,

The Group also includes Anglian Venture Holdings Group, which comprises:

s Alpheus Environmmental Limited — operates industrial and commercial wasiowater reatment works in

the UK,

* Celtic Anglian Water Limited — operates water and wastewater treatment works in the Republic of
Irekand,

* Tide Services Limited — operates property conveyancing, residential insurances and the provision of
weh hosted information senvices for utilities on behalf of other group companias;

= Wave Ltd - a 50.50 joint venture with Morthumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water services to
non-household customers & the UEK;

= OHL Property Holdings Limited - oversees the construction of a new water recycling centre; and

=  OHL Piper Limited = a property rental business.

Financial and Operational Highlights
Chief Executive, Peter Simpson, commented:

“The last 12 months saw strong financial performance in the Anglian Water Group, with revenue of £1.7 billion
{up 8.2%) and consistent EBITDA {up 0.6% 1o £805.1 million) and operating profit of £413.3 million (down
1.2%). During the y2ar we have made £963 million of capital imvestment, significantly more than operating
profit. Our shareholders agreed £350 million of additional investment, including £100 million to accelerate our
work on reducing spills and poflutions. This is over and above the level agreed by Ofwat

“Our continued foous on supporting customers was demonstrated through our improved CheX, DMeX and
RMeX scores, while an independent survey, run by the Consumer Council for Water across Water and Sewage
Companies showed positive and above average scores, We also helped 389,371 customers through a £136.9
mifllion support package and met our Priarity Services Register (PSR) target, with an industry-leading 12.7%
{380,853] of customars on our register.

“Steady progress on improving operational performance continued through extreme weather challenges as
our region experienced widespread flooding during the second half of the year; now on record a8 the wettest
siy months ever. Despite this, our spils performance remained industry leading (22 vs 33) and 3t 22 per
overflow is encouragingly close to our 20 per overflow end of AMP target, especially given the exceptional
weather. Inthe 2023 calendar year, we had 11 Category 2 pollutions, which we know is unacceptable. Qur
turnaround plans have seen an improvement on lead measures, but we know we need to do more, faster, and
the additional £100 millien supported by our shareholders will enable this.
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“Over the last 12 months we've achleved our best-ever acceptance score for safe reliable drinking water - our
customers’ number ane priofty = and the continued rapid deployment of smart meters, installing 262,621 in
2023-24. Alongside this, we saw our lowest-ever recorded three-year rolling average for leakage.

“2023/24 saw enormous efforts right across the business, but the impacts of climate change, particularly
around flooding continue to pose a challengs, We are constant in our work to establish a better multi-agency
approach to flooding, aiming 1o ensure complex flood risks are as low s reasonably practicable, and well

managed,

“As a result, while l2ad measures improved in many areas, our performance did not meet the levels we aspire
to, and our customers rightly expect. This has culminated in a year-end ODF penalty of £37.6 million.

“We will continue to invest to meet the changing expectations of customers and stakeholders. Our business
plan, worth over £9 billion, is the nesT step in our long-term plan to ensure we are resilient against the impact
of dimate change, while keeping bilts affordable (£1.45 per day in 2024/25) and supporting customers when
they need it most.”

JEAT L N IO - i 'WM
2 Dutrome Dalrvery incerdyes (D00
Financial highlights
2024 2023 Change I:harge_
£m £m Em ]
Fevenue 1676.1 15496 1365 8.2
EBITDA! 205.1 &00.0 51 06
Dperating profit 413.3 418.3 (5.0} (1.2
Operating cash flow 7437 7025 41.2 5.9
Net debil before derfvatives’ 9,183.2 8,389.1 794.1 95

*Finzncizl megsuras or merrics used |nthis report that are not definad by IFRS are altzrnarvs perfarmancs maasurss, Tha
EFroup wses sUch messures for perfarmance arslsis becauss thay prosdde sdoriong! useful informatian on the performance
and position of the Group, Snce the Growp dafings its own altermative parformance massures, thase might not be directhy
comparakia to other comparses” siternatee performarce meamres. These measures ana not intended to be 3 substitutae for,
o supevEar to, IFRS measursmants and have been consistantty appied within aach year prasented in thase financial
statements. ERITOA and Net debt evciuding derivatives are aftsrnatiee performance mersore 25 defined in naote T3,
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0D penalty

» Operations across the region were significantly impacted by the prolonged penod of wet weather seen
at the end of 2023 and start of 2024 that principally affected ODIs such a3 pollutions, which had the
biggest contribution 1o the £37.6 million penalty incurred,

o in 2023, we had 40 pollutions per 10,0004 of sewer nabwork.

o We are disappointed with our performance, While no spill 1o the environment is acceptable,
aur lead measuras are showing improvemeants — 3 resull of the actions already being taken a3
part of our Pollutions Incident Reduction Plan.

¢ Despite the challenges faced this year, we've seen strong performance across a number of areas of the
busingss, most notably on customer experience, for which we are in reward.

= We finished Tth in the industry for CvieX [Sth in the Water and Sewerage Companies table)
and 4th in the industry for DMeX, our highest year-end position this ANMP,

Revenue up £126.5 million (+8.2%] to £1,676.1 million

» The increase is, in part, as a result of prices se based on the November 2022 Consumer Price index
{CPIH} inflation of 9.4%, and the impact of changes applied to our tariffs as agreed with the regulator.

EBITDA up £5.1 million [+0.6%) to £805.1 million

s The increase in eamings before interest, taxes, depraciation and amortisation (EBITDA) is consistent
with the Increase In revenue descrnibed above, This has been partly offset by the increase in aperating
costs, largely as a result of inflation and increased powser costs,

o Our proactive approach 1o energy hedging enabled us to have flexibdlity in the most volatile and
expensive market periods,

Operating profit down £5.0 million (-1.2%) to £413.3 million

» The decrease in operating profit is consistent with that seen in EBITDA, partially reduced by the
increase in depreciation,

*  The increase in depreciation reflects the significant investment made in our asset base - the year saw a
record investment of £963 million.

Operating cash flow up £41.2 million (+5.9%) to £743.7 million

»  The increase 1s principally driven by higher EBITDA. as described shove, and favourable working
capital.

Net debt before derivatives up £794.1 million {+5.5%) to £9,183.2 million

s Net debt increased primarily because of our continued ramping up of our capital investment
programime and higher accretion on index-finked debt. We raised £1.4 billion in the period to fund this
programme for the remainder of the AMP.
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Reconciliation of operating profit to statutory profit before tax

Operating profit

Intarnast axncluding mdesaton

Ind=wation

Finance income

Eharg of joint venturas' profit/{ioss) sfter tax
Adjusted loss before 1ax {as defined in note 29)
Fair value gains on derivatives

Statutory (lossh'profit before tax

Statutory profit of £4.1 million reflects a £272.3 million reduction on the peior year. This represents a

Wear Hear
ended Erded
21 March 31 March
2024 20Z3
Eim Em
413.3 4183
(333.4) (277 4)
i359.9) [F61.4)
bi.6 41 8
2.4 (o4
{2000 [377.1)
204.5 B45.3
4.1} i

significant reduction in fair value gains partially offset by a reduction in costs associated with indexation of
debt. The fair value gain in the period k& an unrealised, non-cash item. This is as a result of decreases In
derivative liability positions, primarihy diven by forecast increases in nterest rates and decreases in inflation
curves, Falr valuation movements on derfvative valuations can be volatile depending on the market rates
forecast a1 the time of reporting and do not have a erystallised economic impact to the business until the time

of actual cash flow fixing.

Tregsury management

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer, substantially manzages the financing,
inchuding debr, interast costs and foreign exchange for the Group, Treasury policy continues 1o be focused on
the efficient and effective management of cash and financial resources within the Group, The activities of the

treasury function include the following:

*  gnsure that lenders’ covenants are met;

» secure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities,

=  manage interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs;

* invest temporary surpius cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk;
= maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agencies;

¢ enhance control of finandial resources; and
& ohitor counterparty credit exposunes.

The Growp's Board, through the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, regularly reviews treasury policy,
organisation and reporting to ensure continued effectiveness and relevance. More information on treasury

management can be found in note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.

10



Anglian Water Group Limited

Strategic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Liguickey

As at March 2024 Anglian Water has access 1o £1 005.0 million of undrawn fadiitdes (March 2023: £975.0
rrilllion), to finance working capital and capital expenditure requirements. In additon, Anglian Water has
access to a further £425.0 million of liquidity facilities (March 2023: £375.0 million], consisting of £204.0
million to finance debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and maintenanoe
capital expenditure in the event that the company was in an Event of Default on its debt obligations and had
insufficient alternative sources of liguidity.

Dsprey Acgudsition Group's borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of £324 0 millian undrawn revolving loan
facilities for general corporate requirements.

See note 16 for other movements in net debt, The maturity profile of the Group's borrowings is set out in note
18 of the consolidated financial statements.

Coipital strireture

The Group’s capital structure is largely driven by the requirements of Anglian Water's capital expenditure
programme and the need to support Anglian Water's Investment grade credit skatus, which s met by a
combination of cash flow and debt isuance at the three levels of the Group structure with covenant tests at
the Anglian Water, Dsprey Acquisitions Limited, and Aigrette Financing Limited levels. A1 31 March 2024
Anghan Water's and Osprey Acquisitions’ net debt to capital value ratio (net debt as defined in the Commaon
Terms Agreement expressed as a percentage of Anglian Water's regulated capital value) was 62 per cent
(2023. 66 per cent) and 78 per cent (2023 75 per cent) respectively, At 31 March 2023 Aigrette Financing
Limited's net debt to capital value ratio was 84 percent (2023: 81 per cent). Algrette Financing Limited's net
debt is similarly defined to those of Anglian Water and Osprey Acguisitions, but Aigrette Fimancing Limited is
not subject to a Common Terms Agreement.

Borrowing covemants

The financing within Anglian Water is secured under a Common Terms Agreement with investors, All other
group borrowings are raised or guarantéed by the Company, Anghian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc, AWG
Parent Co Limited, AWG Group Limited, Ajgrette Fingncing Limited and in certain instances, subsidiary
CoOMmpanies.

The central Treasury function is respensible for monitoring ongoing compliance with the Group's financial
covenants, which principally refate to Anglian Water's and Osprey Acquisition’s ratio of net debt to Regulatory
Capital Value and interest coverage. At 31 March 2024, all proup companies were compliant with all
COVEnants,

Interest rotes

The Group’s policy, as agreed by the Board, is to achieve a balanced mix of funding to inflation-finked, fixed
and ficating rates of interest. At 31 March 2024, taking into account interest rate swaps, 47.9% (March 2023
50.9%) of the company's borrowings were at rates indexed to inflation, 33.8% (March 2023: 37.9%) were at
fixed rates and 18.3% (March 2023: 11.2%) were at fioating rates. Ar 31 March 2024, the proportion of
inflation debt to regulated capital value was 47.3% (March 2023 47.9%).

11
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Owmership and company structure

Anglian Water Services Limited (AWS) is the principal subsidiary of Anglian Water Group Limited (AWG]. The
AWG Board consists of six investor representatives, the Chief Executive, the Chief Finandal Officer and an

indepondent Non-Exacutive Chair.

AWG Impestons
v
Anglian Water Graup Limited
v
Osprey Holdco Limited
v
Aigrette Financing Limited
A4
Dsprey Investoo Limited
v
Csprey Acqulsitions Limited
v

AWG Parent Co Linitad

v
AWE Group Limited

1 Angiian Water Services
Holdings Limited
v
Anglian Warter Senices
UK Parent Co Limited
\J
Anglan Water Services
Limited'®
v
Anglian Water Senvices
Financing Plc ™

-
| Anglian Water Services Financing

I AWSFG
3 roup | }

;r Direct subsidiary
W Collectively known as the
Anglian Water Services Group,
tor which consolidated financial
statements are prépared.

Our corporate structure

AWG is owned by a consortium of committed, long-term Inwestors,
representing millions of individual pension halders. Details of the
consortium, along with detafls of beneficial ownership of AWG (by
investor type), are shown in the following diagrarms.

The complete holding company structure is presented in the
dlagram and the principal companies in the structure ane
sxplained below.

When AWG was acquired by investors in 2006, it became the
ultimate parent company of the group. It i a lersey-registerad
company, but UK tax resident and, as such, is lizbie for tax in the
UK. All companies in the AWG holding structure are UK tax
ressdent and Rable for taxin the UK Osprey Holdco Limited has
issued debt that is held by our shareholders in proportion to their
respective shareholdings. They are entitled to recetve an intersst
payment on the debt annually.

The group's financing strategy for AMP7 has reduced AWS gearing,
in order to enhance and protect its current solid imvestment-grade
credit ratings. This enables AWS to borrow at lower rates, to
support the investments our customers have asked us to make.

AWG Group companies

Aigrette Financing Limited, Osprey Investoo Limited, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited and their UK financing subsidiaries have
borrowed funds externally during AMPT, in order to increase the
group’s eguity investment in AWS,

AWG Parent Co Limited and AWG Group Limited are holding
companies that were set up when AWG was a listed group, Both
pompanies are wholly-owned subgidiaries, are rqj'steren‘ in the LE
and are LUK tax resident.

12
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Anglian Water Services Financing Group companies

Anglian Water Services Holdings Limited was put in place in 2002, when Anglian YWater's covenanted and ring-
fenced debt structure was established. This group of companies (referred to as the Anglian Water Services
Rnancing Group, or AWSFG) protects customers and our bond holders from the risk associated with other
non-regulated Anglian Water Group companies, outside of the ring fence.

This makes us an attractive investment prospect for band holders, which means we've been able to keep
financing codts lower, ultimately benefiting our customers in the form of lower bilks.

anglian Water Services UK Parent Co Limited is 2 second holding company in the ring-fenced strueturs, aiso
providing protection for customers and Investors from the risks of other nonregulated group companies. All
compariies within the AWSFG are UK-registered and UK tax resident companies.

Angltan Water Sanaces Limitad i the regulated entity that trades as Anglian Warter, managing our water and
water recyching network and serving almost seven million customers. It ks the part of the business thar most
peaple think of 25 ‘anglian Water’.

The group's equity injections into AWS during AMPT have enabled AWS to reduce its gearing,

Anglian Water Services Financing Ple i the financing company that raises money on bahalf of Angiian Water
Services Limited. Funds raised by this company underpin our investment In the region’s water and water
recycling senices,

Detalls of the consortium of imvestors that owns AWGE are shown belows

» Canada Pangion Plan investment Board (CPP Investrments™) (ownarship: 32.9%) is a professional
investment management ofganisation that manages the Fund in the best interest of the more than 20
million contributors and beneficdaries of the Canada Pension Plan.

» [FM Global Infrastructure Fund (ownership: 19.8%) is a fund advised by IFM Investors, IFM Investors is
a global institutional fund manager owned by 17 profit-te-member Australian pension funds,
specialising in infrastructure, private equity, debt and equity investments. [FM invests on behalf of
approximately 120 million pensioners from around the world,

¢ Camulodunum Imestrments (ownerships 15,008 £ a joint investment vehicle for Dalmare Capital and
GUL Infrastructure. GUIL Infrastructure is run by the pension funds of Greater Manchester, Merseyside,
West Yorkshire and Local Pension Partnership Investments, Dalmore has more than 1.3 millkon UK
pension nolders nvested directly in AWG.

» lgneo Infrastructure Partners {ownership: 15.6%) s an unlisted infractructure asset management
business and is part of the First Sentier Investars Group (F5IG), & global azset management business.
F5IG has £124.7 billion in assets under management (as a1 31 March 2024) on behalf of institutional
investors, pension funds, whaolesale distributors, imvestment platforms, financial advisers and their
dlients worldwide.

* Infinity Investments SA. (ownership: 16.7%) belongs to a group of entities ultimately wholly owned by
the Abu Dhabi vestment Authority (ADIA) and focuses on infrastructure imvestments in Europe.
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Beneficial ownership by investor type:

Pensions (CPP investments, GLL Infrastructure, Igneo Infrastructure Partners Investors and IFM
Investors): 75.8%

Agset manager (Dalmore Capital): 7.5%
Sovereign wealth fund {Infinity Investments 5.4.): 16.7%

Our business model
1) What drives us

Our purpose is to bring emironmental and social prosperity to the region we serve through our comimitment
o Lowe Every Drop.

2} We deliver our value for our stakeholders

Emvironment and planet

Customers and communities

People and partners

Shareholders

Investars, banks and ratings agencies
Regulators

Mational and local government

3) Our long ferm ambitions

Our ambitions respond to the pressures outlined in our 25-year Strategic Direction Statement.

Make the East of England resilient to the risks of drought and flooding.
Enable sustalnable economic and housing growth In the UK's fastest growing reglon.

By 2030, be a net 2ero carbon business and reduce the carbon in buliding and maintaining our astets
by 0%,

Work with athers to achieve significant improvement in ecological quality across our catchments.

4) Our goals for 2020-2025

To make [ife better for our customers, every single day.
To deliver our 2020-2025 Final Determination.
To deliver our identified business priorities.

To create a sustainable future for our region.
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What wil help us get there?

Skilled, trusted and customer-focused people who are happy, healthy and safe.
Maximising opportunities from standardisation and centralisation.

Smart use of information and technology.

World-leading alliances, working as one team.

Coltabaration inside and outside the organisation,

&} How we make decisions

We balance our six capitaks to shape imvestrment decisions.

L

Natural - The health of the natural systems and resources that we rely on and impact in our region
and beyond; the availability and quality of watar in our rivers and aguifers; the protection of aur soil
and biodiversity; and our impact on carbon emissions,

Social - The value of our relationships with stakebolders, induding customers, communities and other
organisations; the impacts we have on people and society (both positive and negative] and the trust
they place in us as a result.

People - The knowledge, skills and welibeing of our people; the health, happinecs and safety of our
working environment; and our organisational culture and ways of working.

Financial - The financial health and resilience of the organisation and our access to and use of
sustainable finance,

Intellectial = The knowledge, systems, processes, data and infarmation we hold, create and share
within our business and with our alllance partners.

Manufactured — The ability of our infrastructure to provide resilient services 1o meet the current and
future expectations of our customers.
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Financial performance

The financial results have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Aeporting Standards {IFRS).
Alterative performance measures (APMs) used in this report have been defined in note 29 to the financial

statements

fegmentol reporting

The key performance indicators of the Group's individual businesses are discussed in the “Anglian Water and
Head Office and Other® sections below, This strategic report should be read in conjunction with the strategic
report of Anglian Water Services Limited, which does not fram part of this report, which can be found at

https:/ fwww anglianwabter co ukfabout-usfour-reports’ and provides a more detailed insight into the regulated

business.

EBITDA is defined in note 29 as the profit from continuing operations before interest, tax, depreciation and

amortisation, The segrent result comprizes operating profit. In addition, compliance with the Group's
borrowing covenants is an additional key performance indicator for the Group.

For the wear ended 31 March 2024

Rssenie
External
Inter-sepment

Segment result

EBIMTDA

Degprecigtion and amortsation

Share of jaint venture’s operating profit

Cash flows

Cperating cash fiow

Capltal expenditurs

Met debt excluding derivative financial inatruments

Angiian Mz e
Angiian Vanturs Dific= TEgmEn
‘Water HBoidings  andUthar  aliminations Taotal
Fm im Em £m Em
15166 452 o3 . 16761
- 168 [E0.E] -
1,626.6 a0 0.3 [10.8) 1,676.1
8155 o {211) £ B5.1
[3EE.E) [3.4) 0.2 + (391.8)
- 6.1 - - 6.1
430.9 10.4 [ZL.9) - 419.4
671 43 [27.7) - 1437
[992.3) (0.5} {0.1) - (9929)
[6,976.9) 31 [2209.48) [9,183.2)
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For the year ended 31 March 2023
Anghan Hezd rier-
&ngian Varturs Ciffice FRETRnT
Water  Hoidings and Other  eliminafion Total
£m £mi £m £m £&m
Hevanue
External 14549 54.4 03 . 15456
Intar-sagrnent - 34 R [ 4) E
149459 £33 03 (5.4] 15496
Segmient resuit
EBITDA B0iE 9.1 {11.5) E: B00.0
Depreciation and amortisation 374.1) (28} 02 : {381.7)
Sharg of joint venture’s dperating profit - r & sl _Ll
4137 a4 {11.7) - 4204
Cash fhows
Cperating cash Now 7103 55 {13.5] - 7025
Capital expanditurg (BECLOY (0.3} 04 - (659.5)
Met debt excluding dérivative financial instruments  [6,247.9) (L7} {(21385) - [83891)
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AMNGLIAN WATER FINANCLAL RESULTS

Pages 18 to 24 below set out the financial perfarmance of Anglian Water, the prindipal business in the Groug,

followed by that of Anglian Venfure Holdings [AVH) and Head Ofiice and Other on pages 14 1o 25.

Anglian Water's financial results are summarizsed in the table balow:

i 2023

Total Tota!

£m Em

Revenue |excheding grants and contributions) 1528.8 13839
Grants and contributions 978 1060
COther operating intome 15.8 160
Operating costs {784.2) i678.0)
Logs allgwance for axpactad credit logs [38.7) {30.1)
ERTA* B19.5 Bl 8
Depraciation and amortisation {3BR.EB) {319.1)
Dperating profit 430.%9 4237
Interast {exciuding indaxation] {187.6) 1465.7)
indexation charge 1359.9) (561 4)
Fnance incoms 44.9 e
Adjusted loss before tax I7L7) {286.8)
Falr valug gaing on derivatives 204.5 E45.3
Profit before tas on o statutony basis 133.2 A58.5
Tax (3.2 (50.2)
Profit after tax 1020 2653

1 24 delined in note 15 finsnois measured of metres usad in Bt renort thet she ROt defined by #AS ans Snsmane Dariormants Medsunsd. Tha group

erted such Fressures for performings Snshyis hacsi=e they provide sdamonal ussful mformasion on The parfiormands and podson of the provp. Since the
mmnsmmﬂmmmmu,E&mﬂmhﬁuﬁwmﬂht&ﬂawnu‘amupﬁmm
Thaae el sutes B0R S8 I Reniesd 1 be @ SubSIMAAR dor, OF Supenor o, IFfS mesearamanm, e hifve BEEn Dorsisn iy Epphiad within Sich (eer proserted

I razse fingnis asesnerts

I oFded 1D shiw PRe-cay penio manoe braed on managamaent 5 veew of an undectying bases, the i value ging and iceses on franosl danvetees have

feen Snonan sRDERisly in The TEbks barsme 1REsE 518 volatle POR-CEER MOVErmENT Thal SELOFT The actual undsriving eronomic performence
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AMGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)
Revenue

Revenue, excluding grants and contributions, for the year was £1,528.8 millkon (2023 £1, 388 9 millon), oran
increase of E139.9 million (10.1%]. The net increase in revenus is as a result of the fallowing factors:

& The price increase for customers following the regulatary pricing formula, resulting in a £165.4 million
increase. This is reflected in an average increase of 10.7% in dual-senice bills

& Anetdecrease in demand of £5.8 million. Household consumption is down £8.0 million refiecting a cooler,
wetter summer compared with the prior year, Non-household consumption is up £2.2 million as we move
back towards pre-Covid 19 levels of consumption

o A decrease of £12.0 million relating to discounts for the LITE tariff funded from prior year cross-subsidy
contributions

& Other offsetting movements in revenue of £7.7 millkon

Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions represant the cash and asset contributions made principalty by property developers
znd local authorities for connecting new progerty developments to the water and sewerage network, and for
werk on existing Infrastructurs needed to accommodate development.

Following strong growth in the bousing market and construction sector within our region during the prior year,
as a result of the cost of living crisis, 2023/24 has seen a decline in this activity. This has resulted in a reduction in
grants and contribution income of £8.2 million to £97.8 million.

Other operating income
Other operating income comprise primarily external income from power generation, bio-solid sales to farms, rents
received and various other non-core activities, this was consistent with prior years,
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Operating costs (induding loss allowance for expected credit losses)

Operating costs Inereased by £114.8 million to £822.9 million (16.25€). This was principally due to inflation and
power cost increases, with the prior year being hedged prior to the splke in prices following the Russian
Invasion of Ukraine. These movements are explained in the table below:

Em
Frior peflod To8.1
Funded by Final Determination (FO)
inflatian EEN
Weather-related costs
Urwing of drought-related expenditure (12 £}
Increzsa in cost due to Impact of watl winter waather 9.3
Power 684
Rates 5.1
Loss aflowance for expected credit losses 16
Other significont items
Resulstory licénce fees 15
Other (3.3}
Toral bncraass 1148
March 2024 Eilg

Inflation

The inflationary increases in our cost base formed pant of the Final Determination amd are therefore, whilst
sublject 1o a timing delay, funded through the inflationary increases in revenues.

Westher related

The first six months of the prior year saw very fittle rainfall and a5 a result we saw exceptionally hard and dry
ground conditions which can cause pipes to move and split. A5 a consequence of this, in the prior year, we
experienced increased costs, particularly around leakage.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Redatively benign weather conditions were present for the first half of 2023-24, however these gave way to
extremely wet weather, leading to fiooding, in the second half which has put pressure on our water recycling
operations.

A% a result, we have seen a reduction In the drought related expenditure, with increased costs associated 1o
the impact of the exremely wet weather,

Power

The increase in power is due to the prior year energy prices being locked-in ahead of the war in Ukraine,
whereas the current year reflects the significant cost increases since then. Our proactive energy hedging
approach enabied us to have flexibility in the most volatile and expensive market periods.

Hates

A refund was received as a result of a rates review in the second half of 2022/23. Cur rates charge s therefore
higher in the current year.

The increase is primarily a result of the increase in revenue seen in the year. Dur cash collection performance
remains strong, despite a slight reduction on the prior year due to the wider economic conditions.

Dther significant items

These include a £1.5 million increzse in the Ofwat licence fee with the balance relating to a range of
individually emall offcetiing itemes.

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDR) s definad in note 29 and s the profit
from continuing operations before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation. This has increased by 2.1% 10
£819.5 millicn, which is consistent with the effect of the increases described above,

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation is up 2.5% to £388.6 million, primarily as a result of higher fixed asset balances
as we construct and commission assets in line with our capital investment programime,

Operating profit

Operating profit has increased by 1.7% 1o £430.9 million, which s consistent with the increass in EBITDA
partially offset by the increase in depreciation.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Financing costs and profit before tax

Adjusted net finance costs (excluding fair value galne on financal instruments) were £207.8 milllan |ower than
the prior year at £5602.6 milion, This s pAamanily 3 result of the mon-cash impact of lower inflation on [Rdex-
linked debt which decreased by £201.5 million to £359.9 million and an increase In finance income on our

deposits due to higher market rates.

Fair value gains in the period, which are unrealised, non-cash items, are the result of decreases in derivative
liability positions, primarily driven by forecast increases in interest rates and decreases in inflation curves. Fair
valuation movements on derfvative valuations can be volatite depending on the market rates forecast at the
time of reporting and do not have a crystallised economic impact o the business until the time of actual cash

Flow fodng.

The business is funded based on its embedded cost of debt and refative performance against the iBoxx Index.
As a result, these non-cash fair value gains and losses do not impact the immediate commercal perfarmance

of the business, Ofwat obfigations or sharsholder distributions during AMPY.

Taxation
Year Year
Ended Emded
11 March 31 March
M 2023
£m Em
Current tax:

In resprect of the current period {47.3) (254}
Adjustrments in respect of prior periods i) o7
Total current tax credit (47.7) {247}

Deeferred tan:
Origination 2nd reversal of temporary differances 82.8 1130
Adjustmaents in respect of previous periads {3.9) 14
Total deferred tax charge T8.9 1145
Total tax charge on profit on continuing operations 312 802

Compared to the same period in the previous year, the total tax charge has decreased by £59.0 million from 3
charge of £90.2 million to a charge of £31.2 milllon. This i primarily due o the lower gains on derivative

miowements in the current year.

In addition to the £31.2 million tax charge on the income statement, there is a credit of £8.4 million (2023,
credit of £35.5 million) in the statement of other comprehensive income in relation to tax on actuarial losses

on pension schemes and fair value losses on cash flow hedges.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS {continued)
Continuing to deliver our AMP7 capital investment programme

2023724 was the fourth year in the fve-year AMPT imvastment programimie, Over the five years 1o 2025,
Anglian Water will invest a record £3 billlon through its capital investment programme. This spend will help 1o
athleve Business Plan commitments and Includes significant investrments to ensure the reglon is resilient to
the impacts of drought, climate change and population growth, alongside the largest ever programme of
schemes dellvering environmental protection.

Delivery against this investment programme remains strong with gross annual capital expenditure across the
appointed business increasing from £725 million in 2022/23 to £963 million in 2023,/24 (E340 million on capital
maintenance, £623 million on capital enhancement).

Financial needs and resources

At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water had borrowings net of cash of £6,976.9 million {excluding the fair value of
derivative financials instruments) an increase of £729.0 million from 31 March 2023, The increase in net
borrowings primarily refiects accretion on index-linked debt. capital expenditure and interest payments,

During the period there were néew issuances of £300 million 5.875% fixed rate 2031, £560 million 6.05 fixed
rate 2039, IPY 8.5 bilfion 1.917% fived rate 2034, £375 million 5.75% foced rate 2043 and a £100 million CP1
2040, These new issuances were partially used to repay £200 million 6.875% fixed rate 2023, 5170 million
3.84% fived rate 2023, £93 raillicn 3.537% fixed rate 2023 and £83.5 million EIB debt repayments.

Liquidity

The company's objective ks to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access (o
different markets and debt instruments. At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water held cash, deposits and current
aseet investments of £1,004 4 million (March 2023: £633.1 million), The increase in cash amounts held s
reflective of higher new debt issuances than debt repayments and capital expenditure in the period.

As at March 2024 Anglian Water has access to £1,025.0 million of undrawn faclities (March 2023: £975.0
million], to finance working capital and capital expenditure reguirements. In addition, Angfian Water has
access to a further £425.0 million of liguidity facilities (March 2023: £375.0 million), conzisting of £294.0
million to fingnce debt service costs and £131.0 million to finance operating expenditure and mainténance
capital expenditure in the event that the comipany was in an Event of Default on its debt obligations and had
insufficient altemative sources of liguidity.

All bank facilities and debt capital market issuance are Issued pursuant to the Global Secured Mediurm Term
Mote Programme dated 30 July 2002 between the company, AWSF and Deutsche Trustee Company Ltd [as
agent and trustee for [tself and each of the finance parties). This agreament provides that any facilities drawn
by AWSF will be passed directly on to the company upon utilisation of the facility.
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ANGLIAN WATER FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Interest rates

The company's policy, 55 agreed by the Board, is to achieve a balanced mix of funding to inflation-linked, fixed
and fioating rates of interest. At 31 March 2024, taking into account interest rate swaps, 60.5% {(March 2023.
66.6%) of the company's borrowings were at rates indexed to inflation, 28.4% (March 2023: 26.2%) were at
fixed rates and 11.1% (March 2023: 7.294) were at floating rates. At 31 March 2024, the proportion of inflation
debt to regulated capital value was 47.3% (March 2023: 47.9%).

Pension funding

At 31 March 2024, the closed defined benefit scheme had an 145 19 accounting pension surplus (before
deferred tax] of £30.7 milllon, compared to £51.1 million at 31 March 2023: This decrease in surplus reflects a
decrease bn the schemea’s Babilities resulting from an increase in the corporate bond rate used 1o discount
those liabilities on an accounting basis compared to @ greater decrease in our &ssets which are hedging gilt
based liabilities.

ANGLIAN VENTURE HOLDINGS FAINANCIAL RESULTS

Anglian Venture Holdings has its own Board, which consists of five Directors: Anthony Donnelly, Dectan
Maguire, Claire Russell, Peteér Simpson, and Wayne Young.

Financial performance
Yoar Yaar
snded grifet
11 Barch 3 March
mzd 2023
Em &m_
Ravenue B0.0 B3d
Operating profit 43 B3
Ehare of joint ventures operating profit 6.1 21
Segment result 104 g4
Operating cash fow 43 55

Anglian Venture Holdings generated revende of £60.0 million (2023. £63.8 million) and an operating profit of
£4.3 million [2023; £6.3 million) as set out bedow.
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ANGLIAN VENTURE HOLDINGS AINANCIAL RESULTS {continued)

Revenue Dperating profi
2024 02y 2024 FLEFE]
Em Em Em £m
Alphaus Environmiantal 10,4 117 1.0 10
Cattic Anglian Watgr 350 395 1.6 18
Tide Services &4 6.7 0.2 0.2
AVH Parks 1.3 - 0.1 -
Anglian Venture Holdings - 21 [0.1) (1]
OHL Piper Lid 21 114 149 1a
Property 1.B 114 - {0.2]
AVH Sodar Lid - - [O.4] (0.3
6.0 638 43 i

Share of joint venture's operating profit
Was 6.1 11
Segment result 0.4 B4

Revenue for the year decreased from £63.8 million to £60.0 million, with operating profits of £4.3 million

compared to £6.3 million in 2023, The Group's share of Wave joint venture's operating profit was £6.1 million
compared o a profit of £2.1 million in the prior year. In the year, Wave improved its operating marging with an
increased focws on reducing margin leakage. The overall decrease in operating profit, excluding Wave, reflects

lower profits in Celtic Anglian Water due to increase in repairs and malntenance costs as well as higher

chemical prices.

HEAD OFFICE AND OTHER FINANCIAL RESLILTS

The decrease in operating profit, EBITDA and operating cash flow cutside of Anglian Water has been driven by
increase in Head Office costs year on year, primarily due to project costs in relation to Corporate Finance work.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Company has elected to disclose a section 172 statement on a voluntary basis, outlining how the directors
promote the successes of the Company.

As Anghan Water Services Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this retationship,
the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services Limited and
therefors interested parties should read the discosure below, which [s an extract from the Anglian Water
Services Limited annual integrated report (AIR). As such, all references befow refer to Anglian Water Services
Limited,

Engaging with our stakeholders

In Juby 2018, with the approval of our Board and shareholders, we became the first major utility company to
amend our Artickes of Association to enshrine, for the long-term, the principles set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 and our long-standing commitment to working in the pubilic interest.

Section 172(2) states that, where the purposes of a company consist of purposes ather than, or in addition 1o,
benefiting the company's shareholders, the section 172 duties will 1ake effect, as if the reference to promoting
the success of the company for the benefit of shareholders were a reference to achieving those sftermative
purposes. Anglian Water's Purpose (as set out in our Articles of Association) is to conduct its business and
operations for the benefit of members, while delivering long-term value for its customers, the region and the
communities it serves, seeking positive outcomes for the emdronment and society. It follows that the Directors
of Anglian Water have a duty to act in a way that can be considered as most likely to promote the compary
Purpose. The section 172 duties, to which the Directors are subject, must therefore be considerad in the
context of this Anglian Water's Purpose.

The disclosures set out demonstrate how the Board has had regard to the matters set out in Section 172(1) (a)
to ([f), which are now enshrined in Anglian Water's Articles of Association, and Include cross-references 1o
other sections of the report for further information.

Making long-term decisions

Anglian Water's long-term strategy is driven by our 25-year Strategic Direction Statement (5DS), Our SDS was
first published in 2007 and refreshed in November 2017, The 505 was most recently reviewed by the Board
early in the AMP and the updated version now covers the period 2020-2045. The four key ambitions set out in
our 50% are shown in our business model in the Annual [ntegrated Report.

Much of the Board's focus over the financlal year related to the development of Anglian Water's PR24
Business Plan for the pariod 2025 - 2030 and the associated Long-Term Direction Strategy (LTDG), Further
information on the Board's stakehalder engagement in relation 1o both the PR24 Business Plan and LTDS can
found in the case study on page 101 of our Annual Integrated Report, The LTDS is aligned with our exsting
strategic frameworks s weil as the Government's long-term objectives, in order (o create a coherent strategy
o 2050,
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In August 2023, we published the revised draft of our Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP), which sets
out how we will maintain a sustainable and secure supply of drinking water for our custormers, over the period
2025-2050. The WRMP considers the challenges that our region faces, allowing Anglian Water ta implement
an affordable, sustainable pathway that can provide benefit to our customers, society and the environment.
The Board oversaw and serutinised the development of the revised draft WRMP and also provided assurance
that Anglian Water had met its obligations in developing the WRMP: namely that it is the best value plan for
managing and developing water resources — based on sound and robust evidence and costing processes —
which also enables us 1o continue to meet our obligations 1o supply water, protect the enwviroament and
provide societal benedit

Similarty, in May 2023, we published our first Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP] 10 set out
how we will manage and recycle water in our region over the next 25 years. In it we address the triple
challenge we face from our rapidly changing climate, a fast growing population, and the need to protect our
region's precious chalk streams and rivers. Again, the Board had oversight of the DWMP and gave assurance
that the resulting plan is the best value plan for customers and the environment and is based on robust
evidence and Costing processes.

The Board has alsa approved Anglian Water's long-term wiabtlity within which the Directors have assessed the
company's prospects over the newt 10 years.

Board engagement with stakeholders

Our Board has 521 out to define discrete stakeholder groups, but it recognises that in many cases they have
complementary interests and shared priorities. On occasion, thelr concerns may even conflict with one
another. The Board's duty, in reviewing, challenging and shaping plans and setting strategic direction, is to
consider and balance the impact of its decisions on a wide range of stakeholders. More information on our
business model, including how we wse six capitals thinking to shape decisions and measure outcomes, can be
found on page 15. Information on our key stakeholders can be found throughout this report and below,

We have developed an annual stakeholder engagement strategy, which is approved by the Board. This &
designed to demonstrate how Anglian Water ks delivering on its Purpose and to increase the breadth and
depth of understanding of the value that Anglian Water delrvers. The Board regularty engages in the delivery of
the stakeholder strategy.

In November 2023, members of the Board attended the [aunch event for the Thriving East report at
Westminster,

There are some key issues of such strategic importance that the Board judges it should engage directly with
relevant stakeholders. However, much of our engagement happens at an operational level,

Where the Board has not engaged directly with stakeholders, it receives regular reports from management, so
that the Directors can understand and take account of the key issues to which they must have regard,
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Hoving regard to employees’ interests

The welfare and development of our ermployees, and the company®s culture and values, are key areas of focus
for the Board and its committees, and employee-related lssues are coverad at every Board meeting. Areas
considered by the Board range from health, safety and wellbeing to indusion, employes engagement and
succession planning. The Board meets the Head of Safety on 3 quarterly basis, which enables the Board to
menitor key safety trends and to challenge performance where appropriate.

In Dctober 2023, the annual Love to Listen survey was undertaken with the aim of seeking and acting on the
views of our employees. The results of the survey, together with plans to address its findings, were discussed
by the Board. In line with the Anglian Water Services Corporate Governance Code 2020, the Board has
appointed John Barry as the Non-Executive Director responsible for engaging with the workforce.

Angfian Water has offered employees the opportunity to participate in the AWG Loyalty Savings Scheme. This
scheme enabled employess to save on o monthly basis and then potentially benefit from the financial
performance of the company at the ehd of the threeyear savings period.

During the year, two ‘market stalls” avents were held which gave the Directors and employees the opportunity
o engage with each other and discuss, in detail a variety of important matters affecting the comparmy.

Further information on how the Board and management engage with employees — and the impact of that
engagement — can be found on pages 67-75 of our Annual Integrated Report.

The Board, stakeholder engagement and the development of PR24 Business Plan and LTDS
Engagement with customers and communities is fundamental to the development of our strategy and plans.

The Board-approved PR24 Business Plan and LTDS were submitted to Ofwat in October 2023, The Board has
been engaged throughout the business planning process for bath the PR24 Business Plan and the LTDS, as far
back as March 2021, when the Board approved the overall strategy for the period 2025 = 2030 (AMPE), Since
then, the Board has regularly reviewed and challenged all aspects of the PR24 Business Plan's development. In
September 2021, the Board agreed It was Impartant 1o adopt 3 multi-AMP focus 1o ensure the nesd for
invectment would be balanced against the challenges facing bill payers. AL its meeting in May 2022, the Board
confirmed the importance of ensuring the PR24 Business Plan aligned with what customers valued most and
noted the involvement of the company’s Independent Challernge Group (the ICG 15 a group of Independent
subject experts and regulators, who scrutinise and chalienge Anglian Warter's business plans to make sure they
reflect customers” priorities).

In September 2022, the Board hosted a "market stall” event attended by the CEO of Ofwat. The seasion
provided an opportunity to demonstrate how Anplian Water was focused on improving ervironmental
outcomes while keeping bifls affordable.

28



Anglian Water Group Limited
Strateqic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

To understand the perspective of our customers, some Directors attended customer engagement events and
ICG meetings. Alex Nassuphis attended the ICG"s Affordability and Acceptability Qualitative session in April
2023. In July 2023, the whole Board met Craig Bennett, the Chair of the ICG. This meeting aliowed Mr Bennett
to detall the work undertzken by the ICG in challenging Anglian Water's position in respect of key aspects of
the Company’s PR24 Business Plan including the LTDS, water resources, affordabiiity and customer

engagement,

Between May and July 2023, nine deep dive sessions covering key elements of the PR2A Business Plan and
LTDS were hetd with individual Directors, The purpose of these sessions was to allow the Directors 1o consider
and challenge specific aspects of the PR24 Business Plan in greater detail. These sessions were each Jed by an
Independent Non-Executive Director, selected based on their skills, to ensure an appropriate level of
challenge, For example, Zarin Patel ked the sessions on the PR24 financials, given her role as the Chair of the
Audit Commitiee.

Fostering business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Our most important skpply chain relationships are with our alliance partners, who play a crucial role in the
detivery of our infrastructure and services. The Board receiies an update on the progress of the capital
investment programme at each Board meeting. This update provides an opportunity for the Directors to
review and challenge progress across the different delivery routes. During the year, the Board also received
and considered — in detaill — a number of updates on the progress of the Strategic Pipeline Alliance [SPA),
which is tasked with the delivering hundreds of kilometres of new, interconnecting pipelines.

Under Anglian Water's Scheme of Delegation, the Board must approve the approach to the award of contracts
with suppliers, above a certain value, This ensures that there is the appropriate level of oversight of these key
contracts. During the year, the Board approved procurement strategies for operational technology delivery
and consultancy services, the management of recreation services and grounds maintenance. Each year the
Board also approves Anglian Water's Modem Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement, which details the
steps we have undertaken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking place in any part of the
business, or within Anglian Water's supply chain.

The Board also engages with our different regulators including Ohasat, the Environment Agency (EA] and the
Drinking Water Inspactorate. As part of her induction programme, Dr Rivaz has met the Chairs of both Ofwart
and the Environment Agency.

Another impartant stakeholder group 15 debt investors, banks and rating agencies.

Engagement is key to understanding their requirements, demonstrating our long-term sustainable vision and
helping them to understand what makes Anglian Water a sound investment. Engagement oocurs through
dedicated investor events — held at least twice a year, 1o coincide with the company’s resulls announcernents
— and additional events such as the 'Our Plans for the Future’ evenl. which took place in October 2023,
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Impact on community and envirenment

The enviranment is at the heart of our Purpose and our 505 is fully aligned with the Government's oun 25-
year Environment Plan. In July 2021, we published our Net Zera Strategy to 2030, This route map, which was
fully supported by the Board, sets out how we aim to reach net 2ero carbon emissions by 2030, As referred to
ahove, the Board approved both the revised draft WRMP and the DWMP during the year. The Board regularly
considers environmental matters, Including abstraction, compliance against the EA's Environmental
Performance Assessment, the progress of our WINEP, the water resource position and pollution reduction
schemes. The environment is at the heart of our purpese, and our 505 is fully aligned with the government’s
own 25-year Enviranment Plan.

Throughout the year the Board has monitored the progress of both Ofwat’s and the Environment Agency's
investigations into sewage-treatment-works compliance. The Board has also supported the continued focus on
reducing storm spills together with the deployment of smart technology and machine learning at pace to help
predict and prevent pollutions. See page 17 of our Annual Integrated Report.

Our purpose requires us to consider the impact of our operations on our communities, The Board recelves
regular updates on cstakeholder engagement activities.

Maintaining high standards of business conduct

We seek to maintain high standards in all that we do as 3 business, We have robust risk-management and
internal-control processes, which are reviewed by the Board, or the refevant Board committee. Our code of
conduct, ‘Doing the Right Thing’, applies to all employees and sets out what is expected from our people in
different situations.

Anglian Water also holds itself to account against a set of Responsible Business Principles which are approved
by the Board.

Acting fairly between members

The Anglian Water Group is owned by a consortium of five, long-term investors, representing millions of lorg-
term pension hobders In the UK and overseas. These shareholders are representad on the Board of our
ultimate parent company Anglian Water Group Limited. There are also shareholder representatives on the
anghian Water Board, In this way, we ensure that we treat all shareholders fairly and that their views are heard
when making key decisions. These Directors bring with them 3 broad range of skills and experience, This is
extremely valuable during Board discussions, Our shareholders have made a long-term commitment to our
organisation and have a shared interest in, and responsibility for, its success, As the ultimate owners of the
businezs are the zource of equity iInvestment — not the group — its vital that we engage them in strategic
planning and share our progress and resufts with them.

Further information on our company structure and ownership can be found on page 12, and in Board
biographies on pages 123-127 of our Annual Integrated Report.
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Responding to stakeholder concerns

The Board has always taken an intense interest in Anglian Water's environmental parformance. Owver the |ast
couphe of years, the Board has recognised that — as a business with a stated purpose to bring environmental
and social prasperity 1o the region we serve — pollution performance has been disappainting for all
stakeholders.

Following the development of the Pollution Reduction Programme 2023- 2025 (the PIRP), the Board has met
regularly with Emily Timmins, Director of Water Recycling, to understand and challenge progress made against
the PIRP. In November 2023, the Board challenged Ms Timmins to further develop additional investment
opportunities, which would be likely to have a beneficaal impact on Anglian Water's pollution performance.

At its meeting in lanuary 2024, the Board closely considered the detailed investment case to drive poliution
reduction. The Board recognised that there were multiple beriefits to investing in pollution reduction,
including reputational improvements, a maone positive relationship with regudators and reduced penaities.

Therefore, after careful consideration, the Board approved the first tranche of £50 million of £100 million from
our sharsholders to tackde pollutions and storm spilis. This investment will deliver schemes, such as creating
mofe capacity in sewers across the region and Incréasing storm warter storage at water recycling centres, so
they can deal with events like the intense rainfall we witnessed this year
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MNON-FINANCIAL REPORTING STATEMENT

As Anglian Water Services Limited accounts for the vact majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation of the
business is predominanty managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this relationship,

the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services Limited and
therefore interested parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the Anglian Water

Services Limited annual integrated report {AIR) www.anglanwater.co.uk/about-us/our-reports. As such, all

references below refer to Angllan Water Serdces Limited,

The statements below reflect our commitment o, and management of, employess, communitiss, the
environment, human rights, anti-bribery and anti-corruption in the st 12 months as required by sections
£14CA and 414C8 of the Companies Act 2006,

We integrate this information throughout this report; the information is designed 1o help you find key
glements on non-financial matters. Links to policies; standards and relevant documents can be found at

anghanwater.co.uk
Reporting Relewant palicies, documents | Sections within the Annual inegrated Report whers you can read
ml Hfﬂm&mmn" Wlmm:mmﬂﬂmmﬂm
approach
Emvironmental and | = Artictes of Associstion # Chair's welcome pages 57
chimate matters = Strategic Direction * Chigf Evacutive’s statement poges E-10
Cur commitment Slatement * The Year in context: pages 14-24
10 protectingand | o |ntegrated Management | o our strategic ambitions page 12
snhancing our System Framework Pollcy
environment is e * Holding ourselves to sccount pages 35-36
enshrined in the M::";m“mt‘:g: « Responsible financing: Sustainable inance pages 27-30
Articles of % » Climate-related (CR] financial dischosure:-
nsaociation of * Drought Plan [5] govermance ammangerents pages 32-33
Anglan Water * Water Recycling Long- (] how CR risks and opportenities are identified, asseised
through our stated | Tere Plan and managed page 101
purpose: To bring = Drainage and Wastewaler | (c) how processes for identifying, assessing and managing CR
:" w"'laf';' ; E"“:l:’::. Managerent Plan risks are Integrated within the compary's cverall risk
i rebn e sénee * Pollution Incident management framewerk page 101
through our Response Plan [d} description of-- (i) principal CR rsks snd opportunities
COMRMItMEnt * Climate Change pages 94-37 () time periods 1o which thase are assesied
Lowe Every Drop. Adaptation pages §4-57

= Mot Fero Strategy 2030

(@] actual and potential impacts of the principal CR risks and
spportunities on the busingss model and dralegy page 5457
[T} resilience of the busineds modal and strategy, taking into
consideration different O scenatios pages 94-100

{2) targets used 1o manage CR risks and reakise CR
opportunities and performance against targets peges 94-101
() KPlg need eo ascets targess abowe and caiculations on
which these 2re based, pages 101-102

» Qur stokeholders: our environment pages 44-53

* Section 1712 statement pages B4-86

* Climate-relsted financhal disciosuras, pages B1-103

» Principal risks pages 108-116
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enzhrined in the
Articies of
Association of
Angian Water
through our stated
purpose: Ta bring
erwviranmental and
social prospefing b
the reglon wie sen'a
through our
cormmitrient o
Lowe Every Drop.

= Employee yoluntesring
guidelings — Love 1o Help

Heparting Felevant policies. documents Eectionz within the Annual integrated Report where you can road
reguiremant or rejports that govern our miore abouwt our curment actiitios and risk managoment
spproach
Employess ® Walues framework * Chair's wolcome pages 57
Dur approach 1o * Diplng the right thing — # Chief Exscutive's statement pages §-10
“”_’;;z"’?:“ | codeof conduct » Sur stakeholders: our people pages 67-75
pRet by lon * Inclusion plan » Section 172 statement pages B4-86
valuss thal diive H
pur continued = Health and Saiety policy * Corporate Governance Report pages 123-136
progress: Together, | ® DIgnity st work policy and | . Nomination Committes Report pages 144-147
we build trust, we | procedurs * Remuneration Committes Report pages 148-172
dir the right thing; - | * Personal retationships at
wi aTe shways wiork policy
Exploring. * Gonder pay gap repert
& Whistleblowing podicy and
procied ure
= Ethnicity pay gap report
* Board divarsity policy
Human rights = Diping the rght thing - « Dur stakeholders pages 44-82
Our politles and code of conduct * Nemination Committes Report pagas 144-147
professes afe * Dignity at wark code of
underpinned by our | conduct
valugg; in » Data protection policy
particulsr: we do 3
the right thing *iMa reiention palioy
= Customer privacy notioe
» Modarn slavery and
hurmzn trafficking statemant
= Hurman rights policy
Social matters = finglian Water Articles of | » Chair's welcome pages 5-7
Our commitment | ASiedation » Chiof Executive’s statement pages 8-10
customers and our | Dirgction Statemant _ o
communities is « Sociil Contract * Qur strategic ambitions page

* Haolding ourselves to account pages 35-36

» Our stakeholders: our custonsers & communities pages Sd-
EE

= Section 172 statoment pages B4-86

Anti-corruption
and bribery

Owr proficies and
ProCesses are
underpinned by our
valuas; in

# Dining the rignt thing -
code of conduct

= Ant-bribery policy
= fimtr-fraud podicy

 Princepal risks: Legad page 116
* Audit Committea Raport pages 137-143
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Heparting Felevant policies. documents Eectionz within the Annual integrated Report where you can road
reguiremant or rejports that govern our miore abouwt our curment actiitios and risk managoment
spproach
particular we do & Corporate hospltakity
the right thing. policy
* Whistleblowing policy

* Board pratoco| for dealing
with conflicts of interest

= Tax and transparency

podicy
Description of the | = Cur business model page | * Board flatement of Company direction and parformance,
business model 11 Annuzl Performance Report (available at

www angitanwater.co.uk/about-us/our-reports)
Mon-financial key = Mon-finoncial performance | * Delvering owr outoomes: Performance Commitments

performance measured against a set of dashboard pages 37-43
mdicators commitments agreed with | & Qur stakeholders: People pages 67-75
» Clur stakeholders: Pastners pages 76-79
= Health and safety
measures and targets
® Emyironrmental

performance assessment

Description of = The year-in-context: pages | » Risk mansgement pages 105-118
principsd risks and | 14-24 » Principal risks pages 108-116

- » Business long-term wability statenent pages 118-121
activity 105-118

A copy of our code of conduct [‘Doing the Right Thing'}, together with our Whistleblowing policy, our Anti-
bribery policy and our current Modern Skavery and Human Trafficking statement can be found on our website

at anglianwater co.uk Our customer privacy notice can be found at anglianwater.co.ul/aboutus legal/privacy-

ol o]



Anglian Water Group Limited
Strateqic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

OUR APPROACH TO THE CLIMATE AND NATURE CRISES

Climate change is no longer a future threat. The impact is being felt giobally, across sectors and ecosystems,
today. Water & a primary factor; across the world, we are withessing more flooding, Increased risk of drought
and rising sea levels'. And, a8 populations grow, there it 3 higher demand for water, which requires more
transportation and energy-intensive pumping. Competing demands for water can impact blodiversity and
wildlife, slongside extreme weather events, which can detriment water quality. Sustainable water
management 15 key to bullding resifience in the face of the climate and nature crisis.

At Anglian Water, we manage Water resources in a region that is water scarce and vulnerable to dimate
change. It also has many predows environmental sites to protect, a growing population and a sizeable
agricultural econormy that relies on water to feed the nation. In addition to supplying fresh, dean drinking
water and recycling wastewater, we must think about water in its widest contest. Water underpins economies
and businesses, it impacts the guality of green and blue spaces and is a key enabler for housing growth,
particularty in our fast-growing region.

The intrinsic refationship that we have with nature and the environmient means we address the challenge
through various strategles.

Geographically, our region is the driest in the UK, while heavy rainfall and rising sea levels increace the rick of
floading across our large coastal areas. The flat landscape we operate in means we must use energy to pumg
water around the region and — with our popaulation set to grow by 720,000 over the next two decades — there
5 & demand for low-carbon altematives. Treating water also requires carbon and energy. 50, We must seek
inrovATIAe Ways 1o reduce the need Tor carbon-intenshve, chemical processes and mstead opt for nature-based
solutions.

Extreme weather can also put stress on our infrastructure, impacting our day-1o-day operations. For example,
miuch of the land is drained and rich in soils that are highly shrinkabde, often chemically aggressive and
structurally unstable, Extreme temperatures can lead to shrinking and expanding soils of this kind,
exacerbating ground moverments, which can increase failures of water distribution mains. Building climate
resifience across our assets is key.

The region we serve is also home to many of the country's most precious chalkstreams and rivers. Improving
river health is a key focus area and we are leading on a range of multi-sector projects that will benefit entire

landscapes. Around the world, 85% of wetlands = which act as carbon sinks = have disappeared®. We have a

responslbility to reverse the decline on nature too.

Addressing these complex challenges now — and in the long-Term — i crucial and reguires us 1o be adaptable.
To stand still, as our climate changes and population grows over the next 25 years, will reguire unprecedented
transformation of our company and our sector,

" urwater ongSwater-faces fwateardocimate-dharge
Lun prpfen/ dimrtechaese/soence) chirate- sy e Doceity
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At Anglian Water, we have long known about the impact of climate change and have been taking action to
manage our key climate change risks since the 1990s. in 2007, we set four long-term ambitions — all of which
relate to cimate change — to guide our forward planning. Refreshed in 2017, our Strategic Direction
Staternent znd the four ambitions remain fit for purpose and inform our long-term planning to 2050.

Wi have several strategies and plans 1o bulld resifience against climate changs:

* Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP)
»  Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP)

*  Drought plan

= Net Zero 2030 strategy

s  Long-term Direction Statement (LTDS)

« Pollution Incident Reduction Plan (PIRF)

= Asset System Resilience Appraisal (ASRAP)

=  Our 2020 dimate Change adaptation report

This section bouses pur key climate and nature disclosures.

Foaniiion o
Qur tranzition risks are included in a number of our relevant strategies.
Task Force for Oimate-Related Anancial Dischosures (TCFD)

Our dirmate-related risks and opportunities are disclosed under the recotmmeandations of the Tack Force for
Chimate-Related Fnancial Disclosures (TCED). We continue to improve our climate-related disclosures, year on
year, Find out more on page 37.

Mature-related disclosures

A stewards of 3 natural resource, we rely on — and have the potential to impact — the natural environment.
This means managing the impacts, dependencies, risks and opportunities we have in relation to nature is not
only the right thing to do, but fundamental to our business. Find out more on page 64,
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CLUMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
Making information about dimate-related risks and opportunities available w our stakeholders,

Since 2017, we've made dizclosures under the recommendations of the Task Force for Climate-Ralated
Anancial Disclosures (TOFD), adopting them well ahead of thelr mandatory introduction In 2022, We continue
to improve our dimate-related dischosures year-on-year and our approach is consistent with all 11 TCFD
retommendations.

Introduction

A% a water company, we have an intringic relationship with the environment - the health of the environment
both influences and is impacted by our operations. And, our emaronment is changing as a result of rising global
temperatures. This refationship has driven a range of dimate-related commitments and targets.

Cur Annual Integrated Report complies with the requirement of LR 9.8.6R by including climate-related
financial disclosures.

Hightights

* A-COPScors, demonstrating we are implementing best practice towards environmental stewardship

s £12 billian ralsed green bonds n the year and a total of £3.3 billion of sustainable financing since
207

o Delivering In line with our ambition 1o achieve net ero operational-carbon emissions by 2030

»  Ontrack 1o achieve 3 70% reduction in capital carbon by 2030

o Platinum certified by Achilles Carbon Reduce signalling 10+ consecutive years of carbon reduction

Governance
Disclose the organisation’s governance around climate-related risks and opportunities.

Pageinthe AR Further references in the AR

92 See organisational structure on page 92

See climate-related governance on page 92 1o 93

Strategy

Disclose the actual and potential impacts of climate-related risks and opporlunities on the organisation's
busineszes, strategy, and financial planning where such information is material.

Pageinthe IR Further references in the AR

o4 See climate-related strategy on page 93
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Risk management
Disciose how the organisation identifies, assecses and manages dimate-related risks.

Pageinthe AIR  Further references In the AR

101 See climate-related risk management on page 101
See our approach to risk on page 105
See pur principal risks on page 108
Metrics & targets

Disciose the metrics and Targets used 10 assess and manags relevant climate-related risks and opportunities,
where such infarmation is material.

Page inthe AIR  Further references In the AIR

101 See climate-relzted risk management on page 101
See our approach to risk on page 105
See our principal nsks on page 108
Climate-related povernance

Where we manage climate risks and opportunities

* Board of Directors — Oversight of dimate-refated risks
» Remunerstion Commitiee = Remuneration policy limked to ESG
¢ Audit Committes - Review the company’s top-tier risks
» Management Board

s (limate Change and Carbon Steering Group

»  Resilience Steering Group

o Sustainability Centre of Excellence

» Finance, Treasury and Energy Palicy Group

*  Sustainability Team

» Finance Climate Group

»  Carbon Neurrality and Climate Change Team

o Sustainability Community

Board oversight

The Anglian Water Services (AWS) Board retains overall oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities.
The Board discusses climate related lssues, for example reviewing our draft Water Resources Management
Plan. Climate-ralated risks are included within the company’s top-tier risk register and managed through risk
management and internal control systems. In 2017, the Board led the business 1o be one of the first utilites 1o
raise finance through & Green Bond due to the governance structure we have in place.
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The Board drives and oversees our climate related commitments including:

#  Anglian Water's Climate Change Adaptation Report

* Anglian Water's commitment to be net zero carbon by 2030: our Chief Executive Peter Simpson was co-
sponsor of the sector wide Water UK commitment. Our net zero 2030 commitment covers our Scope 1
and 2 emissions, together with those Scope 3 emissions we're reguired to repart, with the Board
MONtonng progress.

« In addition, we've also committed to reducing our capital carbon emissions = Scope 3 emissions that arise,
as & consequence of building and maintaining our assers — by 70%, against & 2010 baseline by 2030.

Leadership

As 3 founding member of the UK Corporate Leaders Group (the Corporate Leaders Group, run by the
University of Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership), Peter Simpson has championed business
action on climate change for many years. He was co-Chair of the Institute between 2020-21 and again in 2022-
23. Our Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, Dame Polly Courtice, is Emeritus Director and Senior
Ambassador of the Cambridge Institute of Sustainability Leadership. Peter works with Busingss in the
Community {BITC], as Chair of the East of England Leadership Team. He also sits on the WaterAid Board of
Trustees,

The role of the Audit Commities

The Audit Committee plays a key role in monitoring the company’s financial reporting, reviewing the matarial
financial judgements and assessing the internal control emvironment, ensuring Information is accurate, timely,
reliable and compliant. The Committee provides effective oversight of bath financial and non-financial
disclosures, including climate-related financial disclosures. Climate change is an area of focus as described on
page 138 of the AIR. The Committes approves our annual intermal audit plan, driving areas of focus. The
Committee also bi-annually reviews the top-tier risk register,

The role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remmuneration Committes plays 3 key rode in ensuring that dimate change, and other Environmental,
Social and Governance issues are considerad at the top of the organisation. A portion of variable executive
remuneration is aiready aligned to our purpose and selected ESG measures. These miasures indude our
performance as a business In operational and embedded carbon. See the Remuneration Report within the AR
for rore detail,
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The role of management
Management Board

The Management Board meets three times a month 10 discuss Bdues, many of which refate 1o elimate change.
The Management Board consists of our Chief Executive along with key decision makers, wha chair many of the
groups below,

Climate and Carbon Steering Group

The Climate and Carbon Steering Group is responsible for progress against climate change mitigation and
Braptation.

The grougp mests monthly, to discuss specific themies, induding our proposed AMPS (2025- 2030) net z2ero
investment plans, which include a focus on renewable-enargy ganeration, reducing fugitive emissions at 17 of
our fargest sites and moving towards lower carbon HGVs. The group is chaired by a member of the
hManagement Board, with two other Management Board members artending, 1o ensure integration with the
overall business strategy. Updates are provided to the Management Board when required, for examgpie an our
net zern carbon trajectony,

This groug has been integral 1o the development of our ciimate adaptation investment plans for 2025-2030,
our future Chimate Change Adaptation Report and progress against our 2030 carbon commitments,

The Resilience Steering Group

The Resilience Steering Group, chaired by the Chief Exacutive, is responsible for assessing and improving
Anglian Water's resilience. Anglian Water has introduced six capitals thinking and integrated them into the
governance process for projects within the organisation, so that all six capitals — natural, finandial, sodal,
manufactunng, people and intellectual - are considered when making investment decisions.

Finance, Treasury and Energy Paolicy Group

The Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group also plays an important role in managing transition risks and
opportunities, Chaired by our Chigf Financial Officer, the group leads on raising sustainable finance and
identified sustainable projects such as renewable energy peneration. The group’s members include the Chief
Rnancial Officer, the Group Treasurer, other Management Board Directors and the Head of Carban Neutrality.

The groups above take the principal rofe in managing climate-related risk. Other organisational groups play an
important role in developing climate-efated approaches.
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Soc Capital Steering Group

The Six Capitals Steering Group has developed a methodology to assign values to measures across each of the
six capitals and thelr contributing factors, allowing for project appraisals to consider value in the broadest
possibie sense. Anglian Water has developed 2 methodology for capturing and reporting on this data, allowing
for reports on performance against the six capitals to be included in 3 wider purpase dashboard that will be

reported to the Board on a regular basis, The Six Capitals Steering Group has been subsumed by the
Sustainability Centre of Excellence,

Finance Climate Group

The Finance Climate Groups’ purpase is to coordinate, collate and share best practice on financial planning and
reporting with regards to sustainability, carbon and climate-change issues. The group has improved the link
between finance functions and those delivering dimate solutions around the business. Our Chief Financial
Officer attends once a year for an update on progress and prioritisation.

Sustalnabllity Community and Sustalinability Centre of Excellence

Anghan Water's Sustainabllity Community alows Anglian Water employess and alllance partners to engage
with sustainability-related sctivities, ensuring that input into the cimate change, carbon and sustainability
agenda is open 1o all. This community aims to hamess these ideas and the widespread commitment 1o
sustainability across Anglian Water and our partners.

Headed by the Chief Sustainability Officer, our Sustainability Centre of Excellence is a consultative and
collabarative forum for thase leading on sustainability and purpose throughout the organisation to maximise
impact and increase ransparency.

Engaging with our customers
We are constantly engaging with customers, with over:

+ 1 million direct customer contacts a year;
¢ 337 customer paneks; and
* 100,000 responses 10 our customer feedback surveys.

Our customers are valued stakehalders who we cansult with on our key plans,

In preparation for our AMPE proposals, we carried out almost 35,000 in-depth engagements with our
household customers and over 2,500 engagements with our non-household customers,

We also issue key dimate-refated plans for public consultation — including our Drought Plan, Water Resources
Management Plan, Climate Change Adaptation Report and Drainage and Waste Water Managemeant Plan —
and we incorporate and reflect the feedback we receive,
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Customer feedback channel include the ICG, our online community and our Customer Board.

Anglian Watar's Independant Challenge Group (ICG): A group of independent subject experts and regulators —
with an Independent Chalr — that serutinises and chaltenges Anglian Water's business plans, to make sure
they reflect customers’ priorities. Replacing the previous Customer Engagement Forum in 2022, the ICG
constructively challenges Anglian Water on.

s the guality of its engagement with customers and the wider communities and stakeholders it serves;

s the edent to which customer priorities are reflected in what the company does; and

* the company’s delivery against those priorities.
Cur anline community is formed of 500 customers, whose views we seek weekly on a wide rangs of 1opics.
Cur Customer Board comiprises a representative selection of members from the anline community, to provide
further guidance and directly feed in customers’ views,

Climate-related strategy
Climate-related risks, opportunities and impact

As stated in our Climate Change Adaptation Report [published in 2020, with an updated version due by the
end of 2024) — and more recently confirmed in our Thriving East research — dlimate change in our region will
lead to less rainfall in summer and wetter weather in winter, We have been fooused on building resilience for
years and expect the more extreme weather conditions we've witnessed in recent years to continuge.

Organitational resilience and scenario planning

Anghian Water's overall resilience to climate-refated risk s addressed through various strategies and plans, as
outlined in our approach 1o dimate change on page 35, As an example, climate change will have an impact on
available water resourcss. Dur long-term strategy 1o managing supply and demand 2 outlined in our Water
Resources Management Plan. Successive plans have ensured 3 safe, secure supply of water to our customers’
faps. New water treatment works, the laying of strategic pipelines to take surplus water to areas in deficit and
improving the connectivity of our region have contributed 1o resilience.

Our Long-Term Delfivery Strategy contains our adaptive approach to 2050, As we look to 2050, our strategy will
mitigate the impacts of challenges like climate change, population growth and new regulations to ensure there
is no deterioration in the service we provide to customers, Key focus areas include: demand reduction; new
water supply infrastructure, ensuring that our water recycling systems protect the environment from harm; a
circular economy approach to all waste stréams; and a significant step change in the use of nature-based
solutions 1o solve waler-secunty lssues.

Dur five-year investment periods (short-term) and associated Ofwat Perfarmance Commitment Levels (PCL)
are s&f in the context of a much longer timeframe — in line with our Purpose and Strategic Direction
Staternent. Arything between five and 25 years 1§ defined 35 medium 1erm. Long term is defined as 25 years+,
In the table below, the metrics cited are our Ofwat PCLs. These are 3 subset of a wider range of performance
measures, which ladder up to our long-t2rm ambitions.

Identifying risks and climate-related opportunities

Our governance structure enables us to identify cdimate-refated opportunities across the organisation. These
are centralised and reviewed within the Climate and Carbon Steering Group and outlingd below:
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Anglian Water Group Limited
Strateqic report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Financial Impact

Histarically, we have ring-fenced an element of the Opex budget centrally, to ensure this is available when we
incur additional costs 35 a result of weather events. In light of the weather extremes exparienced in recent
years, this ring-fenced budget was increased for the year 1o March 2024,

We had very little rainfall in 2022, resulting in dry grownd conditions. This impacted our leakage performance
and we experienced increased costs a5 & result. We had stable weather for the first half of 2023/24, however,
the last six months gave way to extremely wet weather, which put pressure on our water recycling operations
and impacted us across pollutions, spills and flooding. In cost terms, this translated in additional operating
costs of £9.3 million, a2 a result of the wet weather, offset by the unwind of the prior-year drought-refated
costs not repeating {12.6 million),

Furthermaore, we have not reached our regulatory targets for some key measures, A & result, we are in a
penaity of £37.6 milllon. Read more about our Ofwat-related performance commitments on page ¥3.

The impact of cimate change i« incorporated into our key assurmptions and significant judgements on page
111 o 116. This discusses the risks in relation 1o our water mains network, in conjunction with our proposed
investment far dimate vulnerable mains — a5 highlightad in the risks 1able above,

Green finance

We have developed a Sustainability-Linked Finance Framework to issue finance instruments tied to our
sustainability objectives, including carbon reductions. The investments made through the Green Bonds issued
o date are expected to support a 63% reduction from the company's 2010 capital carbon baseline.

Greenhouse Gas Report

Our annual Greenhouse Gas Report charts the decline in Intensity factors used 1o indicate the decarbonisation
of our services, Where relevant, we have also aligned with industry best practice for emissions measurement
and reporting. This approach has been verified, since 2010, by CEMARS a5 being measured, managed and
reduced in accordance with 150 14064, Our strategy for operational carbon reduction has been verified against
150-14064 since 2010 and in 2021 were awarded Platinum status on Achilles Carbon Reduce.

Transition to Net Tero

By 2030 we aim to be a net zero carbon business, This is defined as net zero emissions where we have
operational control as set out in owr Net Zero Carbon Routemap 2030, This means we will reduce our carbon
ermissions through, for example, the consumption of renewsble electricity, transitioning away from fossil fued
vehicles and reducing our enengy consumption. In 2030 we will likely have some residual emizsions, Tor
example from process emissions from waste water treatment and Heavy Goods Vehides, which will be offset
through carbon offsetting mechanisms.
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Our Net Zero 2030 Strategy contains mare detail on the risks associatied with transitioning to a net nero carbon
business. Overall, we have a comprehensive approach to dimate change, of which our transition risks form a
key part. Key documents outlining our plans include our; Net Zero 2030 Strategy; Water Resources
Management Plan, Drainage and Wastswater Management Plan; Strategic Direction Statement; Climate
Change Adaptation Report, and Long Term Delivery Strategy,

Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan [DWMP)

This year, building on our experience of assessing flood risk, we undertook our most detailed flood-risk
asspssment ever for our Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP). We followed a three step

PrOCELs,

Step one used a range of climate change scenarios, including UKCP18 RCP2.6 and RCP 8.5, four time horizons
{2025, 2030, 2035 and 2050) and six storm returt periods {1:30, 1-75, 1:100, 1:250, 1:500 and 1:1 000). This
idantified the lkelihood of flooding at our sites.

Ltep two established priority sites, based on risk and consequence.
Step three developed solutions that would protect our assets for submission as part of our PR24 business plan.

The results cearly show the impact of climate change as we look ahead to 2050. Using the RCPB.S scenario
{broadly equivalent to a 4 degree C temperature rise}, we can see that fluvial flood risk (when a river bursts its
banks) reduces slightly, while pluvial flooding (when heavy rainfall overwhelms the ability of the ground to
absorb or drain water) increases slightly.

Thia likely cause of this is that base river flows may be lower in summer, due to reduced rainfall, while more-
intense summer storms will increase the risk of surface-water flooding. This analysis allows us to take a more
nuanced view of our risk, enabling us to make informed decizions about the risk of flooding and take an
adaptive approach to invectment, where reguired.

Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP)

We develop 3 Water Resources Management Plan (WRMP) every five years, setting out how we plan to
manage water supplies in our region to meet current and future needs over a 25 year period. Cur WRMP24 is
our biggest and boldest yet — it includes two new reservoirs, a reuse scheme, transfers and a demand
management strategy underpinned by our ambitious smart metering rol-out.

In preparing our WRMP we conducted the mast robust level of dimate change assessment (Tier 3 in the Water
Resources Planning Guideline supporting guidance) for our whole system.

We ued climate-change projections, based on UKCP18, through 12 bias-corrected Regional Cimate Model
[RCM) factors for RCPE.5, This modelling was carried out for each Water Resources Zone [WRZ) within our

EyETML

The results of the climate-change-scenario analysis identified that two of our 28 WRZ are particularly
wulnerable to climate change and that there would be a material impact on the supply demand balance in
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another five WRZs. Climate-change impacts were combined with other factors, such as growth, to understand
the total impact an the supply/demand balance in sach WRZ This has helped inform better resillence
strategies for the WRIZS.

Addressing climate-related supply challenges

We began engaging with oursupply chain on climate change in 2007, when we invited our key partners to HRH
The Prince of Wales' first Mayday Summit. Since then, we've worked with our design and construction
partners to reduce capital carbon by more than 64%.

In 2023 we brought our value chain together to discuss climate change resilience and adaptation and our
journey to net zero carbon. The event opened with a keynote speech from Chris Stark, the then Chief
Executive of the Climate Change Committee. A number of collaborative workstreams were taken forward after
the event.

We're focused on reducing the carbon associated with the materials used to build our assets. In 2016 we
became the first organisation to be verified against PAS 2080, the world’s first standard for managing carbon

in infrastructure. Designad to drive best practice in managing carbon across the supply chain, in 2023 PAS 2080
was revised. We have been verified against this revised standard.

An example of value-chain collaboration is our Ofwat-funded research project to better understand Whale Life
Carbon = that is the carbon associated with constructing. operating, maintaining and managing the end of life
of our assets. Whole Life Carbon will integrate carbon and cost models into a single digital approach, enabling
users to consider options that avoid construction of new assets, through re-using existing infrastructure, or
selecting lower-carbon materials. The project has already identified future opportunities to combine carbon
and climate resilience.

Eone

In 2023, the Anglian Water @one Alliance was awarded the Saint Gobain's Sustzinability Leadership Award.
Saint-Gobain designs, manufactures and distributes materials and services for the construction and industriat
miarkets. The @one Alliance team has collaborated with Saint Gobain, to use the UK's first 100% recycled
ductile iron pip2 from Saint Gobain's neyv low-carbon electric arc furnace.

Water UK Carbon Network

In November 2023, we were instrumental in restarting the Water UK Carbon Network, which is co-chaired by
our Head of Carbon Neutrality. This group meets monthly with a purpose of sharing of best practice,
Imowledge and development for carbon practitioners, shaping of net 2ero policy and strategy from a water
Secior perspecive.
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CreDo

Alongside working with our supply chain, we are partnering across sectors to build climate resilience. in 2021
the Climate Change Commities assessed infrastructure interdependencies a8 having a low-guality plan and
found that infrastructure owners were making chower progress than needed 1o manage risk.

Our assets operate in an interrelated infrastructure system. We are refiant on the power netwark for
electricity, the telecoms network for communications and the road system for access. In tum, the power and
telecoms networks are in some cases refiant on the water network. A failure in one of these elements of the
aystier can lead to cascade failure, where other elements of this linked infrastructure network fail as a
conseguence, Extreme weather events can cause this fallure,

Since 2021, we've partnered with British Telecom and UK Power Networks on & project, led by the National
Digital Twin programme (NDTp) and Connected Places Catapult, known as the Climate Resilience
Demonstrator {CreDaol.

Initially funded by BEIS and Innavate UK —and now having secured innovation funding from both Ofwat and
Ofgem — CreDo 15 combining datasets from Anglian Water, BT and UKPN into one system model, 1o develop a
crogs-sector picture of extreme weather events. In bringing together data and insights across sectorial and
organisational boundaries, the project shows how we can collzborate on a national network of connected
digital twins, to create resilient infrastructure.

The project originally focused on the impacts of extreme flooding and creating a working moded for effective
data-sharing between the partners. In 2023, the project expanded to investigate extreme-heat events. Funded
by the Ofwat Water Breakthrough challenge, the second phase of the project examines the potential impact of
such extrame heat scenarios on the wider infrastructure network. The CReDo team now has 3 working digital
twin, which provides a greater understanding of the Interconnectedness of the netwarks, slong with an
increased understanding of how more-extrerme climate events could impact this system of systems.

The next phase i preparing the digital twin architecture, 10 scale the working model 10 becomse UK-wide.
We're also considering other future scenarlos, Including extreme wind and storm events and Involving more
2sset owners, 1o cover infrastructure such as roads.

Innovating to reduce carbon emissions

Our Research & Innovation Team imeests anound £30 million per year in ground-breaking research and
projects. This indudes the Ofwat-funded Triple Carbon Reduction project, which is exploring how to reduce
process emissions — afier electricity, these are our biggest source of emissions. The project i$ ako looking at
reducing energy consumption in water recycling and producing hydrogen, with hydrogen having the potential
to result in significant carbon reductions. Currently, there is uncertainty surrounding how this new model may
wark,

As part of Ofwat’s Water Breakthrough Challenge, we are leading on seven projects and have secured £20.4
million in Ofwat Innovation funding, to create solutions to our industry’s biggest challenges, including process
Emissions.
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In December 2023, Ofwat visited the Cambridge Water Recyeling Centre in Milton to hear about the Triple
Carbon Reduction project. The project aims to evidence a step-change reduction in greenhouse-gas emisshans
and electricity used in the water treatment process, which could significantly reduce the amount of emissions
created, The project uses renewable-energy-powered hydralysls, to produce hydrogen and oxygen from
water. The hydrogen is collected to be used as a fuel, while the oxygen i used 1o replace raditional aeration.
The results of this trial will feed into the development of our hydrogen strategy aver the coming years,

Michael Taylor, Inncwvation Integration Manager at Anglian Water said: “The Ofwat Innovation Fund has
allowed us to have genuine ambition in taking big strides towards a transformed water sector,

“The Triple Carbon Reduction project is a great example of a complex innovation tackling barriers in
technologies, processes, systems and markets, in parallel. The collective approach, at this scale, wouldn't be
passible without support from the Ofwat Innovation Fund. | cannot wait to see what is possible, through our
continued collaboration on mobllising transformational projects.”

although still in the sarly stages, two projects funded wa the Ofwat innovation fund have now been through
their full [ifecycle and are delivering benefits viz changes to our Investment planning, early-stage capial
delivery processes and oparational strategies.

Generating renewable energy

The vast majority of our operational emissions are associated with the electricity used to pump, treat and
recycle water. One of the opportunities for reducing our emissions = and our costs = is to generate renewable
energy from our sewage sludge, and to generate renewable power on our sites from wind and solar. Not anly
does generating renewable energy reduce our impact on the environment, it also mitigates the transition risk
associated with changes in policy and cost linked to decarbonising the UK's electricity.

Since 2004, we have grown our fleet of combined heat and power generation sies. We have ten sites
producing 100-120GWh per annum, sebject to asset parformance. We generate around 13GWh from three
wind turbines installed at Tetney Newton Marsh and March Water Recycling Centres. In terms of solar, our
partners operate solar arrays acress 15 operational sites, generating around 17GWh per annum = of which we
consume approximately 15G6Wh,

The past year also saw the advancement of our activities in the procurement of corporate Power Purchase
Agreements. Supported by framewark partners appointed in early 2023, we have procured 71.6GWh from
atcredited renewable energy instatlations in and around our region. Further CPPA supply contracts are
forecast to commence in 202425,

Our aspiration is that, by 2030, we will use 100% renewable energy, with 25% of our electricity being delfvered
from renewable sources generated at cur own sites. We're also working towards upgrading three sludge
treatment centres to éxport biogas to the grid,
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Energy efficiency

As well 25 generating our own renewable energy, we're also pursuing other opportunities to reduce our
carbon emissions and reduce costs. These include an energy efficiency Spend-to-5ave programme, designing
carbon out of the new assets we build and reducing travel emissions,

This programme was launched in 2006 and delivered savings of more than £10 million within four years.

We continue to reduce energy consumption across the business, targeting 13 GWh in reductions by 2024/25.
Climate-related risk management

Identifying and assessing climate-related risks

We outline our 13 principal risks on page 67, Clirmate change 5 a consideration in each. Identification of
current and emerging climate risks, including risks presented through implementation of change, is
undertaken as part of our embedded risk processes. Dur process utilises expert judgement, historical data,
extamal data and forward-looking analysis, We use scenanos to inform our future direction,

The assessment and management of dimate-related risks is consistent with the aporoach used to manage risk
throughout the business, Cimate-related risks were identified 2nd assessed during the production of our latest
Climate Change Adaptation Report. Climate risks are also identified and managed through the preparation of
fong-term plans and the delivery of individual investments. We review the carrent risk level and how our
controts provide confidenos and assurance around our management of that risk.

Our Long Term Delivery Strategy (LTDS) sets out how we will achieve our future vision, with our core pathway
outlining the investments we expect 1o make to 2050. We have used Ofwat's common reference scenarios —
technology, demand, climate change and abstraction reduction — to test our future plans. And we have
lnoked to the future through a variety of lenses — including digital, innovation, partnership working and place-
based approaches — to ensure we have considered every possible solution. This enables us to create a core
pathway 2nd a set of alternative routes, in the event drcumstances change.

Managing climate-related risks

The managerment of cimate-related risks is consistent with our appréach 1o manage risk throughout the
business. More in our Risk section on pages 105 to 108 of AlR.

Integrating climate-related risk into overall risk strategy

Our approach to elimate-refazed risks are fully integrated within our overall risk strategy, as outlined on page
108 of AIR.

Within this system, we define what constitutes substantial financial and strategic impact to the business. A
critical impact at Anglian Water is defined in the risk register as being greater than £25 million, while a
significant impact is between £10 million and £25 million.
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Climate-refated metrics and targets
We've developed a process to assess and manage the chmate resilience of our investments.

Our Sk Capitals Framewark is used to consider the broadest value we can create through imvestrient
decisions, Ard our approach has been externally validated by sustainability consultants, Route 2, Thase
metrics have been incorporated into our value framework — which attributes 3 notionad Tinancial value o
elements such as biodversity and amenity value — and into our risk, opportunity and vatue tools and process,
Imvastrents are then assessed for climate resilience, operational-carbon performance and capital-carbon

performance, throughout the process.

As an organisation, our belief is that reducing carbon results in cost reductions, whereas previously, it was
seen as an additional expense or burden. This mindset shift, alongside ambitious targets {65% capital carbon
reduction target by 2025 and 70% by 2030 against a baseline of 2010) which is underpinned by a rigorous
process verified to PAS 2080 has proven much more effective in driving down emissions,

This is most ciearly seen in the defivery of our five year plans, in accordance with PAS 2080.

The data collected on our carbon versus cost saving can be used to estimate an implicit financial value for a
tonme of carbon.

The Performance Commitrnents section, pages 73 to B7, contains a set of metrics and targets we are using to
understand progress against climate-related risk. Performance against these metrics is set out annually in our
Annual Performance Report. Our Climate Change Adaptation Report alsa includes other key metrics we use to
me&sure and mitigate our impact. An updated report will be published in 2024,

Scope 1, Scope 2 and relevant Scope 3 Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG)
Metrics and torgets

This table meets the reguirements of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) regulations.

Units 2022/23 2023/24 inclusions

Energy consumption  kWh 1073538748 1069978.529 CElectricity, gas, fuels combusted on

used to calculate site (fossil fuels and biogas), transport

emissions kWh {compary cars, fleet vehicles, personal
and hire cars on business use) plus
liquid fuels consumed on site

SCOPE 1=Gasand  Tonnes COZe 10,541 10,945 Fossll fuel combustsd, natural gas and

fuel oll consumption biagas

SCOPE 1-Process  Tonnes COZe 85 259 84,720 Water and waste water treatment,

and *I.Igi'!i‘l.l'E tlh:IE,EI!

Brrissions
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Units 2022/23 2023/24 Inclusions
SCOPE 1= Owned Tonmes O02e 21804 21,759 Fleet vehicles and company cars
transport
SCOPE 1-Total Tonnes CO2e 118,304 117,483
SCOPE 2 —Purchased Tonnes COZe 121,994 134,597 Grid electricity — location-based
electricity electric for vehicies
SCOPE 2 —Total Tonnes CO2e 121994 134,557
SCOPE 3—-Business  Tonnes CO2e 621 740  Private cars, public transport
traval
SCOPE3=- Tannes CO2e 13,144 18,434 Outourced tankers
Ouisourced
transport
SCOPE 3 —Purchased Tonnes CO2e 11,154 11,632 Transmission & distribution
electricity
SCOPE 3-Total Tonnes COZe 24920 30,806 We have not included commuting,
significant capital carbon and emissions from use
of water in customers’ homes,
TOTAL ANNUAL Tannes CO2e 265,219 282 836
GROSS EMISSIONS
Exported renewabdes  Tonmes C02e -5,334 «6,549 BExporied renewables REGD certified
Green tanff Tonnes CO2e 1]
TOTALANNUAL NET Tonnes CO2e 258 8B4 276,337
EMISSIONS
INTENSITY RATIO = Kg COZe per 192,48 191.93
waler treated il
INTENSITY RATIO—  Kg CO2e per 409.54 4547
recycled water rAl
INTENSITY RATIO - Kg OOZe per 211.79 2361  Full flow to treatmant
recycled watar hal
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Methodology:

Emissions have been caloulated using Carbon Accounting Workbook v138 (2024), an industry standard reporting
tool. We have fallowed the 2020 UK Government environmental reporting guidance. We have used the GHG
Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting standard (revised adition) and emission factors from the UK
Government's GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2023 to calculate the above disclosures, There
have been no methodological changes in the way emissions have been calculated in financial year 20232024
against 2022-21.

The reporting boundary covers the emissions within the regulated activity of Anglian Water Services Ltd,
where we have operational controf, 2. all Scope 1 emissions, all Scope 2 emissions and Scope 3 ernissions of
outsourced transport, business travel and transmission and distribution losses.

The numbers reported have been verified by Achilles Carbon Reduce (formerly CEMARS) as being measured,
managed and reduced in accordance with 150 14064-1. This verification process has been followed since 2011

We aim to be a net zero carbon business by 2030, This is defined a8 net 2ero emissions where we have
operational control as set out in our Met Zero Carbon Routemap 2030,

Energy consumption has increased siighthy in 2023/24 over 2022/23 primarily because of the very wet weather
and the subsequent increased pumping required to pump higher volumes of wastewater. This was somewhat
offset by lower water demand and pumping reguirements for water supply, induding abstracting raw water
from rivers into impounding resarvoirs,

Organisational targets to manage climate-related risks and opportunities

Our key short 1o medium term climate-related targets are 35 set out below. We frequently monitor and
forecast our position towards our net 2éro commitment, The below tangets are in addition to our Performance
Commitments.

o Be anet 2ero carbon business by 2030 (emissions where we have operational control and as set out in our
Net Zero Carbon 2030 Routemap);

« Deliver a B5% reduction in capital carbon by 2025 against our 2010 baseline;

»  Deliver a 70% reduction in capital carbon by 2030 against our 2010 baseline,

* Deliver a 10% reduction in operational carbon by 2025 against a 2020 baseline; and

» Between 2020 and 2025 ensure that a dimate change resifience assessment is completed for all relevant
irvestments.
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Operational carbon is the carbon emitted as a consequence of the day-to-day operation: of our business -
energy use, process emissions from the water recyding process, emissions from our vehicle fleet, etc. Capital
carbon is the carbon emitted as consequence of the manufacture and Installation of assets we construct, for
example, our new sirategic pipeline or, a new treatmeant facility,

From 2022/23, a proportion of senior lzader remuneration is linked 1o performance against these dimate-
related targets; 2.5% of senior leaders’ bonuses are linked to the achievement of our annual net fero carbon
performance target and 2.5% i linked to the achievement of our annual capital carbon performance target.
See more in our Renumeration report on page 148 of AIR.

Our longer-term climate-refated targets are in line with our purpose and Strategic Direction Statement to
2050:

» Resilient to the rigk of drought and flood;

» Enabling sustainable economic and housing growth,

»  Work with others to achieve significant improvements in ecological quality of catchments:
» A carbon neutral business.

In terrns of our carbon emissions, we intend to;

*  Develop a strategy to further reduce our capital carbon beyond 70% post 2030,

« By 2050, our ambition i to move beyond net 2ero and bacome a carbon positive business, reducing
rather than contributing 1o the UK's emissions.

* Develop a hydrogen stralegy 1o best understand how we could generate hydrogen, use any oxygen
generated from hydrobysis 2nd understand how our HGY fleet could be powered using hydrogen,
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OUR NATURE-RELATED DISCLOSURES

As stewards of 3 natural resource, we rely on and impact the natural environment, Water underping
ecosystems, nourishes biodiversity and continues to shape our natural environment, This means managing the
impacts, dependencies, risks and opportunities we have in relation 1o nature is not only the right thing 1o do,
but fundamental to our business,

Being in & heavily-regulated industry also means there is & substantial overlap in our currént reporting of
nature-related issues and voluntary nature-related disclosure standards such as TNFD (Taskforce on Nature-
related Finandial Disdosures). In addition to the existing environmental reporting in this report, we are in the
process of preparing a nature-related disclosure, drawing insight from the TNFD recommendations and other
disclosure frameworks, We'll share more on this fater this year and will continue to review and enhance our
nature-refated reporting, as standards evolve.

Navigate to the relevant sections of our AIR, across the following four piltars; Governance, Strategy, Rick and
impact managament, Metrics and targets.

Governancoe

Page 92 Our management of nature uses a similar governance pracess to that of climate, drawing an
many of the same governance groups and principles.

Page 84 We set out our stakeholder considerations and engagement in our Section 172 Statement.

Page 80 Qur nature-refated advocacy can be found within ‘National and local government” in our
stakeholder section.

Page 87 Relevant policles, documents or reports that govern our approach to Human Rights can be
found in our non-financial information statements,

Strategy

Page 44 We cover our broad impacts and dependences on nature in the Emvironment section of this
repor.

Page 14 ‘Our year in context” sets out our response to key nature-related dependencies and impacts
during the reporting year, including flooding, pollutions and spills and our key infrastructure
projects.

Page 110 The business’ kay environmental risks are summarised within our Principal risks under
‘Emvlranment’,

Page 11 Nature considerations are integrated into our Business Model and Strategic direction through
our six capitals approach 1o decision making.

Page 77 In this part of the report, we cover how we engage with our alfiances and wider supply chain.
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Risk and Impact Management

Page 101 As with our climate-related risks, our approach to identifying, assessing and managing nature-
refated risks is aligned and fully integrated within our overall risk strategy, as described in our
TCFD disclosure,

Page 105 The business” risk management approach i set out in more detail in the Risk Management

section of this report.
Metrics and targets
Page 37 Many of our performance commitments help us assess and manage nature-related impacts

and dependencies. These, along with information on how we monitor our progress and how
wa have performed against cur targets during the reporting year, are detailed in ‘Delivering
U oUTComes’

RISK MANAGEMENT
Managing risk in line with our stratagy

Our management team, with oversight from the Anglian Water Services |AWS) Board, is responsible for
developing our strategy. Our strategic planning process aims 1o ensure we have developed clear objectives
and targets, and identified the actions needed to deliver on our commitments, including the management of
risk.

Risk management approach

We have an established Risk Management process In place with defined Princpal Risk Areas and regularly
reviewed risk appetite statements which are reviewed regularly. Our top tier and business stream risks are
ligned 1o our Principal Risk areas and are enabled by our risk management process and supporting sctivities.

Our risk management framework enables the identification, assessment and effective management of
busingss risks, both individually and In aggregation. The consequences and kelfhood of these risks are
determined and ranked using a scoring matrix aligned to our risk appetite. This ensures that a consistent
approach is taken when assessing overall impact 1o Anglian Water and our customers,

Risk appetite

Risk appetite defines the opportunities and associated risks which Anglian Water is willing to aceept in the
pursuit of achieving its strategic objectives. These statements are used to drive risk-aware decision-making by
key business stakeholders.

We consider ricks aligned to our Principal Risk Areas and strategic priorities. Underpinning each statement is a
series of Risk Appetite thresholds. These assist in providing a view as to whether we are operating within our
appetite, or whether additional risk mitigation may be reguired,

Anglian Water is exposed to & variety of uncertainties that could have a material adverse effect or impact on
our financial condition, our operational performance, our business resilience, and/or our reputation.
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We have a structured approach 1o risk assessment, with the Board reviewing and challenging managament’s
asspssment of risk, together with the mitigation measures in place to manage principal risks in the context of
our obiigations to keep employees safe and provide an essential and effident service 1o customers, The
Board's assessment of risk determines what level of risk it is willing to accept, which helps senior management
o understand the mitigating activities required 1o control risk likelihood and impact 1o acceptable levels,

For principal risks, we review the current risk level and how our controks provide confidence and assurance
around our management of that risk. Where a gap exists between our current position and our mitigated
Bspiration, we instigate new or revised actions to chose or reduce any risk gap. Peer review and discussion at
the Board or Management Board form the basis for establishing our overall principal risk status. There may be
occasions when a higher level of risk is acceptable, but this is only in cases where the risks are well understood
and can be demonstrably managed. The Board regularly reviews Anglian Water's internal controls and risk
management processes to support its decision making.

Principal risks
The Board has a responsibility to disclose “significant fallings and weaknaesses, or areas of concemn that have
not been resolved by year end”, The Board's interpretation of this requirement is that thera s a need 1o

disclose any control fallure or omission that, if unchecked, has the potential to result in significant financial,
operational, or reputational damage to the business.

We carefully assess the principal risks facing us. These risks centre around the criticality of our infrastructure,;
the importance of our customers and our people, dimate change and the environment, health and safety in
our service delivery, cyber security, and our ability to finance our business appropriately, and are reported
regularly to the Board, as set out below.

In addition to the principal risks, we also actively manage several low-level business stream risks which feed
into our principal risks. Principal risks are assesced considering a combination of factors Including emerging
risks and external threats.

We carry out horizon scanning annually o identify any emerging risks that may impact the buginess. The
seope, speed, impact, and interdependence of risks are growing and which is creating further complexity,
meaning we are also having 1o manage multiple events at atime,

The past year we have continued 1o experience unprécedented level of change and disruption, bath in the LK
and globally. Anglian Water has faced significant challenges due to complex and interrefated issues, intluding
global instability from ongoing conflicts and increased temsions in the seas. Energy costs, although decreasing,
remain volatile, and the continued impacts from the ongoing cost-of-living crisis, Additionally, our region has
been affected by extreme weather events such as consistent high levels of rainfall. Qur risk profile has changed
as & result and in response to our evelving risk profile, we have implemented additional cortrals and
mitigating méasures 1o addréss and stabilise our risk position.

1



Anglian Water Group Limited

Strategic report (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2024

Current Predicted

Principal risk risk profile Trend Outlook Bugineps putcome

1 Customer propogition | = R Dehighted customers

2 Emvironment ] 1“ i~y Flounshing enviranment

3 Water supply and quakty ] i ik Gafe, clean water

4 Health and safoty B 1 & Ourpeople: healthier, happier,
& People [ ] - .l' Eﬂpﬂﬂ' healthier, happies,

. Reshent busmess/investing
6. Technolagy & > & U
Fair charges, far returns/

T Finange [ ] e “» epiternst v

B, Reputation . T ’]‘ Delighied customers

9. Asset infrastructure [ ] — s Investing for tomorrow

10. Business resilience 4] > > Resitient busmess

1. Commercial and third-party [ ] e % Business reslionce

12 Sirategic cxecution [ ] £y ¥ Investing for tomonmow

13. Legislation i — —r Messhent busmess

Risk profiles Risk movement
B onise 4% Nachange
. Mednm risk 1' Rini increaning

| Modum - Low Risk

-

L ek decreasing

Further details of the principal risks can be found in the Risk section of the Anglian Water strategic report.
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Emerging risks

We define emerging risks 25 a new risk, or @ familiar risk in @ new or unfamiliar context (re-emerging) which s
changing in nature, and where the likelihood and impact is not widely understood, These risks are mare likely
1o have 3 longer-term impact. However, there i potential for the velocity to significantly increase within a
shorter time frame and affect our performance. Anglian Water continually scans the horizon for emerging

risks,
ENERGY COSTS Customer proposition
Consumers have seen a reduction in energy costs leading into 2024. Peapk
However the market remains volatile due to geopolitical tensions causing
disruption 1o supply chains, changes in demand and oil-price fluctuations. Financial

Business rasiliencs

Commercial and third-

and are the most likely to have seen both their financial circumstances and
thedr health deteriorate. Local cost pressures and supply challenges are not
set to ease anytime soon with a lot of pressure still on the economy.

party
COST OF LVING Customer proposition
The UK continues 1o feel pressure from the increased costs of lving which is Penple
putting significant strain on household wallets. Low-income families have
already been hit the hardest by increasing household bills and food prices Financial

Business resilience

CYBER ATTACK

Geopolitical instability has heightened the risk of cyber-attacks. Also, a5
businesses move their data and infrastructure to the cloud and increase
refiance on third-party software applications and service provides, they are
significantly increasing the risk of cyber-attacks and breaches from third
parties.

Water quality and supply
Technology
Financial
Business resilience
Commercial and third-

due to long term sickness which will mean employers will continue to face

challenges during 2024, The cost-of-Iving crists may see employees
struggling to manage the threat of financial security and this could provoke

direct feelings of anxiety and worsening mental health.

party
CYBER ATTACK OM CRITICAL NATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE Technology
Geopalitical tensions are heightening the risk of large scale cyber-attacks, Financial
The threat of attacks is heightened for critical national infrastructures such
as water supply systems, energy companies and transport networks. This Business resilience
maybe direct or indirectly such as on a critical supplier.
EMPLOYEE WELLBEING People
According to ONS, there are over 2.8 million werkers out of the labour force Financial

Business resilience

DISRUPTIONS IN GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAINS
Ongoing, new conflicts and tensions in the oceans is adding further
pressures and disruption to supply chains.

Financial
Busine== resiliehcs
Commercizl and third-
party
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Emerging ricks Related PRA

barrers, increased bevels of protectionism and the COVID-19 pandemic.
With current global instability, the need for a resilient supply chain in the
chemical industry has never been greater,

CLIMATE ACTION FAILURE Erviranment
We face the reputational impact of not being seen to contribute towards the :
Water quality and supply
mitigation of climate change via achievemant of net tero emissions by 2030, R
Firtancial

Strategic execution
CHEMICAL RESILIENCE Enviromment
The chemical industry has bean a major manm_r to businesses and global Water cuiality aiid
trade growth for decades. The industry has been hit hard by recent trade sifpert

Busiriess resilience

Commercial and third-

Geopolitical shocks continue 10 Impact ghobally in 2024 with overarching
themes such as ongoing on emerging confficts, energy security, supply chain
disruptions, resource shortages, and a heightened risk of cybersecurity

party
ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE/BIG DATA Water quality and supply
[:ata is H_::re.asingh.r being u!.ed_tu_:l prmid!z meaningful insights for _ Technology
companies, to support key decision making. The fast-paced evolution of
generative Al tools, alongside the opportunities it brings, raises concems Strategic execution
around lack of transparency, over reliance, bias and discrimination,
wulnerability attacks, lack of human oversight, high cost and privacy
concerns. This, coupled with the digital skills gap/shortage, increases the
risk.
EXTREME WEATHER Customer proposition
Meteorologists warm extreme weather is set 1o continue in the UK and the -
risk of failing to deal with the impact of extreme and/or unpredictable
weather events on our assets and infrastructure is increasing, Financial
Asset infrastructure
Business resilience
SHORTAGE OF SKILLED WORKERS/DIGITAL SKILLS GAP Water quality and supply
There is currently a shortage of skilled workers at a time of high demand for Peonle
labaur, With the increasing use of technology, it is reported that over the
mext 10 - 20 years, 90% of all jobs will require some form of digital shdl. Financial
Business resilience
Strategic execution
GEDPOLITICAL INSTABILITY Financial

Business resilisnce
Commercial and third-

increasing over the last 20 years and every year the risk Increases further,

threats. The upcoming elections, could create an uncertain political party
environment regarding future policies and regulations.

INFECTIOUS DISEASES People
Infectious diseases continues ta be a global risk. This risk has been Finanicial

Business regilients
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Emerging risks Redated PRA
REGULATORY REFORM Environment
The upcoming elections and possibility of a different governmental A
Water quality and supply
leadership, create uncertainty regarding future policies and regulations. RN
There is potential regulatory reform/changes to the number of regulators Peapls

governing the water industry, or 3 mernger. We could see the introduction of Financial
financial penalties for accountable individuals, bigger fines, or criminal ) ]
proceedings for falling to meeting regulatory requirements/expectations. Business resilience
AGING POPULATION People
According to the health organisation, in the next 25 years, the number of Financial

people older than 85 will double to 2.6 million. A rise in the eiderky
population will place greater pressure on public finances, as a relatively Business resilience
smaler working-age population supports growing spending on health, sodal
care, and pensions. An aging population could lead to a shortage of workers
and push up wages, causing wage inflation.

GENDER AND ETHMICITY PAY GAP REPORTING

Gender pay gap reporting kegislation came into foree in April 2017 and requires all UK employers with 250 or
more employees to publish annual information illustrating pay differences between male and female
employees, As such, 2ll references below refer 1o Anglian Water Services Limited and it should be read in
conjunction with the full disclosure within the AWS Annual Integrated Report.

Gender pay gap

We want everyone to feed included, regardless of their background. This applies to all areas across our
inchusion agenda, not only gender.

As reported in detall in our full Gender Pay Gap Report 2023, our workforce composition — as of April 2023 —
was 33.5% women, 66.3% men and 0.2% other. Our mean gender pay gap for the period was £.5%, a reduction
of 3.08: from 2022, while our median gender pay gap was 14.0%, down 3.0% from 16.4% in 2022

Although there has been Improvement 1o our gender pay and bonus gaps in the Last year, significant change
will only be possible once there is 2 substantial shift in gender balance at all levels of the business. As outlined
on page 166 of the Annual Integrated Report, we have a multi-stage, long-term plan to shift the balance
towards greater inclusion.

Steps we're taking steps to address our gender pay gap include:

* Setting annual and mid-term (to 2025] targets, to improve gender equity across the business.

= Ensuring pay and reward processes are transparent and free from bias, Our reward team rmonitors pay
according to gender, investigating any gaps in excess of 55

» Working to address and eradicate bias at each stage of internal and external recruitment, including
advertising placement, imagery, wording of job descriptions and gender composition of interview panels,

*  Encouraging young woman to apply for our apprenticeship and graduate programmes, through dedicated
putreach programmes and recruitment drives
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* Ensuring we're an atiractive emplayer for women and minarity genders of all ages and stages, We offer
enhanced maternity and adoption leave, shared parental leave, paternity leave, flexible working and part-
time working. This i underpinned by a suite of supportive policies, such as pregnancy loss, transgender
and transition and domestic abuse policies. As a result of our efforts, we're seeing maore women hired
across the business,

o In 2022/23, 40% of new hires were women, excesding our target of 36%.

*  33% of senior manager positions are now held by women, exceeding our target of 365%. This is an
improvement from our 35% baseling for both, when we first set targets in 2021

*  We've seen an increase in the number of women employed in STEM-related roles: Z1%in 2023 (13%
in 2022).

Senior Leadership at Anglian Water

We have several key senior women on both our Anglian Water Board of Directors and Management Board.
Board of Directors in 2023/24:

Five out of eleven are women (45%:)
Management Board

= Five out of 12 are women [(42%)

This year, we welcomed to our Board Dr Ros Rivaz as the first female Chair of our Board.

Ethnicity pay gap

We published our second Ethnicity Pay Gap Report in April 2024 as part of our angoing commitrment to
transparency and improving the diversity of our employees,

Unlike gender pay gap reporting, ethnicily pay gap reporting is completed on a voluntary basis. This year the
nurnber of employees who self-reported their identity rose to 73% (2022; 708) which gave us a slight increase
on the available reporting data. A% 3 result, our data is increasingly repressntative of our actual ethnicaliy-
diverse population, and more employees averall have been included in the reported figures. However, the
ethnicity of the remaining 27% of our employees is still outstanding and for this reason, we believe the actual
figures may differ.

This year, we have seen a slight increase in our reported pay gap figures compared to 2022, As this is only our
second reporting year, itis too early to say whether the fluctuation is related to the increased level of
recorded ethnicity, however this is something we will be monitoring in future years.

In calculating owr ethnicity pay gap, we have used the same principles that are applied to statutory gender
pay gap reporting. The ethnicity pay gap shows the difference in the average pay betweean paaple from
Ethrlcally Diverse Communities (EDC), which includes people who ane Black, Asian and Mited Race, comparad

10 White employees (incuding those that identify as White Other),
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Steps we re taking 1o close the ethnicity pay gap

We're working to build an organisation that is diverse and inclusive, with equality and representation at all
levels. We're taking the followlng actions to improve the ethnle diversity in our warkforce:

Actively recruiting for a diverse workforce and setting diversity hire targets.

Target Target for 2023 2023 End af AMPT
Outcome target (2025)

Inisieens T percers g of Ta meressenow EOC hires by 5% 1% Biy thes el of 2025 we

fisw hares fram ethnically in #1223 Wingenng tha foral numbar want 2% of &l hdw hires

diverse communiieg (FNCsE  of EDC hires 45 1A% (in 7072 nasw fo be fEom PG

1o et tellect the wides hires from LDC way 9'%)

Hemograph-of curmegion

Inciesee e number of To rreass the puinber ol senidr 5 By the ead of 2025

seninr pogilices held Dy pesitians heid by empiyvees from we want 8% of senios

people from FOCs (eflecting  FROs 4o 4% {in 2077 3% of roles pesitions held by

Bt brogder employes wiers fold By prplopees tiom ermployees tom FOCE

perconioge (4. 8%) FIG#)

In addition we are;

» Introducing independent volunteers to review and constructively challenge consdous and unconsdous
bias amywhere in the recruitment process — from the writing of adverts all the way through to offer stage.

=  Piloting mandatory independent panel member on interview panels, with the sole purpose of challenging
bias for the hiring of spedfic roles (typically in operations).

» Changing the way we recruit graduates and apprentices, focusing on the skills and behaviours that really
matter We've also improved aur in-persan assessments to make sure they'ra fair and welcoming
environments where everyone can shine,

*  Working to address and eradicate bias at each stage of internal and external recruitment, including
advertising placement, imagery, wording of job descriptions and gender composition of interview pangk,

» Directing hiring managers to undertake unconscious bias training as part of our Recruitment and
Interviewing Skills training course.

* Strongly recommending to hiring managers to make interview panels diverse.

« (Closely monitoring the ethnicity split at application as well as at various stages within the assessment and
selection pipeline (particularly for early careers) to ensure we are attracting from as wide a talent pool as
possible,

= Publishing key policies on our careers website, including our maternity leave policy, flexible working
policy, shared parental leave policy and transgender and transition palicy.

For more information please see our Ethinacity Pay Gap Report 2023,
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ANGLIAN WATER PERFROMANCE COMMITMENTS DASHBOARD

To measure our progress towards our 2020-2025 outcomes, we set targets as part of our business planning
process with our regulator Ofwat.

Known as Performance Commitments, these are summarised below, with information on how we monitar our
progress, how we've performed this year, and whether rewards or penalties are attached to each
commitment. Most common Performance Commitment Levels (PCL) are the same for companies whose
systems are mainly in England or in Wales.

This year iz the fourth of our current five-year regulatory cycle (AMPT). While we've achieved strong
pesformance in many areas, we have not reached our targets across all PCLs. An explanation is given in each
saction. Our het outcome for 2023/24 is -£37.57 million. We recefved £4.58 million® in reward and £42.15
million™® penalties.

Despite the many challenges we've faced this year, we've seen strong performance acrass a number of areas,
most notably, CMeX, PSR and Water Quality Contacts, We've continued to invest in what matiers maost to our
customers, drinking water quality, alongside future-proofing water supplies to protact the environment;
Creating our vast intsrconnecting network of pipelings through our Strategic Interconnector Grid, preparing for
WO new reservoirsand making progress to Get River Positive.

Furthermore, we are making extensive use of new monitoring technologies 1o help us manage our assets and
asset performance. We are seeing sustainable improvements as a result. Harmessing data on our performance
also gives us richer insights, enabling us to prevent potential issues, Greater insight is enabling us to make
more effective interventions, with clear benefits to customers and the environment.

* Plegse nose. the tots i cloutimed m 200718 pricss andl coes me mgtch the jum of the indindusl Perfiormancs Commnment rewands and penalils
T rouiag
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Supply meets demand
What are we How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current Current | Reward or
measuring? year year penalty
(2022/23) performance | target outcome
(2023/24) (2023/23) | for
2023/24
Leakage A percentage reduction in 6.2% 6.2% 12.4% -£3.40
the amount of water lost to reduction reduction | reduction million
leakage across the region in (against & lagainsta | [3gainst a
megalitres per day (MI/d). 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20
COmne megalitre is a milllon baseling) bazaline baseline)
litres,
Par capita A percentage reduction In 25% 205 4.5% nfa
consumption {PCC) | the average water increase reduction | reduction
consumption per howsehold
per day for properties in our
region.
Smiart metering The number of smart water 5431686 B0&, 307 g77118 nfa
delivery mieters That are installed at
customer properties,
Internal The number of megalitres 6.5MI/d g.9mMifd omi/d nfa
Enterconnechor per day exira capacity
defivery deliverad to engure that
clistomers in the region
have sufficient water in the
future,
Etsham DPC nia nia n/fa nfa
{Underperformance)
Measures the progress in
implementing a direct
procurement for customers
proceds to support the
appointment of a
Eisham DPC competitively appointed nfa nfa nfa nfa
(Curperformance) provider o construct and
finance the Elsham
treatment works and
transfer scheme,
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Leakage: This year we achieved an in-year leakage result of 182.1 megalitres a day which saw our lowest
three-year rolling average ever recorded (2 6.2% reduction from the 200 7-2020 three-year baseline period). In
cabculating owr 2023/24, figures, we needed to make an adjustrment to our 2022/23 figures because of 3 minar
error in the coding we use 1o calculate non-household consumption, This means we've incurred an extra £1.9
millien penalty for year three [2022/23), We have notified Ofwat, and an adjustment has been made to our
penalty, which will be shared back with customers in next year's bills,

Per capita consumption; We achieved in-year performance of 132.0 litres per person per day, 3 reduction of
over & litres a day, compared to 2022/23 (138 4). This reduction is underpinned by our large scale roll owt of
Smart meters,

Smart metering delivery: We have a target to install over 1 million smart meters by the end of this AMP. We
fitted 262,621 srart meters in 2023,/24, This brings the total number of installations for the AMP to 806,307,
Iy Jume 2023 we were given funding to install a further 60,000 smart meters under Defra’s Accalerated
Infrastructure Delivery programme. Those smart meters are in addition to the numbers quoted above. We
plan o fit the additional 60,000 smart meters In 2024725,

Internal interconnector delivery: Timescales for the delivery of our Strategic Interconnector Grid, being
dediverad by our Stratsgic Pipeling alliance [SPA) are being rephased, A number of external factors have
worked against us: Covid-19, to the war in Ukraine, inflation, and more recently some of the wettest weather
on record. It will now be completed during the next AMP cycle, 2025-2030, rather than by the end of 2025, as
originally planned within the AMP7 Performance Commitment. Delivery by the end of the current AMP was a
hugely ambitious timeframe for such a compdex and important infrastructure programme.

Delighted customers
What are we | How are we Prior year Current year | Current year Reward or penalty
measuring? | measuring it? performance | performance | target outcome for
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) 023/24

Cusipmer Customer survey 72.8/100, 71.5, putting This k= a £0.86 million
Measure of | conducted for Ofwat | puttingusin | usin 7 place comparative
Experience | called CmeX which 107 place friesure — we
[CrrekX) assesses the aim ko perfarm

expertence the In the top 25%

COMmpany provides of companies

1o residential (&% position or

customers. higher)
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What are we
measuring?

Hiowe are we

measuring it?

Prior year
performance
(2022/23)

Current year

performance
(2023/24)

Current year

target
[2023/24)

Reward or penatty
outcome for
2023424

Developer
Measure of
Experience
(Ermex)

Survey conducted
for Ofwat calied
DmeX which
atsesses the
experience the
COMPany provides
o developer
SErVices customers
who build new
homes,

87.3/100,
putting us in
5 place

91,22, putting
us In 4 place

Thisis a
comparative
IMESSWE — We
aim o perform
in the top 25%
of companies
(47 position or

higher)

£2.15 million

Properties at
risk of
persistant
|ow pressure

Number of
properties that are
affectod by
persistent low
pressure. Persistent
fow water pressure
i an angoing law
pressure problem
rather than short-
term low pressure
caused by a water
mains burst or
unusual peak in
demand for water,

£0.54 million

Internal
SEWET
floading

The number of
tirnes that
properties are
flooded internally
per 10 000
CLStamser
connections to the
Sewer,

169

.27

-£9.08 million

External
SEWET
flooding

The number of
times that

4,673

6,564

4,041

-£9.38 million
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What are we | How are we Prior year Current year | Current year Reward or penalty
measuring? | measuring it? performance | performance | target outcome for
(202223) | (203/20) | (2023/24) 2023/24
properiies arg
flooded externally.
Mon- This measure 86.7 B13 78.0 nfa
household | assesses the service
retailer provided by the
satisfaction | company to non-
household retailers.
Water Average langth of 14m 35% 8m 8s Sm 23¢ =430 million
supply supply Interruptions
Interruptions | per praperty (for
interruptions over 3
hours).

Customer Measure of Experience (Cme)): 'We finished 7 in the industry, and 57 in the Water and Sewerage
Companies tabde (WaSCs]. We're one of only a small handful of companies bucking the trend and Improving
our scores by sharing our stores around reducing pollutions and focusing on the emaronrment.

Developer Measure of Experience [DmeX): With our improving qualitative score and our quantitative
performance contributing 1o our overall score, we ended the year in 4% place, our highest year end position
this AMP. The score is 8 significant improvement on 2022/23, jumping up five places and putting us in reward,
Dur success this year can be put down to collaboration across each of our workstreams, building new and
developing existing relationships, sharing best practice and technical experience with the customer at the

forefrant.

Properties at risk of persistent low pressure: The number of reportable properties on the register is 65, This is
well within the PCL of 150 properties. During the year, 19 properties were added to the register and we

removed 7 properties as a result of capital works, such as instaliing a booster pump or switching the supplying
for a property to a different 2one.

Internal and External Sewer flooding: Saturated ground and high ground water levels atross our region has
mieznt that high volumes of excess ralnwater was carmed into already full-to-bursting rivers, ditches and
storage, resulting in widespread and prolonged internal and external flooding. Throughout this year, we've
doubled the operstions of our pumping stations compared to usual levels to manage excess rainwater, And, a5
we head into the last year of this AMP, we have developed 3 new, multi-agency approach 1o prevent flooding

impacts.
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Non-household retailer satisfaction: This year we have outperformed our Retailer Satisfaction commitmant.
The metric is comprised of three parts. The first, the Retailer Net Promotor Score, is 2 64 point positive rating.
The second, Market Performance Standards, measures how quickly and accurately we update our data In the
MNon Household Market, and we achieved 3 score of 97 45%, Fnally, for Operational Performance Standards,
we achieved a score of 82.52%. This is our most challenging area of performance, and we are focusing effors
ta improve all metering related activities,

Water supply interruptions: Two significant events in Dctober resulted in us being off tarnget, with customers
being off water for an average time of 9 minutes 8 seconds. In October, Storm Babet brought heawvy rains and
flooding to parts of Suffolk and Morfoll. During Storm Babet, one event was a result of one of our asaets being
flooded during the storm. Aside from these events, we maintained a steady service of supply to customers,
staying close to our Ofwat target throughout the year. We are committed to delivering a good service for our
customers and are investing in technology to monitor pressure on our network so we can pinpoint and reduce

risk,
Fair charges, fair retums
What arewe | How are we measuringit? | Prioryear | Currentyear | Current year | Reward or
measuring? . performance | performance | target penalty
| (2022/23) | (a023/24) | (2023/24) | outcome for
202324
Managing void | The percentage of 0.10 (.08 0.30 E£1.04 milfion
properties properties that are falsaly
identified as void
properties. This means that
they are pccupied and
should be charged by the
coMmpany.
Value for A survey of customers by B1% agree | 779 agree 87% agree nfa
money the Consumer Councl for e we provide | we provide
Water about the value provide value for good
far money provided by the value for money value for
Company. money MOneY

Managing void properties: This is the percentage of properties that are falsely ldentified as void properties.
This means that they are occupied and should be charged. The Ofwat target was 0.30% and we out-turned at
0.08%, resulting in & reward of £1 million. The performance shows the continuing impact of the considerabls
work we put in to identify false voids. Activities in the year have included reviewing all properties void for
more than four months, reviewing water consumption data, sharing data with water only companies, using
bureau and land registry data, making doorstep visits and sending letters and emails.
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Valoe for money: We have scored highest in the industry for vaiue for monay for our sewerage sarvice, with
78% of customers agreaing that they were “satlsfled” or “very satisfled” when askad by Consumer Council for
Water about our services. We also scored highly for our water services with our score of 76% being only one
off the top score of 77% and ahead of the industry average of B9%. Dur welghted average score |5 T7%.
Despite the overall downward trend across the industry, we have maintzined 3 strong position as we regularly
engage with customers on value for money,

Safe, clean water
What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prior year Current year | Current Reward ar
measuring? | performance = performance year target | penalty
| (2022/23) | (2023/24) | (2023/24) | outcome for
2023/24

Water quality | This is the key measure used 2.92 357 0.000 -£1.63 million
(Compliance by the Drinking Water
Risk index) Inspectorate to determine

our overall compliance with

stringent regulatory drinking

WaLer stardards,
Water quality | The number of complaints 1.01 0.26 0,85 -£0.03 million
cOntacts from customiers sbout

water guality per thousand

people served,
Event Risk This assessment looks at the 2,771 109.302 15.000 nfa
Index Company’s approach to risk

mitigation of water quality

events.,

Water quality contacts: This year, we built on our best-ever ‘acceptability’ score, achieving 0.86, narrowly
missing our 0.85 target. Acceptability scores are based on the number of customer contacts about the
appearance, taste or smedl of their water per thousand people served. This remains our best performance to
date and is indicative of an improving trend over the past decade.

Compliance Risk Index: Compliance Risk Index: Our Compliance Risk index [CRI} score demonsirates how we
manage water gquality. Our CRI score s 3.57. This is higher than ouwr 2022 score of 2.83, and misses the Ofwat
target of 1.5, but, compares favourably to other water companies. CRI was impacted in 2023 by an increased
nurnber of water guality exceedances from our storage points and water treatment works in comparison 1o
2022 We have instigated a programme that i aimed to reduce the number of water guality exceedances from
our assets. We comply with very strict regulations on drinkdng water quality, which means we report gach of
thase failures o the DWI. Wi also carry out full investigations on each falling sample. Dverall, 99,95% of our
samphes passed this year.
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Event Risk Index: ERI scores consider the type of avent, the population impacted and the duration of the
event. Our ERI score this year s 109 — whilz this did not maet Ofwat's target of 15, and is an increase from
our 2022 ERI score of 2.77, It was below the median for the industry and the second lowest scare for any of
the large water and wastewater companies. The Increase from 2022 was impacted by a single, short-lived
event associated with our Heigham \Water Treatment Works in Norwich following heavy rainfall, While all
water quality samples were satisfactory, a number of customers noticed a very slight discolouration 1o their
water, particularly in their baths. As a result of this event, we have made changes to the way we abstract
water from the nearby River Wensum during heavy rainfall to ensure that the event doesn't happen again,

Resilient business
What are we | How are we measuring it? illrlnrmr Current year | Current Reward or
measuring? | performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/14) outcome for
202324
Risk of severe | The percentage of 5.2% 5.2% 21.8% n/a
restrictions in | properties at risk of service
drought restrictions in the event of a
1-in-200-year drought.
Risk of sewer | The percentage of 0.74% 0.75% 9.75% n'a
fiooding ina properties that we serve
S10T that are at rick of sewer
flooding during an extreme
wel weather event.
Percentage of | Percentage of population 22.3% 22.3% 20.0% £0
population served by a single supply
supplied by system. Our goal is to
single supply | increase the number of
Sys1Em properties supplied by more
than one water treatment
works so that if something
E0ES Wrong at one works,
ouf custorners’ water
supplies are protected.
Cyber security | Percentage of risks Ongoing Ongoing 100% by ffa
mitigated against the cyber 2025
thraat to operational
technology (OT) and to
comply With the network
and information systems
{NI5) regulations.
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Risk of severe restrictions in drought: The percentage of the population we serve that would experience
severe supply restrictions during a drought is 5.2%, based on 25-year prediction modelling. This result has not

changed from the previous year,

Risk of sewer flooding in a storm: This measure is based on modelling that pradices the lkelihood of flooding
in our network in @ 1-in-50 year storm. Targetad investment on assets such as storm tanks and sustainable
drainage solutions helps to improve sewer capacity.

Percentage of population supplied by a single supply system: This measure is linked to the delivery of our
Strategic Interconnector Grid which, on completion, will provide more than B0% of customers with a dual
supphy system, We have reprofiled delivery based on supply chain issues earlier in the AMP, with the project
now expected to complete in AMPS (2025-2030).

Cyber secority: Dur cyber security performance commitment is not assessed until 2024725, We have
eonducted an estate-wide rick assessment acoross 338 Water Supply sites to determing areas of high risk. The
risk assessment has identified one water system containing 19 operational sites with 2 higher risk profile and
these sites are to be remediated via our AMPT NIS Compliance Programme. The Compliance Programme's
structure and governance have been iImplemented, with site surveys and design efforts focusing on the high-
risk simes currently in progress, We will defiver remediation to all high-risk sites by the end of AMPT,
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A Smaller footprint
What are we | How are we measuring it? | Prioryear | Current year | Current Reward or
measuring? | performance | performance | year target | penalty
(2022423) | (2023/24) | (2023/24) | outcome for
023/2a

Operationa Percentage reduction in 6.0% -1.6% B nfa
carbon carbon emissons from day-

to-day operations compared

1o a 201920 baseline.
Capital carbon | Percentage reduction in 83.7% B4, 2% 64,05 nfa

carbon emissions from
COnSTrUCTIon acTiity
measured in tonnes of CO,
equivalent compared 1o 3
2010 baseline.

Operational carbon: Our operational carbon target of 108 reduction ks phased over the AMP. This year we
have increased by 1.6% against our targer. As more [ange consumers have chosen to procure renewables
directly, the proportion of renewables remalning in the "residual’ grid mix for standard grid electricity has
declined. This increases the carbon emisshons assoclated with all the grid electricity we consume that isn't
directly from renewables. it's important to emphasise that, while the emissions from standard grid electricity
{5 outside of our control, we have increased our consumption from renewable energy from 25% to 28%. We
continue to switch to more renewables - with an aim to power 45% of our electricity requirement from

renewable sources by 2025,
Flourishing environment
What are we | How are we measuring it? 1 Prior year Current year | Current year | Reward or
mizasuring? ': performance | performance | target penalty
(2022/23) | (2023/24) | (2023/23) | outcome for
2023/24
Pollution Number of pollution 33.36 40.16* 2240 -£7.90 million
incidents incidents due to escapes
fram our sewerage network
per 10,000 km of sewer
netwark.
Bathing Number of recognised 32 9 35 nfa
waters bathing waters in our region
attaining rated ‘Excellent’ (based on
‘Excellent’ standards set by the
status European Bathing Water
Directhe).
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What arewe | How are we measuring it? ihhrfmr Current year | Current year | Reward or
measuring? | performance | performance | target penalty

(2022/23) | (2023/24) | (2023/24) | outcome for
2023/24
Abstraction An incentive to reduce the 17 Ml 29 mi -7 mi -£0.06 million
Incentive warer we take from
Mechanism sensitive rivers or wetlands
during very dry periods.
WINEP The progress of the 1,399 1,533* 1577 -£0,62 million
Company in delivering its
WINEP agreed Water Industry Mot met Not met Met n/a
delivery National Environment
Programme (WINEP)
schemes in @ timely manner.
Matural capital | This measures progress Fall Fail O track nfa
towards meeting
improvements in natural

capital within our region

Regional This measures progress On track On track O track n/a
collaboration | towards the development of

a regional approach to
assessing and considering

natural capital,
Sludge This measures progress I O 0.0 1005 by n/a
treatment towards defivering 2025
capacity additional sludge treatment

Capacity.

Pollution incidents®: In 2023, we had 40 pollutions per 10,000km of sewer network, We are disappointed with
our performance 3 it does not reflect the hard work taking place across the business, The investment and
action taken in line with our Pollution Incident Reduction Plan are paying of: our lead measures on pollutions
and spills are showing improvements,

Bathing waters attaining 'Excellent’ status: There are currently 51 designated bathing sites across the Anglian
Water region. In 2023, 30 of our bathing waters attained ‘Excellent’ status, compared to 32 in 2022. Four
beaches moved from Excellent to Good, We have investigated the reasons behind dedining water quality and
we are working with Local Authorities and the Environment Agency to better understand these reasons and
where future improvements can be made. Where bathing water guality has been impacted by spills from our
acsets this year, a result of the prolenged wet weather, we will prioritise WINEP spill reduction schemes in
these areas (o make improvemeants,

® At the tme af repodting, thess figures are provisionel and swaiting confirmation lrom the Enviranmant Agancy and the Drinking
Watsr Inspactorats
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Water Industry Mational Environment Programme (WINEP): Since 2020, we have deliversd 1,533 ohbligations
throwgh WINEP. Dur PCL is based on figures ariginally proposed in 2019, which have since been reprofiled.
Against the revised profile agreed for 2023/24 we missed three schemes, which, although physically deliverad,
did nat pass Environment Agency inspections due to aperational [ssues, These Bsuss have now hesan resalved,
Our focus over the next twelve months i to conclude our WINEP obiligations for AMPT. We will conclude
almast 300 obligations, the majority of which relate to sustainable abstraction and reducing nutrients in the
wiater we returm 1o the environment.

Abstraction Incentive Mechanism: In 2023/24 we have had limited opportunities for active Abstraction
Incentive Mechanism management due to operational iszues, owing to the high rainfall during 2023.

Sludge treatment capacity: We are enhancing our capacity to treat bioresources and have planned a scheme

tor do so at Whitlingham Sludge Treatment Centre near Norwich. Designs are complete and work has started
on site. The schame B scheduled to be complete by March 2025,

Matural capital: The Natural Capital impact PCL captures the improvements we have made through four sub-
measures, The ground water quality, surface water guality and blodiversity sub-measures are all on-track but
the water quantity sub-measure remains behind target. This is due to the ongoing impact of the Covid-19

pandemic on demand. All sub-measures must be on track to meet the PCL

Positive impact on communities
What are we | How are we measuring it? Prioe year Current year Current Reward
measuring? performance | performance year target | or
(2022/23) (2023/24) (2023/24) | penalty
outcome
for
2023/24
Priority The percentage of customers 11.4% reach 12.7% reach B.1% reach nfa
seryices for recorded as requiring priority | 62.4% actual | 56.2% actual | 35% actual
customers in | services due to being contact contact contact
wulnerable in vulnerable circumstances 100% 95.9% 90%
circumstances. | and the percentage of people attempted aftermpted atternpted
contacied 1o ensure comiact COnTAcT CONESCT
records are kept up to date.
Customers Percentage of customens B1.8% 63.4% B1.0% na
aware of the | made aware of our Priority
PSR Services Register (PSR)
and how they can benefit
from being on it
Helping those | The number of customars who 344 483 389,371 286,618 nfa
struggling to | are struggling 1o pay their
pay water bili and who receive
financial support through one
of the Company’s financial
SUpport schemes.
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What arewe | How are we measuring it? Prior year | Current year Current Reward
measuring? performance | performance year target | or
{2022/23) | (2023/29) (2023/24) | penalty
outoome
for
202324
Comminity The percentage incréase in 10.4% Bl.a% 3.5% n/a
investment COMMLAITY InvesIiment
programmes through which
the Company adds sodal value
1o fs communities (compared
to 2020,/21).
Customer The improvement in Company 009 0.08 003 nfa
trust score for a survey of
customers by the Consumaer
Council for Water about the
trust that custonsers place in
the Company.
BSI Standard | To maintain certification for Maintained Maintained Maintained nfa
for Inclusive the British Standard for
Service Inclusive Service Provision
{BS 183477).

Priority services for customers in vulnerable circumstances: We are significantly shead of target on all areas
relating to our support for vulnerable custormers, including, most notably, take-up of our Priority Services
Reglster, which has already met the full AMP target. 12, 7% of customers are signed-up to the PSR against a
national average of 5-6%.

Customers aware of the PSR: This year we exceeded our end of year performance with 63.4% of customers
aware of priority services compared 10 owr target of 61%. This 5 a result of our extensive customer
engagement strategy and proactive signposting of priority senvices.

Helping those struggling to pay: This year we exceeded our target of 296,618 by over 90,000, providing
financial support to 389,371 customers.

Community investment: This year there was a B1.4% increase in the number of peaple we directly reached or
supported through our community immstment activities (compared to 2020/21) which add social value to aur
communities. We have exceeded our target of 3.5%. In total, an estimated 51,826 people were directly
reached or supported by Anglian Water and our Alkance partners.

Customer Trust: Levels of customer trust in water companies fell in 2023, However, trust in Angllan Water was
higher than the average for the industry, and we have outperformed this year's PCL.

Partnership working on pluvial and fluvial flood risk: This PCL encourages us to work with partner
organisations to protect our waste water treatment sites and water recycling network from pluvial, fluvial and
coastal flooding. Our PCL = to complete 92 schemes by the end of 2024/25. We completed 12 schemes in
2023/24, which brings our total number of completed schemes for the AMP to 61
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BSI Standard for iInclusive Service: This year we have maintained our certification for inclusive service by
achieving the mare stretching interrational standard (IS0}, which has replaced the British standard (BS1).

Investing for tomormow
What are we | How are we measuring it? ‘llrh:wmr Current year | Carrent Reward or
measuring? | performance | performance | year target | penalty
(#022/23) {2023/24) (2023/24) | outcome for
2023f14

Mains repairs | Number of repairs made to 173.2 1230 134.2 £0

water mains per 1,000 km

of total water mains.
Unplanned Percentage of maxirmiim 1.91% 2.05% 2.34% £0
outage water treatment works

output unavailabie during

the year.
Sewer Number of sewer collapses 5149 543 E.50 £0
collapses per 1,000 km of sewers.
Treatrment Percentage of water and 98.65 98.4%" 1005 -£0.75 million
works sewage treatment warks
compliance meeting permits for the

quality of water discharged

1o the environment.
Reactive Reactive bursts are those G140 3444 3,063 nfa
mains bursts | that are identified and

reported by a customer or

third party before

they are identified by the

Company.

* &t the tims of reporting, thess figures are provisionsl and swaiting confirmation from the Environmant &gency and ths Drnking

‘Water inzpectaorate.

Mains repair and reactive mains bursts: We have improved our performance against this measure this year,

Sewer collapses: There were 308 sewer collapses in 2023/24 comparad 10 259 in 2022/23. This measure also
inchudes 114 reactive burst rising mains (which has reduced compared to 2022/23). This brings the total for
thia year to 422, which for the PCL, is divided by the totsl length of sewer (77,780km), resulting in a rate of
5.43, This is an increase in total compared to 2022/23. However, we remain within target. The decrease in
burst rising mains this year is due to our proactive sewer monitoring alerts within our network, which inform
us of rising mains that are operating under higher than normal pressure and allow us reduce the pressure

before they burst.
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Treatment works compliance®: Our compliance was 98 4% in 2023 compared to 98.6% in 2023, This &
dlassified as Amber in the EPA, and continues to be a significant area of focus. [n 2022 we had 12 failing works
and in 2023 we had 13, with prolonged wet weather putting pressure on our systems at the end of the year.

Unplanned outages: Our unplanned outage figure showed 3 small increase compared 10 2022-23 (1.91%). OF
the 38 contributing events, three contributed aver half the score, & number of capital investments have been
completed in that time which will reduce the number of future outages.

"At the tima of reporting, these figures are provisicnal end swaiting coofirmation from the Ensiranment Agency and the Drnking
Warsr inzpemorate

Approval of the Strategic Repart
This Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signed on its behalf by

Claire RusseH
Cormpany Secretary
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Group income statement
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Wear Taar
ended #ndsd
31 March 31 March
e Pl P
Notes £m Em
4 fewenue L676.1 15496
Othar operating Income 158 160
5 Operating coss
Operating cod1s pefore depraciation, smormsation and loss slowsnce for
expected credit losses {8481} (F35.4)
Depredation and amortisation [391.8) [38L7) |
Loss aflowance for sxpactad credit losses (38.7) (30.2) |
Totaf operating costs [1,278.6) {L147.3)
Operating profit I TEE T
6  Finanice cosls (6933} [E38.8)
& FAnanca incomée, including fair valoe gaing on dervative finandal ingtruments 2735 B
Ket finance costs (419.8) (149.7)
Share of profit/[loss) of joint ventures 14 (04
Profit before tay from continuing operations _
Frofit before fair value gains on gerivative financisl instruments® [ 2i09.0) [3rra) [
& Fair valua gaing on derivative financial Instrumaents | 2049 E433 |
{Loss|/profit before tax from continuing operations {4.1) 2681
T Texcharge 7.1} (E4.5)
|Loss}fprofit from continuing operations {112} X037
{Loss)fprofit for the year from continuing operations I_ﬁ.ij _2.03:'1' .

' Ag defined In note 29

Motes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Motes

23
a

{Loss)fprofitc for the year
Dther comprehensive [expense ] income

Items that will not be reclassified 1o ncome statement
Actuarial losses on retiremant benedit surphus
Income @y on items that will not be reclacsified

Ivems that may be reclassified subsequently 10 Income sTatement
{Losses)/gains on cash fow hedges récognised in equity
[Losses]/paing on cost of hadge relationships

Gains/Mlosses) on cash flow hedges transferrad to Income statement
Currency translation differences

Incomis tax an items that may be reciascified

Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive [expense]fincome for the year

Yemr Year
erided #ngad
31 March 31 March
2024 IR
Em il
{11.2) 2037
{28.5) [206.5)
71 _ R1.7
{11.4) (154.8
{36.5) IT8
[2.7) 18
33 (3L}
i0.4) o7
9 01
i5.4] [o.s)
{25.8) [155.3)
(28.0) e
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as at year ended 31 March 2024

Notes

fon-current assets

10 Goddwill

11 Other intangible assets

12 Property, plant and eguipment

i3 Investment properiies

14 Imvestments in joint ventures

18 Darwvative financldd instruments

a1 Retirement benefit surplus
Current assets
Inventoties

15 Trade and othar recemabies

14 Investments - cash depotits

16 Cash and cash equivatants

1%  Derivative financizsl instruments
Tatal assets
Current liabilities

17 Trade and other peyehbles
Currant tax Rbilithes

1B Borrowings

1% Dervative Tinancid Instrumsants
Provisions
Het current assets/[liabilites)
Non-current labilities

18  Borrowings

15 Dervative fingncizt instruments

it} Deferred tax llabiithes

2 Retirement bensfit deficit
Erowisiong
Total linbifities
et assets

Continued on the next poge.

A AL

31 March 31 March
2028 3033

Em £m
4458 445.8
259.4 1563
11,4169 10,706.2
34 16

14.6 112
2331 104 4
63.3 CERL
12,437.1 11 7105
28.2 378
657.4 E=
552.1 3167
505.4 S18.0
0.9 558
18440 1.517.2
14,2810 13,2217
{738.1) [700.3)
(0.1} 0.1
{555.5) {1,165.0
{92.5) (53.4)
5-2) [5.8]
{1.391.5) (1,524 6)
452.1 (407 4)
(9,785.1) [8,058.8)
{796.5) (B33 8
(1,402.5) (1,405.0)
130.9) {33.0)
(5.3} [5.8)
(12,020.3)  (10.396.2)
(13412.1) [123208)
868.9 806 5
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Ar At

31 March 31 March

2 pirri |

Notes . _Em £
Caplial and reserves

Share pfemism 1.096.2 10862

Retained earnings [143.4) [210.8)

23 Hedgmgresende 14.5 174

23 Costofhedzing reserde [0.4) 17

Transkation resemne Lé 10

Total equity B68.3 306.5

Motes 1 to 31 are an integral part of these financial statements,

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signad on its behalf by,

: ,1

Fﬂgf'g\lﬂr' .I"l Ir‘i"]":‘l &u..,._f‘:
Peter Simpson Anthony Donnclly

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Registerad in Jersey No, 94523
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as at 31 March 2024

Notes

14
15

17

Motes 1 1o 31 are an integral part of these financlal statements.

The Company had no profit in the year {2023. £91.8 million).

Mon-current assets
Dihar Invesimeanis
Trade and other receivables

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payabbed

Met current lisbifities
Total lisbilities

Miek assets

Capital and reserves

Share premium
Retained earmings

Total equity

AL AL
31 March 31 March
M4 L]
Em_ _Em
oh3.2 i3 .1
8.0 5480
_tame tnil
1.21).2 1.211.2
(0.1] (0:1)
[0.1) [6.1)
0.1) 0.4
{01} foLL)

L2111 12111

L0%6.2 10862
1149 1149

1.211.1 L2ill

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 July 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

ff;;,s..,,-..

Peter Simpson
Chief Executive

Registered in Jersey Mo, 94523

A ..

Anthony Donnelly
Chief Financial Officer
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Hotes

21

i3

3

1

23

13

i3

13

At 1 April 2022
Profit for the year

Other compfefensive
incoma/jexpanse )
Actuarial loszes on retirement
benelit surplus
Imcome {ax Charge on iTams
that will not be reclassified
Galns on cash flow hedges
Gaing on cost of hosge
refabionships
Amounts on hedging réserves
transferred to income
staternent
Deferred tan movement an
hadging resenaas
Cwrrency transiation differences

Total comprshensive
Incomalexpensa |

Dividends
At 31 March 2023

Lives fine the year

Crthar comprehansive

[expense |fincome
Actuarial losses on retitemeant
Banetit surplus
Ifcome 1ax charge on ems
thet will not be rectissified
Losses on cash flow hedges
Loeses on oAt of hedgs
refationships
Amounts on hedging resendet
transferred (o Infome
staterment
Deferred tex movement on
hedging resernes

Currancy translation differences

Total comprefrendive expense

At 31 March 2024

Cost of
Share Retained  Hedging  hedging  Transfation Totsl
premium  &arnings TRve resErye Feserie ity
£m £m £m Em £m £m
10962 (&7 8) 04 0% 13 G50.3
- 2637 - - - 203.7
- (2063 - - - [206.5)
= 517 s - - 51.7
- - 75 - - 7.a
- 18 - 1.3
- (31.1) {3L1)
- - 48] i0.4] - 0.2
- . = = & |'_'|-__]|' '.]‘T.
= (154 8) (1.8} 1£ i i) (155.3)
- 453 (1.6} 14 0.7 484
= (21 &) = = = [(G1.8)
10962 Ellﬂ.Ei iTE 1.7 20 a06.9
= (112§ - = - [11.2)
- [28.5) - - - [48.5]
S 71 i > - 11
. - (365! - - (36.5)
. %) X |
- - 113 - - 123
T 13 05 N 1.9
z . = = (] 0.4)
- (21.4) (2.6 [2.1] [04)  [26.8)
- [12.6) (2.8 {2.1) o4y (380
L0962 (243.4) 148 [04) L6  BERS
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for the year ended 31 March 2024

A1 April 2033
Erofit for the year

Dividends
At 31 March 2023

Profit for the year

At 31 March 2024

Share Rzmainad Towal
pramium BAIMENgY equity
Em £m _Em

1,096.2 1149 L2111
- 918 91.8

pennel; (518 19L.8)
10962 1148 1Mia
1.096.2 1149 L211.1



Anglian Water Group Limited
Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Hotes

16

Operating activities

Operating profit

Adjustments fas:

Dupraceation and amortifation

Sctets gdopted for £nil consideration

Profit on disposal of property, plant and eguiprgnt
Difference batween pendsion charge and cash
contributions

MNut movement In provisiont

Working capital

Increace in inventories

frncregss in lrade and ether recaivables
Incraase in trade and other payables™™
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes pakd

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Repayment of loang by joint venturad

Furchate of property, plant and equigment
Pufchase of intangible Zssets

Frocesds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

fnterest redaved

Davidends recelvad from siibsidianies
(Increase)/decrease in investments — cash deposits
Met cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Drebl isfus cogts pasd

fnterast paid on leases

Proceeds from amounts borrowed
Repaymant of amounts borrowaod
Repayment of principel on derivatives
fepaymant of principal on leases

Oaidends paid to owners of the parent

Met cash from/jused in) financing sctivithes

Net increasef[decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents st 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

i gy
Wear Yaar Year Yaagr
omded mndad ended prided
31 Mareh 31 Masen 31 Mareh 31 March
2004 2023 2034 023
Em £m im £m
4133 4183 . d
juLE 1817
[48.2] {4607 -
[L.5] (3.9} - -
[3.6) [28.9) 3 i
(1.8) 15 - -
fi.4) 4.0 . .
[65.5) [46.1) - -
506 g8
7457 7025 - -
[0.5) [0u6]
i1 Fois :
13 144 - 2
[843.3) {583 5}
(51.5) [75.8) =
15 44
54,9 241 - -
E = a18
(235.4) 1140 = E
(L172.1) {507 4) 918
{340.6) {3005}
[16.8) (2.4} - =
(L.1) (08} . =
1.471.0 1117E - -
[527.5) {1,005.8)
(11.5) .
(7.0] 64} - T
= (318} {918
51648 [259.9) - (18]
B7.4 (954} - &
518.0 6134 2 -
_B05.4 3180 T

MExciuding movament in capits! creditors which is preserted in invssting activities.
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b)

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below, Unbess otherwise stated, these policies have been consistently applied to all of the years
presented and are applicable to both Group and Company.

Basis of accounting

The Group and Company financial staternents have been prepared under international accounting
standards which are adopted for use within the United Kingdom by virtue of Chapter 2 or 3 of Part 2 of
the International Accounting Standards and European Public Limited-Liability Company (Amendment
etc.) {EU Exit] Regulations 2018, The Group financial statesnents have also been prepared in acoordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB and the Company financial
statements have also been prepared In accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards a3
issued by the 1458 and with the requirements of the Companies [Jersey) law 1991, The financial
statements hiave been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by financial assets and
financial liabilities (incduding derivative instruments) at fair value through profit and lass,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Although these
gstimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Adjusted profit before tax excludes the fair value gains and losses arising on derivative financial
instruments and energy derfvatives that the Group holds as economic hedges. These introduce volatility
into the accounts due to the present value of future cash flows, which management befieves is not
representative of the underlying operational performance of the business. Alternative performance
mieasures are defined in note 29,

Basis of preparation

The Group and Company financial statements comprise a consolidation of the financial statements of
the Comparny and all its subsidiary undertakings at 31 March. The results of companies acquired or
disposed of are consolidated from the effective date of acquisition or to the effective date of disposal.
Inter-compaty sales and profit are efiminated fully on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination & measured at fair value, which is caloutated as the
surm of the fair values, as at the acquisition date, of assets transferred by the Group and liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acguires in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-retated costs are recognised in profit or loss s incurred.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or kabifities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measurad at its
fair value, a5 at the acqulsition date, and induded a2 part of the consideration transferred in 2 business
combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that gualify as measurement period
adjustrnents are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill.

Measurement period adjustrments are adjustments that anse from additional information obtained
during the ‘measuremant period” {which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acguisition date.

When a business comblnation is achieved instages, the Group's pravioushy-held interests in the
acquired entity s remeasured [0 it aoguisiton date fair value and the resulting gain ar loss, if any, is
recognised in profit o loss, Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other cormprehensive income are redassified to profit or loss,
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of,

Going concerm
The Directors have undertaken a detailed review 1o assess the liguidity requirements of the Group
compared against the cash and borrowing facilitizs available 1o the Group, as detailed below,

Given the relative size and iImportance of Anglian Water Services Limited (AWS) 1o the Group, the
assessment initially focused on the going concern of AWS and is then updated to include wider Group
considerations, including the Anglian Venture Holdings businesses and its ability to support the Wave
joint venture if required.

The Directors have considered the potential impacts of the current market volatility and uncertainties
within the sector in relation to proposed PR24 Business Plan 1o Ofwat, and on-going investigations.

The base farecast, which has been updated for the latest internal and external information has besn
subjected to a range of severe but plausible downside scenarios as noted below. These forecasts include
the additional £350 milfion Totex over and above what was allowed by Ofwat.

Anglian Water Services Umited has a single debt platform (Sometimes known as a “commaon terms” or
"CTA" debt platform) that has been structured so a3 1o align with, and enhance, the regulatory
protections contained in the Water Industry Act 1991 and Anglian Water's Licence {an “Aligned Debt
Programme”], Aligned Debt Programmes operate on 2 single covenant package and shared security and
imtercreditor arrangement that binds all debt providers.

In addition, Osprey Acquisitions Limited also has 3 commaon terms debt platform similar to that at
Anglian Water Services Limited and operates a single set of covenants that appiies to all debt raised at
thizs level of the Group.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation |continued)

The CTA introduces two terms, a Trigger Event and an Event of Default. The intention of a Trigger Event
i that it is an early warning event designed to reinforce oredit worthiness and to protect the Company
and its finance creditors from an Event of Default accurring and consequently it is not considerad to be a
going concern event. It does not enable creditors to destabllise the Company through enforcing their
seCurity.

We have identified three stretehing scenarios to strets tect our base forecact. These scenanios, low,
medium and severs focus on the impact of the cost-of-ving crisis and higher unemployment, the
impacts of lower inflation and higher interest rates, as well as specific risks to the business, such as
cyber-atacks or increased costs/reduced revenue due 1o adverse weather events,

in assessing Going Concern the Directors have considered a number of perspectives, including liquidity
and debt covenants and tested these against both the base scenario and the three downside scenarios,

o Liquidity - the Group holds sufficient Hquidity 1o cover the going concarn period even under the
most severe downside scenario. There s no requirement for the business to raise further debt
it the perod and therefore the volatile market conditions have limited impact,

» Debt covenants — The business has significant headroom against Default Events (where EBITDA
to net interest cover ratio is kess than 2.0 or where net debt to RCV ratio is less than 95 per
centhunder its securitisod covenants with no plausible scenario identified that would cause an
Event of Default. Whilst undesirable, a Trigger Event would not impact on the going concern
assurption for the reasons noted below.

While certain worst-case scenarios indicate the potential for a Trigger Event, the Directors do not
consider this possibility to constitute a material uncertainty related to going concern. As noted, 3
Trigger Event is not considered a going concern event and whilst it would result in dividend lock-up
and prevent the business from raising new debt we have sufficient liguidity during the going concern
period in this event even when induding planned debt repayments.

In October the business submitted its PR24 Business Plan for consideration by Gfwat. Whilst this falis
outside of the going concern period it is worth noting that the plan submitted is fimanceable and
financially resifient to downside stress tests performed.

In addition to the impact of cument volatility in debt markets on interest rates the Directors have
considered tha ability of the Company to ratse debt and note that there is no requirement to do 2o in
the Going Concern period.

Based on the above, the Directors believe that the business has sufficient liquidity 1o meet its Habilities
as they fall due,

For these reasons, the Directors befieve it appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial stalements.
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Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation |continued)
New Standards, amendments and interpretations effective or adopted for the first time this period

The Group has not early adopted amy standard, interprefation of amendment that has been Bsued but is
not yet effective.
Foreign currencies

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented In British pound sterling, which |5 also the
perent company’s Tunctional currency. Individual transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into local currency at the actual exchangs rates ruling at the dates of the ransactions.
Muonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency a1
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Profits and losses on both individual foreign currency
tramsactions during the period and monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the income
statement except for transactions where hedge accounting has been applied in accordance with IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’.

On consolidation, the income statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period and the balance sheets at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The exchange differences arising as a restilt of translating income statements at average rates and
restating cpening net assets at closing rates are taken to the translation reserve.

Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported in a8 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker, The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating

resourees and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to reflect the transfer of goods or services to customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
Services.

Principal source of income

The Group's principal source of income is from customers in respect of the provision of water and water

recycling services within Anglian Water, the Group’s regulated water and sewerage company, at a price
determined annually by its regulatory tariffc,

The majority of Anglian Water's household custorners have meters, but there are a significant number
whao are not metered. This is refevant to how the Group recognises the income over the year, since the
unmeasured custormers are billed at a flat rate based on the rateable value of the property, which
reflects their right to an angoing supply of water, while measured customers are bifled in line with their
usage, which tends to be seasonal,
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Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition { continued)

Under IFRS 15, the performance obligation for measured customers has been assessed as the provision
of water and sewerage services, and the performance obligation is met as water is supplied to the
property. Accordingly, for the variable element, revenue is recognised as water is supplied, based on
volurmes supplied at the relevant reporting date.

Retated non-volumetric, or standing, charges reflect our obligation to stand-ready to deliver water, as is
the case with unmeasured supply (see below)and is accounted for accordingly.

in respect of unrmeasured customers, the performance obdigation has been assessed as standing ready
10 provide water and sewerage services when required by our customers, and accordingly revenue is
recognised under IFRS 15 as the stand-ready obligation is fulfilled over time. Accordingly, revenue from
unmeasured customers s recognisad on a Time basis under IFRS 15.

Non-household revenue is charged and recognised on the basis of volumes supplied, based on data
submitted by the market operator,

Secondary source of income

A secondary source of income for Anglian Water is from grants and contributions in respect of new
connections for water and/or sewerage services. Judgement is required when applying [FRS 15 ‘Revenue
from contracts with customers’ in determining the customer and the performance obligations to that
eustomer. Spedfically, jJudgement is required as to whether the income Is (n relation to the prevision of
the connection to the Grouwp’s infrastructure, allowing the completion of the construction of the
property and It 1o be approved for sale, or to facllitate the ongoing provision of water and wastewater
services to the properties in guestion, Please see note 2 for further detalls.

The significant components of grants and contributions, and thelr treatment, are a5 follows:

| New connection charges
The Group considers the performance obligation to be satisfied on making the connection. Income
for new connection charges 15 therefore recognised as the connection is completed.

i Self-lay, requisitions and adopiion fees
Revenue recogniticn is consistent with new connection charges [see () above).

il Farrvalue of ausers adopred for £nll consideration
These are principally sewers and pumping stations that 3 developer has constructed and then
contributed to the Group, on a £nil consideration basis, in exchange for being relieved of any future
liability, Income i§ recognised on adoption based on the fair value of the assel adopted.

v Infrostructure charges
Infrastructure charges are a developer’s contribution to fund network reinforcement by the Grougp,
While these charges are a contribution to reinfarcement of the network, they have to be paid by the
developer as a condition of obtaining connection to the network and, as such, the Group's
performance obligation is satisfied by making the connection. As such, the income is recognised as
the connection is made.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition {continued)

v Diversions
Diversions arise where a highways agency, or other authority, reimburses the Group for the majority
of the costs incurred in diverting ascets that represent an obstruction to the construction or upgrade

of roads and rallway lines. There is no performance obligation to the agency/authority beyond
cofmpleting the diverson, therefore income 15 recognised immediately on completion.
Non-appointed activities
The Graup also provides additional services which are not categorised as a regulatory appointed
activity. These relate to non-water [ wastewater services and for use of land for water supply
beyond duties imposed by regulation. Acthities largely relate to the provision of property searchas,
referrals for connecting customers 1o insurance providers, processing of septic tank waste from
househobds not connected 1o main sewers and from the use of our reservoirs for recreational
attivity, Revenue is recognised in line with the delivery of each performance obligation whichis at a
point in ime as there & no ongoing obligation past the trarsaction date,

Other sources of revenue

i Other operating income
The principal sources of other operating income are from the generation of power, the sale of
biosolids to farms, rents received and other minor income associated with operating activities,

i Sendce confracts
Revenue from senvice contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion, a5 measured
by reference to services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

i Property development
Revenue from sale of development properties, which are not held for the long-term, is recorded
when a legally binding contract for the sale of the development has been entered into and legal
completion has taken place before the period-end. Revenue includes sales of directly held work in
progress and interests in spedal purpose subsidiaries and joint ventures if the substance of the
transaction iz the sale of the underlying property.

Research and development

Research expenditure is dharged to profit and loss in the period in which it i incurred, Expenditure
relating to development projects is capitalised as equipment or intangible assets and is written off over
the expected useful [ife of the asset.

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are one-off items that individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate need to be

disclosed by virtue of their size or nature to enable a reader of the financial statements to understand
the results for a particular period.
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Accounting policies (continued)

hj Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging operational expenses but before finance income and finance
st

i) Taxation

il

Current income tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign ta ks provided at amounts expected to be
paid {or recovered) using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
staternanits. The deferred income tax is hot accounted for if it arses from initial recognition of an asset
or leabdlity ina transaction, other than a business combinathon, that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred Income tax is determined using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and that are expected 1o apply when the related
deferred income Tax asset i realised or the deferred income tax labiimy i settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised, The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset 1o be recoverad.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate o items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a lizbility in the period in which they sre approved or committed. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

k) Intangible assets

i Goodwil
On the acquisition of 3 subsidiary undertaking, or business combination, fair values are attributed o
the net identifizble assets or liabilities acquired. Goodwill represents the difference between the fair
value of the purchaze consideration and the fair value of the net assets acquired. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.

i Right to operate intangible assets
The ‘right to operate’ intangible assets arose on acgquisithon of a subsidiary undertaking, representing
the fair value of the contracts acguired, and are shown at cost less subsequent amortisation and any
impairment. Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over the length of the individual
contracts to which the intangible assets relate,
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Accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets {continued)

iii - Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent computer software and internally ganerated assets which mainly
comprise capitalised development expenditure.

Other intangible assets are shown at cost less subseguent amortisation and any impairment.
Amortization of intangible assets is caleulated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lves,
which are primarily three 1o 10 years,

Software-as-a-Service {SaaS) arrangements

53a% arrangements ane service contracts providing the Group with the right 1o acces the doud
provider's application software over the contract period. Costs incurred to configure or customise, and
the ongoing fees to obtain access to the cloud provider's application software, are recognised as
operating expenses when the services are received.

Some of the costs incurred refate to the development of software code that enhances or modifies, or
ereates additionai capability o, existing on-premise systems and meats the definition of, and the
recognition criteria for, 2n intangible asset.

These costs are recognised as intangible software assets and amortised over the useful ife of the
software on a strajght-line basis. The useful lives of thete assets are reviewed at least at the end of each
financial year, and any change accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises:

s Land and buildings - comprising land and non-oparational buildings.

* Infrastructure assets — comprising a network of systems consisting of mains and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, sludge pipefines and seas outfall.

* Dperational assets - comprising structures at sites used for water and wastewater treatment,
pumnping or storage, where not classed as infrastructure, along with associated fived plant.

* \ehicles, mobile plant and equipment.

®#  Assels under construction.

Al property, plant and equipment |s shown at cost less subsequent depreciation and any Impairment
Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of the items.

Bomowing costs incurred for the construction of gualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
Bxpensed,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised a5 3 séparale assel, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the income statement as incurmed.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated, nor are assets in the course of construction until commissioned.
Depreciation of other assetsis calculated at rates expected to write off the cost less the estimated

residual value of the relevant assets on a straight-line basic over thelr estimated useful lives, which are
prirmarily as follows:

Non-aperatiohal buildings 15 - 80 years
Infrastructure assets —water 50 =120 years
Infrastructure assets - water recycling 50 - 160 years
Operational assets 30 - BO years
Fixed piant, including meters 12 - 40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and equipment 3-10vyears

hems of property, plant and equipment that have no further operational wse are treated as having been
decommissioned and are written off immediately to profit or loss, In addition, property, plant and
equipment is assessed for impairment, in accordance with 1AS 36 "Impalrment of Assets, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying value may not be recoverable

m) Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, bulldings are depreciated over their
wzedul [ife and land s held at cost and not depreciated.

Leased assels

The Group assesses whether a contract Is, or containg a lease, at nception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use assel and & corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements
in which it i the essee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 manths
o less) and leases of low value assets (defined as leases for individual assets with a value of less than
£5,000].

For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating sxpense on 3 straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed,

The lease fiability is inftizlly measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease fability is subsequently measured by increasing the carnying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liabdlity (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
bease payments made.
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Leased assets (ontinued)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-af-
use assel | whenever:

= the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the probability in exercise of
a purchase option, in which case the lease iability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate

s the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate, or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which case the lease [iability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payrments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to-a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)

s @ lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in

which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date the
underlying asset is available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease labilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
keace payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease ineentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lves of the assers.

Investments
Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment, if there

are any indications that the carmying value may not be recoverable. Investments in subsidiaries are
eliminated on conzolidation for the Group finandal statements.

Joind wenfires

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has the ability to exercise joint control,
astabliched by contractual agreement. The Group's interests in jointly controlled enterprises are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The consofidated financal statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and
expense of the jointly controdled enterprises on an equity accounting basis, from the date that joint
control cormmences until the date that joint control ceases

To the extent that joint ventures have net liabilites and a contractual commitment exists for the Group
to setthe those net labikities, the aggregate amount is added back 1o investments and offset firstly
against loans and trading balances with the joint venture, with any excess transferred (o provisions,
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o) Investments (continued)
Investments — cash deposits

After initial recognition at fair value, financal investrments are held at amortised cost. This is based on
the business' practice of acquiring financial assets to collect their contractual cash flows and the simple
nature of the investments made, which consist solely of principle payments and interest on the principle
outstanding.

pl Inventories

Raw materials are stated at cost hess any provision nécessary to recognise damage and ohsolescence.
Woark in progress isvalued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expensas,

g} Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are classified as at fair value
through profit and loss; fair value through other comprehensive income or amortised cost depending on
the Group's intentlon in regard to the collection of contractual cash flows {or sale) and whether the
financial assets cash flows relate solely to the payment of principal and interest on principal
putstanding.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model reguires the Group to account for expected credit osses and
changes in those expected cradit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in cradit risk since
initial recognition of the financial assets; thersfare, this is no longer dependent on the Group first
identifying & credit loss event, This requires consideration of 3 broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the espacted collactability of the future cash flows of
the instrument.

in applying this forward-ooking approach, a distinction i made between:

» where credit risk is low or has not increased significantly since recognition {Stage 1°);

s where it has increased significantly since Initial recognition {Stage 2'); and

o where the financial asset is credit impairad (Stage 3).
"12-month expected credit losses’ are recognlsed for Stage 1 while “Ifetime expected credit losses” are
recognised for Stage 2.

Expected credit lostes are defined a3 the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risk of
default occurring as the welghts.

A less allowance for full fetime ECL i required for 3 financial instrument if the credit risk on that
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial
instruments, ECLs are measured 3t an amaount equal to the 12-month ECL
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Accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

The Group manages credit risk exposures through a comprehensive counterparty credit risk policy. See
the financial instruments disclosures for further details.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at their transaction price,

The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables and records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit losses, These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the trade recefvable.

In calculating the expected loss, the Group applies expected recovery rates, based ok actual historical
cash performance and forward-looking information,

The Group assesses impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis and where they possess shared
credit risk characteristics they have been grouped; these groups are residential, non-household and
developer services, and other customers,

In particular, existing or forecast adverse changes in financial or economic conditions that are expectad
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initiai recognition.

Diabt is only written off after all available economic options for collecting the debt have been exhausted
and the debt has been deemed to be uncollectable or is subject to a settiement agreement ar
forgiveness scheme. This may be because it is, unrealistic, impractical, inefficient or uneconomic to
coflect the debi.

Situations whaera this may anse and where debt may be written off are as follows:

¢ ‘Where the customer has ahsconded and attempts to trace the customers whereahouts prove
unsuccessful;

*  Where the customer has died without leaving an estate or has left an insufficient estate on
which to levy execution;

o Where the debt is subject to insolvency proceedings and there are insufficient funds to settle
the debt;

*  ‘Where the value andfor age of debt make it uneconomic to pursue,

s  Where debt becomes statute barred,

We alsowrite off debts following a settlement arrangement on an outstanding balance and for efigible
customers on our debl forgiveness scheme [Back on Track) as part of payment matching.

Debt that is still subject to enforcement activity s not written off unless it becomes uneconomic to
pPUFSEE.
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1
5l

v)

Accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash eguivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid imvestments with ofiginal maturity dates of three months or less,
and outstanding bank cverdrafts.

Other short-term deposits with a tenor of more than three months are classified as imvestments — cash
depasits.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and accruaks principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled at the end of the following
manth. The Group has financial risk management policles in place to ensure that all payables are paid
within the pre-agreed credit terms,

Bomrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference batween the proceads (net of transaction costs)
and the redermnption value i recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
wslng the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instroments

Derivative instrumants are used for hedging purposes in line with the Group's risk management policy
and no speculative trading in financial instruments is undartaken,

Derivatives are initially recoprised at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair value, The method
of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
imstrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

A dertvative with a positive falr value & recognised as a financlal asset whereas a desivative with a
regathve fair value s recognised as a finandial liability. Dervatives are not offset in the financial
statements uniest the Group has both a lagally enforceshbis right and intention to offset. The impact of
the master netting agreements on the Group’s financial position (s disclosed in note 19, A dervative i
presented a5 a non-currént asset or & non-current Eability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is
mare than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled within 12 months, Other derivatives are
presentsd a8 current 5515 or current lizhilities.

The Group designates certaln dervatives as either a fair value or cash flow hedge in accordance with
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’, At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the
relationship betwesn the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with how the hedge aligns
with the Group's risk management strategy.
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v)

Accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments {(continued)

Furthermare, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting ehange< in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, which iz when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge
effectiveness requirements:

* there is an economic refationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

= the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that econamic
relationship; and

s the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the guantity of the
hedged item that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged iter.

The Group rebalances a hedging relationship in order to comriply with the hedge ratio requiremants
when necessary. In such cases discontinuation may apply to only part of the hedging relationship. For
example, the hedge ratio might be adjusted in such a way that some of the volume of the hedged item is
no longer part of 3 hedging relationship, hence hedge accounting is discontinued only for the volume of
the hedged item that ks no longer part of the hedging relationship.

In some hedge refationships, the Group excludes, from the designation, the currency basis spread of
cross currency hedging instruments. In such cases, the fair value change of the currency basis element of
the cross currency intersst rate swap is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the cost of hedging reserve, and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on a straight-fine basis over the
term of the hedging relationship, The treatment for the currenty basis element is optional and the
aption is applied on an individusl hedge relationship basis.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of 3 hybrid contract that also includes a non-derivative host
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in 2 way similar to 2 stand-
alone derivative.

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with a financial asset host within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured as either amortised cost
o fair value a5 appropriate,

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts with hosts that are not financial sssets within the scope of

IFRS 9 [e.g. financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a

derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

if the hybrid contract is a quoted financiad Rability, instead of separating the embedded derivative, the
Group generally designates the whole hybrid contract at FVTPL

An embedded derivative is presented as a non-current asset or non-current liahility if the remaining
maturity of the hybrid instrument to which the embedded derivative relates is mare than 12 months
and is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months,
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1.  Accounting policies (continued)
v] Derivative financial instruments (continued)

i

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and qualifigng as fair value hedges are racorded
in the income statement within fair yalue gaing/{losses) on derivative financial instruments’,
together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or [ability attributable to the hedged
risk.

If & fair vatue hedge is discontinued, the hedged item & not adjusted for any subseqguent movemeants
in the hedged risk. The cumulative amount of fair value adjustment on the hedge item at the point
of diseontinuation Is then amartised to profitor less over the remaining life of the original hedge
based on a recalculated effective interest rate.

If the hedged tem 15 derecognised, the unamortised fair value i recognised immediately in profit or
loxss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
curmulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with 3 comesponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and qualifying as cash
flow hedges is recognised In other comprehensive intome and accumulated In the ¢ash flow hedge
reserve, The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement within Tair value galns/{losses) on dervative financial instruments’,

Amaunts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the periods when the
hedged item will affect profit or loss (for example, in the periods when interest income or expense is
recognised, or when the forecast hedged cost takes place).

When a cash flow hedge is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time
remnains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in the
income staternent. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship {or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the gualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted
for prospectively.

Derivatives that do nat quolify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments, prindpally index-linked swaps, do not qualify for hedge accounting,
Such derivatives are ciassified at fair value through profit and loss, and changes in fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Accounting policies (continued)

w) Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as & result of a
past event for which itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the-amount can be reliably estimated. IF the offect of time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 3t a pre-tax rate that reflects the current
marke? assessments of the time value of money and the risks spedfic to the liability. When discounting
i used the incréase in the provision due 1o the passage of time i recognised as 3 finance cost.

Regarding onerous legse costs, 3 provision s made for the expected future costs associated 1o property
and other leases, not induded in the caloulation of the ROU asset, to the extent that these oosts are no
sxpectad o be of future benafit 1o the business, net of any recoveriss fram sub-leases,

Retirement benefit obligations

| Defined benefit schemes
For defined benefit schemes, pensdon scheme ascets are measiured at falr value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basks using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at the
current rate of return on a high-guality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency 1o the
liabilities, The current service cost, which is the increass in the present value of the liabilities of the
Group's defined benefit pension schemes expected to anss from employee service in the penod, is
charged to operating costs,

The net interest on the schemes’ net assets/(liabilities] is Included in other finance charges. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.,

Pension schemes’ surplusas, to the extent that they are considered recoverable, or deficits, are
recognised in full and presented on the face of the balance sheet.

i Defined contribution schemes
The cast of defined contribution schemes is charged to the income statement in the period in which
the contributions become payable.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judament

In preparing these consolidated financisl statements, the Directors have made judgements, estimates
arvd assumptions that affect the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 1, and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulits may differ
from these pstimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both the current and future periods.
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2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment (continued)

Climate change

A key consideration, but not one which the Group views as representing a material estimation
uncertainty or judgement, is climate change. The risks associated are long-term in nature, and whilst
they are likely to have a material Impact on future imvestment requirements, which will be fully funded
through the regulatary pricing structure, we deem there is no material impact on the carrying amount of
assets o [Ebilities recogniced in the financial statements. Based on the nature of this funding, and the
impact it may have on strategy, there is the potential for this to change future treatment, as such, we
are aware of the ever-changing risks associated to climate change and will continue 1o regularly assess
these risks against [udgements and estimates made in preparation of the Group's financial statements,

For further detail, see strategic ambitions, risk and Taskfarce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure
sections of the Annual Report,

Climate change is embedded into everything we do and the nisks associated are fully integrated in our
strategy and our long-term strategy effectively identifies, manages and mitigates these key risks.

i assecting the impact of dimate change we have considersd not just the impact on our asset base a5 2
result of no action but akso the impact of our 2030 net 2er0 route map has been incorporated into our
normal assessment of asset UEL Nothing has been identified within our net zero plan which has the
potential to impact on our existing assets base or their net book values, We have also s81 out the risks
posed by climate change and how we will address them in our latest Adaptation Repart,

As a result of the impact of severs weather events there is the risk of impairment to our assets, There
have been no such adjustments in the current financial year this therefore supporting our current UEL
palicy, This will be kept continuously under review to ensure appropriale treatment.

Area of Higher Risk

Infrastructure assets within property plant and equipment, specifically in relation to the water mains
network are at higher risk, These have 3 net book value of £3,126.9 million and an associated annusl
deprecistion charge of £33.9 milfion (£3,091.0 million, £32.8 million 31 March 2023). The impact of
dlimate change on these assets s highly dependent on several factors, including but not fimited to, the
geology of the region these assets go through and the material they are made from.

As part of our PR24 submission we have put forward an investment to renew 668km of climate
vulnerable mains in AMPS as part of a multi-AMP programme of removing 75% of our 8, 241km of
climate vulnerable main by 2060. The Group's intention is to accelerate the depreciation on these assets
once certainty is given over funding in the Final Determination. No adjustment has been made in the
current year financial statements as our current funding arrangements would be to repair rather than
replace, therefore recording such costs within the income statement.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment (continued)
a) Critical accounting judgments
The areas where the most critical judgements have been applied are as follows:

i

Capitalized expenditure

Additions 1o intangible assets, and to property, plant and eguipment, include £158.6 million (2023:
£132.5 million) of own work capitalised. ludgement is made to ensura thess costs relate to relevant
gssets and that future economic benefit will flow to the Group.

i Asset lives

The property, plant and equipment used in the Group i primarily the infrastructure and operational
aszets of the regulated water business. Infrastructure and eperational assets have estimated useful
lives of betwean 30 and 160 years and the depreciation charge is dearly sensitive to the lives
aliocated to the vanous Types of asser,

Acget [wes are reviewed regularly and changed where necessary 1o reflect the current view on their
remaining lives in light of technological change, prospective economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assets,

i Recognition of grants and contributions

gl Income from connections to the water and wastewoter network

The Group receives income from developers for new connections to the water and wastewater
networks either in the form of cash or infrastructure assets. The significant components are as
follonws:

1] New connection charges £13.4 million (2023: £14.2 million) - developer request for the
provision of new connections to the network.

2] Infrastructure charges £11.4 million (2023: £18.6 millfion) - developers' contribution to offsite
network reinforcement as permitted by the Water Industry Act.

3] Self-lay, requisitions and adoption fees £10.9 million {2023: £7.1 million) - providing the
developer with assktance in the construction of assets which emable the development to be
connacied to the network.

4) Adopted assets at nil consideration £48.2 million (2023: £46.0 million) ~ developer contribttes
assets on 3 nif consideration basis that have been installad on a new development.

Judgement is required when applying IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers’ in
determining the customer and the performance obligations to that customer. Specifically,
judgement 15 required as to whether the income 15 in relation to the provision of the connection to
the Group's infrastructure, allowing the comipletion of the construction of the property and it o be
approved for sale, or to facilitate the ongoing provision of water and wastewater services to the
properties in guestion.
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2. Keysources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment (continued)
a) Critical accounting judgements (continued)

For 1 and 2 above, all communication is between the Group and the developerfsite owner and the
agreamment is signed by said developer tite owner. The agreements sef out companents of the
charge and what is to be deliverad. Our conclusion is therefora that the developer is the customer
and our abligation to the developer is met when properties are connected to the network, and
thersfare this s considerad the relevant trigger for income recognition. We belisve the angoing
obligation o rmaintain the connection to the property IS 3 separate contract with the property
owner [in most cases the household customer) and separate from the contract with the developer,

For 3 and 4 it Is the developer who constructs and transfers the asset, and therefore similar 1o the
above, the agreament 15 between aurselves and the developer. The occupants of the properties
served are unaware of the transaction and indifferent to who i maintaining the asset, they receive
no benefit from the transaction.

Qur abligation is 1o inspect #nd adopt the assets. As such, the Group considers that the ongoing
obligation to maintain the assets i5  separate contract with the property owner (in most cases the
housshobd customer) and separate from the contract with the developer, Therefore, revenue from
these streams should be recognised at a point in time when the contract with the developer is
fulfitled; on connection, completion, or adoption.

Qwr obligations to maintain and reinforce our infrastructure do not constitute performance
obligations as these are imposed on us by the regulator. A performance obligation involves a
transfer of control of benefit from the seller to the customer, however, maintenance and
reinforcement of the infrastructure does not transfer any benefit outside of Anglian Water, because
the assets being maintained or reinforced are Anglian Water's own assets. The promise to the
customer is to provide water/sewerage services, the promise to the developer is to provide a
connection and there & no parformance obligation in respect of upkesp of the assets.

b} Diversions

The Group also recefves income from various authorities which is reimbursing the cost of diverting
assets due to them presenting an obstruction to the construction or upgrade of infrastructure such
at roads or rail. Diversion income within the year amounted to £13.9 million (2023: £6.8 million).

A similar revenue recognition approach is taken with diversions. The obligation here is that we divert
the sewer or water main at the request of the relevant authority or agency, and our obligation is
fully met once the diversion is completed, and therefore the contribution is fully recognised as
revenue st that point in thme
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2. Keysources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgment (continued)
b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

{

The kiy assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carmying amounts
of assets and liabilities withdn the next financial yoar, are described below. The Group based it
assumptions and estimates on parameters avallable when the consolidated financlal statements
wers prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due 1o market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour,

The: key areas involving estimation are outlined below.

Retirement benefiT actuariol assumplions

The Group operates 2 number of defined benefit schemes (which are dosed 1o new members and
future acoruals) as well as 3 defined contribution scheme and an unfunded arrangement for former
employees, Under 145 19 Employee Benefits’, the Group has recognised an actuarial loss of £28.5
million (2023: loss of £206.5 million) in respect of the defined benefit schemes which affects other
comprehensive income and net assets. The actuzrial valuation of the scheme lisbilities is reliznt on
key assumptions which include. the discount rate, salary inflation and life expectancy. The main
assumptions and associated sensitivities are set out in note 21 of the financial statements.

i Level 3 derivative financia! instruments

The company enters into a variety of derhvative financlal instruments to manage its exposure to
inflation and interest rate risk in line with the company’s risk management policy, Level 3 derivative
financial instruments comprise CPI-linked inflation swaps which are traded based on a spread to
liquid RP1 inflation markels often referred to as ‘the wedge'. &3 the market for CP1 swaps is still
developing, the wedge is not currently observable in a liguid market and as such these swaps have
been classified as level 3 instruments. The impact (on a post-tax basis) on the income statement of
reasonably possible changes in the CPl inflation rate assumptions used in valuing instruments
classified as level 3 can be found in note 19.

t} Other area involving estimation

i

Experted credit loss on trode recefvehies

IFRS 9 requires that historical loss rates are adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions.

The actual level of receivables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which
coukd impact operating results positively or negatively.

Management apply judgement when determining impact of the wider economy on future cash
coliection (macro-economic).
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2. Keysources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgments [continued)
c] Other area involving estimation (continued)

The extent to which future cash collections will be impacted by macro-economic trends is uncertain.
Management have estimated the potential impact through scenario analysic considering the
correlation between cath collection rates against a combination of unemployment rates and real
household disposable income (RHDI). Office for Budget Responsibility, Office of National Statistics
and Bank of England farecasts for these measures have then been utilised 1o forecast changes In
futwre cash collection rates.

The Bank of England forecast at February 2024 now predicts unemployment to peak at 5%, and The
Office for Budget Responsibility forecast for RHDI predicts a peak of £22.0k per person in the
madium term. Based on management’s calcufations, this is consistent with predictions at March
1023 the additional provision required against bills raised 1o the balance sheet date has remained
broadly the same, at £6.0m.

Sensitivity of +/- 1% for employment and £ 1k per person for RHDI has been modelled to assess the
impact on the figure. +/- 1 has been used as this reflects 5 reasonable market movement based on
historical and forecast data. Unemployment shows a range of -13.3 million to +8.0 million and RHDI
shows a range of -11.8 million to +13.8 million when applying the sensitivity. This therefore gives a
range from a low of £13.3 million to a high of £13.8 million.

i Memsured income acoruail

For Anglhian Water the measured income accrual Is an estimation of the amount of main water and
wastewater charges unbilled at the year end. The accrual is estimated using a defined methodaology
based upon weighted average water consumption by tarff, which is calculated based upon historical
billing information, The calculation is sensitive to estimated consumption for measured domestic
customers, For 202324 the average consumption for measured household customers was 96 cuble
meters, a fall or rise of two cubic metres (2 per cent) in sverage annual consumption will reduce or
increase revenue by approximarely £14.2 million respectively,
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3.

Segmental information
By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors consider the Board to be the Group's chief operating decision maker in relation to
segment reporting in accordance with IFRS B ‘Operating Segments’.

At 31 March 2024 the Group was organised into the following main businesses:

« Anglian Water - regulated water and water recyding senvices provider to customers in the East of
Engtand and Hartlepoal.

» Anglian Venture Holdings — comprising,
o Alpheus Environmental Limited — operates industrial and commercial wastewater treatment
works in the UK
o Celtic Anglian Water Limited — operates water and wastewater treatment works in the
Republic of Ireland,
Tide Services Limited = opérates property conveyancing, residential insurances and the
provision of web hosted information services for utilities on behalf of other group companies,
o Wave Ltd = a 50:50 joint venture with Morthumbrian Water Group Limited to provide water
services to non-housahold customers in the UK,
o OHL Property Holdings Limited - oversees the construction of a new water recycling centre;
and
o OHL Piper Limited — a property rental business,

[

* Head Office and Other - comprises head office and other Group functions, including Property.

Thiere has bean no change in the basis of segmentation or in the measuremeant of segmental profit or
boss in the year.

No operating segments have been aggregated 1o Torm the above reportahle operating segments.

The Directors consider the Board to be the Group's chief operating decision maker in relation to
segment reporting in accordance with IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, Segmental parformance is evaluatoed
based on both profit and loss and cash flows (see table below). Segmantal assets and labilithes do not
form part of the Board's performance assessmant and, as such. are not included in the segmental
information,

Inter-segment revenues and profits are fully eliminated on consofidation and are shown separately in
the falowing tables, The segment radult represants oparating profitc,
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1. Segmental information [continued)
By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2024

Anglian Hesd frrtar-
Angi@n Verturg Ciffice pagmert
Waner HolfEngs znd Other  efmnationz Total
im £m Em £m _Em
Hevenug
External 15166 491 03 - 1.676.1
Inter-segment - 0.8 - [10.8] .
L6266 &0.0 0.3 (10.8} L.676.1
SEgiment result
EBITDA Bi495% 13 22.1) . BG.1
Depreciation and amartisation (388 .5] EE o2 5 [3FL.B)
Sharg of [sint ventura's operating profit - 6.1 - - L |
4309 104 (21.9) ; 4194
Cazh Nows
Operating cash flow 7671 413 127.7] . T43.7
Capital gxpenditure [352.3) {1571 [0.1] . [592.9)
Hat debt exchiding derivative financial
instruments (6,976.3] 31 [22094) - 19.1832)
By class of business for the year ended 31 March 2023
Anglian Head kntars
Arglizn WERtuE Cffiee sagmient
Water Hoddingz and Othar  aliminatiors Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m
Rawanue
Extzrnal 14549 524 63 . 15495
inter-sagmant - k.5 _i% (2.4) .
L4343 LR b3 (24 13436
Sesment result
EBrToA 80238 81 {11.9) x E00.0
Depreciation and smortisation {379.1) {28} o2 . [3BL.7)
Share of joinf wenTure's oparating profit - 11 a - a1
4237 44 (11.7] § 4304
Cash flovr
Operating cash flow 7108 55 (13.9] - s
Capital expenditure 660,03 {03} 0.4 . [65%.5)
Met debt ewcluding denvative financial
instruments [5,247.9] {17] [1.135.5] - (B389.1)
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3.

Segmental information [continued)
By geographical segment

The peographic information below analyses the Group’s revenue, segment rasuft and non-current

assets by geographical location.

Revenue

United Kingdam
Other countries

SEEment resull
Unitied Kingdam
Other countrias

Man-turrent assets
United Kingdom
DTher countrias

Year Waar
endad gndsd
31 March 31 March
2024 2033
Em Em
1,640.0 1.510.1
361 ms
16761 15886
A417.7 4177
1.7 27
419.4 204
12,434.3 117041
B
12,437.1 11.710.5

In presenting the above information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of

CUSTONTISNS.
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3. Segmental information |continued)
Recondiliation of segmental information

Weur anr
endad andzd
31 March 31 Msrch
ngd piirs]
Em Em
Segment result 419.4 420 4
Finaneg costs 1693.3) (238 &)
Finamca income 2735 GES.1
Share af joint ventures Interast paysbie (2.6} (2.3
Share of joint ventures tax {1.1} 0.2
Loss betare tax from continuing operations i4.1) 268.2
Total operating cash Now by segment 743.7 7015
Ioare taogs paid (0.6) (0.8
Net cash flows Trom operating activities 7431 7018
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment 1943.3) [568.5)
Purchase of Intangible assets {531.5) (75.8)
Froceeds from disposal of property, plant and eguipment 1.8 44
Capital expenditure spend by segment {992.9) [B539)
Cash and Cash equivalents 6054 5180
Cash daposiis L5a.l 31167
Borrowings due within one year 1555.6) [1165.0)
Borrowings due aftar mora than ong year {9,785.1) (8,058 &)
Net debt by segment {9,183.2) [8.385.1)
Darivative financkal instruments ™ _ {633.9) [BET.T)
Net debt 19817.1) (90868

R Derpvative financial instruments exclude the net liabilities of £21.4 million | 2023; net astet of £0.7
million) in respect of the fair value of energy hedges, as these are not dassified as part of net dabt
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a.

Revenue
Year Year
ended anded
311 March 31 March
2004 2013
Em Em
Water and water recycling services
Angiian Water
Household - measured 5610 B399
Household - unmeasurad 139.E 1137
Non-household - measured LB 2606
Grantz and contribulions 97.B 1060
Other . #a w7
1626.6 145449
Angiian Venturg Holdings B0 B3.8
Inter-2egment elimingtions [10.8) L
1.675.8 1,546 3
Property revenue 0.3 i3
1.676.1 1,545 6

The Group derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services at &
paint in time in the above revenue categones, with the exception of Household - unmeasured which is
recorded on a straight-line basis throughout the year, see our accounting policy in note 1 for further
dataite,

Included in Grants and contributions are adopted assets of £48.2 million (2023: £46.0 million) which are
man-cash,

Other includes £25.6 million (2023: £25.9 million) of revenue related 1o non-appointed business
activities.

The ahove analysis excludes other operating income 2nd finance income In note 6.
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a.

Rovenue |continued)

Revenue recognised which exceeds the amounts billed is recorded as a contract asset while payments
received prior to delivering the service is recorded as a contract fiability, Refer below for the movement

i eontract assets and labilities:

Group and Campany
n2e un
Em £m
Contract liability
At 1 April {345.5) (138 3
Revanue recognlised 1.200.B 1,0E36
Cash received in advance (L185.6]  (1,090.8)
At 31 March {330.3} [345.5)
Contract asset
At 1 Aguril 3315 3100
Ravanus recognlsed 1.251.8 L1Xs
Amounts dilled {1,176.8) [1,089.0)
AL 31 March 46.5 3315
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b Dpﬂrith" costs

Year Vaar

engded gnded

311 March 31 March

opd 23
Em Ern
Raw materials and consumables 40,4 41
Stafl costs 335.4 N
Reszarch and davelopmant 15 7.9
Contribution to Anglian Water Assistance Fund g 15
Short-term lease Lo4ts FA i2
Hirad and contracted servioes £T8.2 Inih
Rates G9.5 a1
Power 165.4 EE T
Regulatory fees .7 327
| st ance 10.8 b LER:
Vehicles and fued 177 168
Other expensst 48.9 454
O wiork capitafised (158.6) (1325)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment [L5) 13.9)

Operating costs before depreciation, amortisation and loss afiowance

for expected credit losses E4B.1 7354
Depreciatsn of property, plant and eguipment 3334 1124
Amortisation of intangible 2ssats 58.2 489
Depreciatin of investment properties 0.2 -
Depreciation snd amortisation 351.8 3817
Loss allowance for expected credit losses 3BT 302
Dperating costs LITRE 11473

it The profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment relates to various sales of surplus land and

assets,

During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company's Auditar;

Year Year
wnded erded
31 Mareh 31 Mdarch
Hyza 1033
Em £m

Fees payable to the Company's Auditor for the audit of the consolidated
financial staternents 0.2 il
Fees payable 1o the Company's Auditor far the sudil of the fubsidiaries 0.5 0.5

Fees payable to the Company's Auditor far other senvices

Mofi-audil services .4 0.3
i1 s




Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

S  Operating Costs (continued)

The Cornpany’s Auditor for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 was Deloitte LLP. Audit
related assurance services predominantly refate to regulatory reporting to Ofwat, review of the Group's
half-ypear results, and other agreed-upon proceduras throughout the year.

6.  Net finance costs

Year Yaar
ended anded
31 March 31 March
2024 Fiir]
Em Erm
Finance costs
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafis (45.0) [35.5)
Interest expenss on other logns incleding financing sxpenses [3540.4) [284.2)
Irdexation {350.9) [SE1.4)
Amartisation of debt 1ssue costs {B.0]) [7.5)
Ifterest on leatds (1.1} oy
Total finance costs [Ted.4) [ET4.5)
Less: amounts Capitalisad on guakfying asaats 1.1 0.7
[B93.3) [E3E &)
Fimice income
Interest ncome on short-tarm- bank deposig 5.7 27
Other interest income 2.2 19
Amartisation of falf valus adjustmants 11.1 118
Diefined benefit pension scheme interest 26 63
6.6 238
Fair value gains/(losses) on denvative financial mstruments
Hedge ineffactiveness on fair value hedges 1.8 0.3
Dernvatve financial mstrurments not designated as hedges 2078 e e
Recycling of de-designated cash fiow hedee ralationship™ [4.8) [5.2)
049 B45.3
Finance income, including fair value gains on derivative financizl instruments 1735 BED 1
Net finance costs [419.8) (145.7)

11 Hedge ineffectiveness on fair value hedges comprises fair value losses on hedging instruments of
£22.5 million {2023: loss of £35.2 million), offset by fair value gains of £24.4 million on hedged risks
(2023: gains of £35.5 miilion).

@ Please refer to note 23 for breakdown of hedging reserve.

. Indexation comprise of £229.9 million in borrowings {2023; £363.0 million) and £130:0 milfion in
derivatives (2023. £198.4 million).
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1.

Taxation
Vear Yeor
wnded srded
31 March 3L March
024 2023
Em Em
Current 1as:
In respect of the current period 0.4 0.7
Total cusrrent tax charge 0.6 0.7
Deferred tan:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 163 6.6
Adjustrments in respact of pravious pariods 3.8 12
Total deferred tax charge &5 £18
Total tax charge on boss from continuing operations Ta &4 5

The current tax charge for both years reflects tax payable in overseas territories. Tax losses arose in the
United Kingdom due mainly because capital allowances exceed the depreciation charged in the
accounts, as well a5 some income not belng taxable and the avatlability of tax relief on pension
contributions paid in the year. This is offset by disallowable costs and interast.

The deferred tax charge for both years mainly reflects capital allowances claimed in excess of the
depreciation charge, a charge on the fair value gains on derivatives, offset by a credit on losses carried
forward fo future years.

The deferred tax adjustments in respect of previous periods for both years relate mainky to the
agreement of prior year tak computations.

The amounts included for tax liabilities in the financial statements include estimares and judgerments. If
the computations subsequently submitted to HMRC include different amounts then these differences
are reflected as an adjustment in respect of prior years in the subsequent financial statements.

To address concerns about uneven profit distribution and tax contributions of large multinational
corporations, various agresments have been reached at the global level, including an agreement by over
135 jurisdictions to introduce a global minimum tax rate of 15%. In December 2021, the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development (DECD) released a draft legisiative framewark, followed by
detailed guidance refeased in March 2022, that is expected ta be used by individual jurisdictions that
signed the agreement to amend their local tax laws, The United Kingdom substantively enacted the tax
legiziation related to the top-up tax on 20 June 2023 in the Finance Act and the legielation is effective in
the UK for periods commending on or after 1 lanuary 2024, n addition, amendments to |45 12
"International Tax Reform = Pillar Two Model Rules’ were endorsed by the UK Endorsement Board on 19
July 2023 and the exception from recogniticn and disclosures of deferred taxes in this regard as required
by [AS 12.4A has been taken. The legislation is not expected to have a significant impact an the financial
slalements,
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1.

Taxation (continued)

The tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the notional amount calculated by applying
the rate of UK corporation tax of 25% (2023: 19%) to the (loss)/profit before tax from continuing

operations a3 folbows:

[Lessl orefic before 1ax from continuing operations

[Lozzlfprofit beforg tax from continuing eporations ot tha sandard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 25% (2023 19%)

Effects of recurring items:

hamg nof deductibls Tor 13 purpasss
Depreciation and |osses on assets not eligible for tax rebef
Disatlowsble expenditure
imterest restriction

liems nol taxsble

Difference in overseds tax rates

Joint wenturss results repadted net of kax

Effects of non-recurring iems:

Effect of capital alltvwance super deduction
Effects of differences between rates of currant and deferred tay
Adjustments in resgect of prior periods

Tax charge for the year

Endad
31 March

(4.1]

(1.0

Yagr
anded
31 March
03

Erm
682

510

In addition to the tax charged to the income statement, the following amounts of tax relating to

components of other comprehensive income were recognised:

Deterred tam:

Defined benefit pension schemes
Cash Mow hedges

Total deferred tax credit

Total tax credit recognised In other compreheniive income

Vear
endad
31 March
Hipd

Em

(71
[L.9]

(%.0]

8o

Yaar
wnded
31 March
3033

Em

(ELT)
[0.2)
(519)

(518)

The Company is registered in Jersey but is not subject to lersey income tax, as it is a tax resident in the
United Kingdom due to its business being centrally managed and controlled there.
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8 Employee information and Directors’ emoluments
a] Employee information

Staff costs

Wages and salaries

socikal Securiny CosTE

Pension costs - defined cordribotion
Pension costs - defined benefit

Year
g

31 March
Mz

Em

2833
80
2.0

0.1

i ——

3354

Year
gnded

Il March
2

Em

2539
264
A

o

3031

Seaff costs for the year ended 31 March 2024 in the table above are shown inclusive of £75.9 million
{2023: £101.2 million) of costs that have been capitalised, as shown within ‘own work capitalised’ in

nate 5,

Average monthly number of full-time equivalent persons (induding Executive Directors) employed by

the Group:

Anglian Water
Anglizn Venture Holdings
Other

The Companny
The Company has no employees (2023: nane).

Wear Yaar
ended anded
31 March 31 March
20 FiEE ]
5531 L 285
263 im
n B8
54866 =351
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8.
b)

Employee information and Directors’ emoluments [continued)

Directors’ emoluments
Year Year
g snded
31 March 31 March
Mz 203
Aggregate amolumants 1,890 2435

Aggregate emoluments of the Directors comprise salanies, taxable benefits, cach payments in lieu of
company pension contributions and amounts payable under annual bonus schemes, Mo retiremeant
benefits are acorved for Directors (2023: none) under a defined benefit pension scheme, Retirement
benefits are accruing 1o two Directors (2023: twa Directors) under a defined contribution pension
scheme,

Highest paid director
Yaar Yaar
ended erided
31 Mearch 31 March
2034 a3
000 E'000
AgEregste emoluments 1304 13491
Profit of the parent company

The Company has not presented its own income statement as permitted by article 105(11) of the
Companies [lersey) Law 1991 The Company had no profit in the year (2023. £21.8 miliion).
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10. Goodwill
2004 priTL ]
£m Em
Cost
AL L April and 31 March 535.4 5354
Accumulated imparment
At 1 April and 31 March [489.6) (485 6]
Het book amount
At 31 March 445.8 4455
Allocation of goodwill
All goodwill is allocated to the Anglian Water business segment, the Group's UK regulated water and
water recycling services provider.

Impairment testing of goodwill allocated to Anglian Water

The recoverable amount of the Anglian Water segment k= determined based on a fair value less cost o
sell methodology.

This calculation uses a multiple of Regulatory Capital Value [RCV) with réference 1o the recent
tramsactions that have taken place in the sector and the market value of the listed companies in the
se¢tor, The basis applied has been deemed appropriste as it is consistant with the economic value as
assessed by management and other market participants.

The current comparable transactions in the sector indicate that current multiples have been between
1.14% and 1.48x RCV in recent years. The implied multiples for the listed water companies are also
around 1.0x to 1.17% on a non-controlling basis, based on current market capitalisation.

Adopting a current market average ROV multiple of 1.16x at 31 March 2024 results in headroom of
£2,001.8 million (2023: 1.25%, £2,756.3 milllon). The headroom at 31 March 2024 is eliminated at an RCYV
multiple of 0.97x (2023: 0.97x).

Goodwill is also assessed wsing forecast discounted cashflows which also demonstrates that there is
headroom above the carmying value,
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11.  Other intangible assets

Right 1o
Computer operake
Software assel
Em Em
Cost
AL Apeil 2023 4174 216
Additions B £
Transfar on comméessinning 192 -
Disposals i) o
At 31 March 2024 4366 16
Av 1 Apeill 2022 3705 216
Addliti g -
Transfer on commissioning L84 .
Dispasais (12.3) -
At 31 March 2023 4174 218
Accumulated amormisation
A1 Apel 2023 [A00.6} [16.4)
Chargs for the year 447 {2.4)
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking ¥ =
At 31 March 2024 1345.3} {18.8]
Ar I April 2022 (2812} [14 0]
Lharge for the year {317 [2.4)
Disposal 123 I
At 31 March 2023 [300.6) [1a.4)
Met book amount
At 31 March 2024 813 1B
Ar 31 March 2023 1168 5.4

(rther

tm

147.0
01
222
[115.2)
54.1

1434

1k

ETITN

[131.4)
[1L1)
1153
{27.3)

[116.6)
[14.8)

{1314)

26.8

156

intangihia
mazets under
CofESiracTion
Em

1117
58.2
(41.4)

1385
1014

BT
(62.4)

1.7

138.5

iy

Total

Ty
58.3

[115.2)
630.8

B37.3
BLY

{12.3)
707.7

[4az.4)
(58.2)
(35L.4)

(411.8)
(48.9)

113
(448 4)

For increased clarity, and for consisténcy with note 12, Property, plant and equipment, the above table
has been reformatted this year to separate out intangible assets in the course of construction. Of those
intangible assets under construction, £98.7 million (2023: £65.4 million) refates to software systems

under development and £39.7 million {2023: £56.1 million) to internally generated assets.

Included in the intangible asset under construction balance is £74.0 million {2023: £43.5 million) in
relation to our SAP replacement project which is now expected 1o go live in 2025.

Other intangible assets mainly comprise capitalised development expenditure.
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11.  Other intangible assets [continued)
Included within additions above is £6.8 million {2023: £6.4 million) of intersct that has been capitalised

oh qualifying assets, at an average rate of 9.5 per cent (2023: 8.6 per cent).

The ‘right to operate’ asset arose on the acguisition of Celtic Anglian Water Limited in June 2016, whilst
the internally generated intangible assets mainly comprise capitalised development expenditure.

Intangible assets with a cost of £115.2 million and a net book value of nil were disposed during the year
12023; £12.3 million, nil net book value), The 2024 retirement mostly represented a house-keaping
exprcise, where fully depreciated data-models and other similar assets were retired from our fived asset

register.
The Compary
The Company has no intangible assets {2023: none),

131



Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

12.  Property, plant and equipment

Wahiches,
infra- michils et
landand  structure Operational  plant and under
bigings EETEIR AEEElE  equipmEnt  CONSTRACTON Total
£m £m Em Em Em Em

Corst
At 1April 2023 - TALES B,718.1 11314 E34E 16,2594
A dditions - - - 05 1,044.0 L.0a4.5
Transfers on commissioning 15 1553 2757 1404 (673.1) -
Dispasals L3) - (383) (32,8 B .|
At 31 March 2024 "7 71008 €,969.4 1.237.7 L2357 172343
&r1 April 20232 240 72821 E,507.4 10508 Ba74 155717
A dditions . . . 0.2 FEER T33.6
Transfers on commissioning 45 1644 1337 1130 [F1610) -
Disporsals fi- 4} = {12.9) i32.6} 3 (45.9)
At 31 March 2023 485 74365 67282 1,331 4 E¥E 162994
Accumulated depreciation ) - =
At April 2023 [23.7) (5626 {3,865.1) [FO1.8) = {5,553.2)
Charge for the year [31) i61.6) {200.8) (66.9] s [333.4)
Disposals 0.3 - 344 345 - b4.2
A1 31 March 2024 {28.5) (L.025.2) [4.031.5]) (734.2} - i5.817.5)
At Apnl 2012 [&0.a) (500.3) (1,674.7) [670.8) = |5.0565.8)
Charge for the yaar (2.1} [62.3] {202.9] [63.5] £ [332.8)
Dtiposals 24 : 125 323 5S4
At 33 March 2023 [23.7) (H626] {3,865.1) [FO1.8) - [5:553.2)
et book amount
&1 31 March 2024 732 b.676.6 29318 503.5 12257  1LA16S
At 31 March 2023 7AE 64839 18631 4296 BS48 10,7061

Property, plant and equipment a1 31 March 2024 includes land of £31.4 million (2023 £30.2 million),
which is not subject to depreciation, Included within additions above 15 £64.3 million (2023: £344
million) of interest that has been capitalised on qualifying assets, 31 an average rate of 9.5 per cent
{2023: 8.6 per cent),
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12.  Property, plant and equipment [continued)

Right-of-use assets held under leases
Included within the amounts shown above are the following amownts in relation to right-of-use assets
held under leases:
Group
Wehicies,
Infra- mishita
Land and strstture  Operational plant and
Buddings ausEls assEts equipment Tetal
Em Em Em £m Em
At 31 Mrch 2024
Opening net book value 1839 25 356 85 68.9
Additions = - = 36 1.6
Dispasais (0.1 . . 17 3.8)
Cepreciation chags [2.7) {01} (1.2} 1.9] {6.9)
Depreciation on disposals 01 . . 7 1.8
Met book valus 16.2 45 344 10.2 B5.5
At 31 March 2023
Crpening net book value i18 43 36,9 37 £9.3
Additions o1 . . E.0 E.1
Dispasats = z = th.2] 0.2
Deprectation charge [3.0) - (1.3} (+.2] fB3)
Depreciation on disposals - . 0.2 0.2
Net book valus 189 43 356 0.5 BRS
The Company

The Company has no property, plant and equipment {2023: none).
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13.  Investment properties

04 Mzl
£m Em

Cost
AL L Agrll 3.7 37
A1 31 March 3.7 4.7
Accumiilsted deprediation
At 1 Agril {0.1 foa)
Charge for the year [0.2] -
At 31 March [0.3) (0.1}
Wet book amount
At 31 March 34 1.6

Investment properties are accounted for using the cost model, in line with the accounting policy for
property, plant and aquipment.

The fair value of investment properties is not materially different from their book value.
The Company

The Company has no investment properties [2023: none),

14. Investments
Group Campany
2iira 203 i 2013
Em Em Em Em

Mon-cuirent
lamt vanfures 14.6 11.2 - -
Subsidiary undertakings . . 663.2 BE3.2
14.6 122 b2 B53.2

Current
Cash deposits 552.1 67 - E
5521 316.7

Cash deposits disclosed within Investments represent short-term bank deposits with maturities at the
paint af deposit of three to s maonths,
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14.  Investments (continued)

a) Joint ventures
Group
2024 033
Em Em
At 1 Agril 122 126
Brofitf{less] for tha yaar 2.4 [04)
At 31 March 14,6 122

The profit for the year comprises the Group's share of the resuits of its joint vemtures as follows:
operating profit of £6.1 million {2023: profit of £2.1 milllen), an interest expense of £2.6 million (2023;
£23 million), and 2 tax charge of £1.1 million (2023: charge of £0.2 million),

The Group's initial investment in the Wawve joint venture was £31.3 million, compnsing an equity hoiding
of £15.6 million and a £15.7 million 5.5 per cent madivm-temm loan repayable on 31 August 2027 or
such ather date as mutually agreed between the parties. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group undertook 3 debt for equity swap of £5.0 million, resulting in an equity holding of £20.6 million
and a £10.7 million 5.5 per cent medium-term koan,

A full listing of the Group's joint ventures can be found in note 31 none of which are material to the
Group.

Osprey Hoddeo Lirnited and Anglian Venture Holdings Limited are party to indemnities in respect of the
Wave joint venture in relation to wholesale water charges payable to Anglian Water Services Limited for
£14.5 million and another wholesaler for £10.0 million. Additionally, Anglian Venture Holdings Limited is
party to an indemnity in respect of the Wave joint venture in relation to wholesale water charges
payable 1o other wholesalers for £12.5 million.

In addition, Anglian Venture Heldings Limited has undertaken to discharge any defined bensfit pensian
scheme liability 2rising on any of its employess, including those of Anglian Water Business [Mational)
Limited, transferring into the Wave joint venture.

The joint ventures have no significant contingent lizbilities 1o which the Group is exposed.

b} Subsidiary undertakings

Lampary
Loans 1o Shares in
sunsidiary subsidiany
undertakings  undertakings Total
Em Em Em
Ciost
At 1 April 2022, at 1 March 2023 and at 31 March 2024 - 548.0 6632 1M1
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14.  Investments (continued)

b) Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

The loan is interest free and repayable on demand, and has been included in long-term trade and other

Fecsivabhes,

The Directors are of the opinion that the value of the inestrments is supported by the underlying assets.

Subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 31

15. Trade and other receivables

Short-term:
Trade recervables

Loss slbewance far expecied cradil ioasss

Wet trade receivables

Amdpunts recaivable frorm Sroug unhdermakings
Amounts recebvabde from joint venturis

Cther amounis recaivable

Prepayments
Accrued income

Long-term:
Loans receivable from subsidiaries

350.4
(2122)
178.2

0.0

327
174
405.1

657.4

202
Em

2023
e

44340
|258.2)
1848
1 8]
214
413
I7a

Group

3344

5985

Company
2213

Em

548.0
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Accrued income as at 31 March 2024 indludes water and water recycling income not yet billed of £405.0
million [2023: £331.5 million),

Of the trade receivables, £376.2 million (2023: £427.3 millicn) relates 1o Anglian Water Services
residential customers, £1.4 millicn (2023: £0.7 million) relates 1o Anglian Water Services nan-household
retailer balances and the remaining balance of £6.2 million relates to developer services and other
receivables, The magority of non-household customers are billed in arrears and are therefore induded
within accrued income above.

Other amounts recefvable includes £22.1 million VAT debtor {2023: £19.4 million),

Loans recervable from foint ventures 3t 31 March 2004 comprise the following amounts due from the
Wiave joint venture:
o AE16.T millkon (2023 £16.7 million) koar at 12 month SONIA plus 2.75 par cent plus credit
adjusted spread (CAS) with na fixed repayment date (previoushy at LBOR plus 2.75 per eant);
o A£33 million (2023: £4.6 million) short-term working capital facility at one month SONIA plus
.75 per cent plus CAS [previoushy at UBOR plus 275 per pent); and
In addition to loans receivable from joint ventures in the above table, the following additional ameunts
due from joint ventures have been included:
o Arcrued income of £13.4 million (2023 £8.3 million) and interest receivable of £2.2 million
(2023; £1.7 million), included within acorued income.

The Group manages its risk from trading through the effective management of customer relationships.
By far the most significant business unit of the Group is Anglian Water, which represents 97.0 per cent
of the Group's revenue and 36.3 per cent of its net trade receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with
respect to household trade receivables are limited due to the Anglian Water customer base consisting of
a large number of unrelated households.

The Water industry Act 1991 (as amended by the Water Industry Act 1999 prohibits the disconnection
of awater supply and the fimiting of supply with the intention of enforcing payment for certain premizes
including domestic dwellings. However, allowance is made by the water regulator in the price imits at
each price review for a proportion of debt deemed to be irecoverable. Considering the above, the
Directors believe there is no further credit risk provision reguired in excess of the allowance for doubtful
receivables,

Foliowing the introduction of market reform on 1 April 2017, the provigion of water and wastewater
services bo non-household customers was transferred to a relatively small number of licenced retailers.
Anglian Water bills the retailers on a monthly basis, and they are contractually obliged to pay in full
within one month and therefare the credit risk is limited to one month's revenue relating to non-
household customers,

The principal retailer that Anglian Water transacts with is Wave Ltd, with £nil recesvables [2023: £nil)
and £13.4 million of income accrued at 31 March 2024 (2023: £8.3 milllan),

137



Anglian Water Group Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

15. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The moverment on the expected credit loss provision, all of which relates to trade receivables, was as

follows:
2024 i |
At 1 Agril 1582 2365
Loss aflowance for expected credit fosses 387 2
AmOURTS wrimen of during the yaar [B4.9] [E.7)
Amounts recoverad during the year a2 02
At 31 March 1132 1582

There is no fixed payment date for amounts owed by Group undertakings and no interest is applied.

Amounts are payable on demand.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and accrued income based on the Group's
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based o past due Status
i not further distinguished batween the Group's different customer segments. The majority of non-

household customers are billed in arrears and are thersfore included within acorued income.

At 31 March 2024 Group and Company
Expected  Gros: carmying Loz

boss Fate mmouil  alawands Het carrying amout

* Em Im im

Mot past dua 14% 453.7 (6.4} 4473

Up ta 1 year past dus J4 8% 8339 (348} 651

Up to 2 years past due 53.9% 57.0 [30.7) 263

Up to 3 years past due SE.9% 475 [28.0) 165

Up to 4 years past due 718% 3.7 [28.5) 10:3

Up 10 5 years past due T15% 358 [25.6) 102

L 104 years past due Bla%W 30.2 [24.7) 55
More than 7 years past due 100k 357 [35.7)

Whiscellaneous logs allowence adjustrents b 2.8

799.5 1212.2)

5873
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15. Trade and other receivables (continued)

At 31 March 2023

Haot past due

Ut 1 year past dus

Up to & years past dus

Lp to 3 years past dus

Up to 4 years past due

L to 5 yeors past e

Up to & years past Sue

Maore than 7 years past due
Misceflaneows ioss aflowance adjustments

Group and Compary
G o
Expamiad cETYINg Loss
losE Tate EMaung gliaEros H'B'IEI'T?"! SHPeEany
% Er £m £
10% 70,3 (3.7} jg6 5
2055 016 (304 712
45,65 Ea0 [27.5) 115
Bi0.5% 47.0 [28.8) 184
64, 7% 4LE [2&6.9) 147
75.65 JEE [27.3} 83
78.5% 303 [23.8) 65
1000 a15 (91 5} .
i5 15
7774 (258.2) 519.2

135



Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

16. Analysis of net debt

Group
Current asser Liabilinies from financhng acthities
Motcash  Investments Derivative  Total liahilities
end cash - cash Bndncial  from finsncng
agunslants™ deposits  Bomowangs mnstrumenis = FETRTES Mt detit
im Em Em m _ Em Em
Ar 1 April 2033 5180 67T 92738 r | (05215 (9.086.8}
Cah Mows
Intrest pasd (340 6} = - - (340.6)
Izzue costs paid {168} - 173 - 173 0.5
Imterest on leases (L1} - - - - (1.1}
Increase in amodlnts
bormowed 14210 - {1420 - (L421.0)
Repayment of amounits
borrowed [327.6) - 5176 - SIT 6 -
Repayment of principal on
deffeatives (115} = = 115 115 -
Repaymant of principal on
eases (7.0 ~ 70 « 7.0 ;
Non-financing cash fows [429.0} 2354 - - - (1938
&74 2354 [884.1) 115 (BS7.6) [534.8)
IMavement in interest aconisl
on debt - = (55.0) = (350 (55.0)
Mew lease agresments . . (4.0 - 4.0 {4.0)
Amorsation of g costs - = (8.0 = (8.0) (8.0}
AmoriEation of fair valu
adjustments . . 111 . 111 111
Indexation of borrowings and
RF swraps = - [1T%5] 1130000 (3850 [359.9)
Fair walue gains and hosses and
forzign exchange = = 451 (49.1] - -
Intgrust addad 1o debt = = {111) 1314 n03 103
At 31 March 2024 6054 5521 {10.340.7) (6333)  (09746)  (9.8171)
Met debt at 31 March 2624 comprizes:
Hon-current assats - + = 1316 1316 2316
Current assets 8054 5521 = - - L1575
Current Rabilities - - [555.5) (74.6) (635.2) [635.2)
Hon-currant latilimies - - [@7851) (7859 (1057107  [10.571.0)
605.4 S3L1  (10.380.7) (6338)  (109746)  (9817.0)
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16.  Analysis of net debt (continued)

At 1 April 2022

Cah fMows:
imterest paid
fssue oosts paid
IPErEsT on | eaes
Increzse in amounis
barmowed
Repayment of smounts
Doomowed
Repayment of principad
oh keases
Morn-financing cazh
Mo =

Moemont in interadr
accrual o delt

Mew leaze agreements
AmorTissnon of ssue oosts
Amortisation of fakr value
adjustrments

Indexation of borrowings
a=ndd BEPE Paaps

Fair walue gains and lossey
and foreign exchange

At 31 March 2023

Group
Currant 3ssap Lizhéities from financing sctivithsy
Mot msh ETveTTIETIT Darreatvs Totd Imbiites
s mash - rash finarzial  from firancing
S o -, & £m e
61314 430.7 88034 (1,162.0) (9,9654)  (8.211.3)
[300.5) iTE [3.5) 241 (176.4)
[2.4] * 17 : 7 03
08) : - : : (0.8]
11178 - {13178 {L117.8)
(1,005:8} = L0058 10058 5
(6.4} Bd 6.4
phira (11400 z 2 £ (113
f95.4) (1140} [75.3) {4.5) (TE.8] {2883
- - 22 23 22
59 53] {5.9]
= = 7. * [7.6) (7.6
irg 1r9 iz9
c = 363.0) [128.4) (5614) (5614
.= | 16.3 B&6.2 _BE2S [ vl
5180 3167 {9.223.8) (6577 {2.9215)  {90868)

1 Included within cash and cash equivalents is £6.5 million (2023 £7.6 million} of cash which &
ring fenced 1o be used 1o fund projects awarded by Ofwat in relation 1o their innovation fund,

@ Derivative financial instruments exdude the liabifity of £21.4 million {2023: asset of £0.7 million)

in respect of the fair value of energy hedges, as these are not classified a< part of net debt.

&= Mon-financing cash flows comprise; net cash flows from operating activities of £743.1 million
(2023: £701.9 million), less net cash used in investing of £1,172.1 million {2023: £507.4 millian),
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16.  Analysis of net debt [continued)
Energy hodges, excluded from net debt, are included within derivative financial instruments as follows:

= Group

il | 2023

£m Em

Non-turrent assets 15 115

Current aSsels o4 184

Current liabilities (13.2} (21.9)

Nen-ourrent lighilities (10.6] {7.3]
o o1

Current asset irmestments above comprise £552.1 milllon (2023: £316.T7 milllioh) of short-term cash
depasits with an original maturity of more than three months.

At 31 March 2024, £474.1 million (2023: £335.1 million) of the Group’s cash and cash eguivalents and
£530.0 miliion (2023: £298.0 million] of the short-term deposits were held by Anglian Water and its
financing subsidiary, In order for these amounts to be made available to the rest of the Group, Anglian
Water Services Limited must satisfy certain covenants, which were put in place on 30 July 2002
following a financial restructuring, prior to declaring dividends. A further £0.2 million (2023: £0.2
million) of the Group's cash and cash equivalents was held as collateral for outstanding loan notes. In
addition, £2.2 million (2023: £0.8 million} of the Group's cash and cash equivalents and £2.1 million
{2023: £3.5 million) of the short-term deposits were held by Rutland Insurance Limited (the Group's
captive insurance company) in order to maintain its reguired solvency ratio.
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17. Trade and other payahles

2024
Em
Trade payables 46.2
Capital craditors and accroals 157.1
Receipts in advance 7140
Amounts owed 1o Group undariakings -
Crthar tawies and social security 0.9
Accruals and deferred incoma 146.6
Other payables 16.2
[

Growp

325
1885
455

1.4
ios.A

151

700.3

Receipts in advance includes £330.3 million (2023: £301.7 million) refating to payments on account in

advance of work being completed.

Accruals and deferred incorne s made up of £132.6 million aceruats {2023; £90.0 million) with the

remainder attritutable to deferred income.

Amounts relating 1o capital creditors and accruals have been separately presented in the above table o
aid consistency with the presentation required by Ofwat in the Annual Performance Report of Anglian

Water Senvices Limited,

The Directors consider that the carrying walues of trade and other payables are not materially different

from their fair values.

There is no fixed payment date for amounts owed 1o group undertakings and no interest 15 applied.

Amounts are payable on demand.
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18.  Loans and other borrowings

Growp
Em _Em
£200 milllion 6875% fosed rate 2023 - 092
USS1T0 million 3 84 5% fiesd rate 2023 - f3R &
£93 milllon 3.537% fed rage 2023 - 45
E£75 ralllion 16665 RP| index-linked 2014 163.7 1513
£100 million 1 588% fced rate 2024 10:0.4 1004
£250 million 1.625% Mded race 2035 440,23 233.8
E£200 milfion 45% fwed rate 2026 1%6.3 b= 8
£55 milflion 2.53% fixed rate ficed rate 2026 55.5 55.5
USS150 million 3 29% fieed rate 2026 115.6 1184
£20 priHion 293% fived rate 2026 M.l M1
L5535 million 1.16% fixed rate 2026 25.3 5.6
£75 million EI8 amortising 0.53% RP| index-linked 3017 5.8 45,6
£75 raiflion EFE amortising 0799 P ndex-linked 2027 35.8 45.6
£200 million 2622 5% fixed rate 2027 153.5 1917
£250 million 45% fived rate 2027 5319 5316
E150 milfion ER} emortising 0% AP index-dlinked 2028 9.8 1105
£73 3 milllgn 4.384% fiked rate 2028 7.4 6.2
£200 million &.825% fooed rate 2029 Hd.9 2103
£85 miflion 2 B8% fiked rate 2029 5.0 Bd45
US553 millson £.37% fxed rate 2029 421 £30
£65 raillion EEB amortising 0.41% BP mdex-linked 2025 4E.8 55.8
£65 million 2.87% fixed rate 2029 5.6 655
£125 milllion EIR amortising 0.1% RP| indix-linked 2019 102.0 1149
£300 rmilfion 2.75% fieed rage 2024 301.2 002
E£75 million fpating rate 2029 Tl 756
£60 milllion EI8 amorticing 0.01% /P mdex-linked 2030 53.7 561
£ 246 willion 5. 293% foced rate 2030 616 2B1.1
£25 million 3.05 fxed rats 2031 25.0 25.0
£35 million foating rate fxed rate 2031 H.B 348
£300 million 5.875% fixed rate 2031 J11.4 -
£200 milllon wrapped 3.07% RP index-linked 2032 458.0 41410
£60 million wrapped 3.07% BRI index-nked 2032 124.2 11e7
5 350 million 4.525% Fxed rate 2032 F4.1 21
£75 milllion Mosting rate 2032 75.8 75.6
£50 mitlion 2.05% 0P indew-linked 2033 TRA T4.&
£25 million 5.875% fixed rate 2034 25.1 25.0
JFY 8.5 billlon 1.917% fixed rate 1034 44.7 =
£402 million 243 RP| index-<rnked 2035 0.4 5058
£50 million 1.76% fised rata 2035 50.0 50.0
£26 1 milllon 0,01% CH indew-linked 2035-1 34.7 314
£26.1 million G015 CP index-fimked 2035 - 2 34.5 3313
£35 mitlion 2.14% Tised rate 2036 5.8 261
£40 million 2 14% fixed rate 2046 295 kLN
Sub-total carried forward 4.5945.7 4 953 &
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18,

Loans and other borrowings (continued)

Sub-total brought forward

£242F mitlior &.07% fived rate 2037

£24 million 6.07% fied rate 2037
1Y 7 biliion 0.855% fxed rats 2035

£560 milllon 6.0% fixed rate 2039

£65 million amortising 0.835% CP index-Bnked 2040
E£100 million 2. 4273 CPl mdex-linkad 2044
£100 million arsorising 3 0175 CPH index-knked 2040
1PY Fhilkon 0.85% fixed rate 2040

£35 million 1. 141% RPI indas-Hinked 2042
£110 rylllon floating rote 2043

375 million 5.75% feed rate 2043

£130 million 2. 262% RP| index-linked 2045
E50 million 1. 7% BRI inde-lnked 2046 - 1
£50 million 1.7% RFl index-linkad 2046 - 2
£60 million 1.7203% RP| ndex-linked 2042
E50 million 1 52% RPIindex-linked 2055

E40 million 1. 7164% RP| index-linked 2056
E50 miblion 167775 &P index-linked 2056
E50 million 1 3835% BF| mdex-linked 2055
£100 milllon wrapped fioating rate 2057
£100 mitlion 1, 3784% BP index-linked 2057
E75 million 1.44%% RPI index-limked 2062
IFRS 16 leases

BCE £550 milllan

RCF E375 millian

RCF £50 millian bilsteral -1

RCF £50 miflion Bilateral - 2

Liguidaty facifities

£240 mition 4.0% fyed rate bond 2016

£100 million fiouting terrn fecility 2027

£300 million 2.0% fixed rate bond 2028

£105 mitlion 2. 2% private placements 2028
E100 million 2 37% privete placements 2031
E100 million 556% private placement 2033
RCF Facilimies DAL

Loan notes

Other losns

£10.5 millicn fired to flosting rate notes 2037
E145 million fixed to floating rate notes 2028
£120 millian 4.82% fiked rate 2030

£330 million foating rate notes 2030

£50 million fixed to floating rete notes 2030
£95 million fieating rate private placements J027
E75 million private placement 2030

£123 milllon Meanng term faaliny 2016

£75 million floating term fecility 2026

£452 milllan Undecured loan notes

£11 B3 mallion 3.302% fixed rate 326

Total loans and other borrowings

Group

Em Em
4,945.7 49938
7.8 1478
2.6 2.6
36.6 427
578.6 -
T8.9 7548
99,6 s
107.3 103
25.8 E¥H
53.7 51.1
110.5 1164
3716 .
r23.T 213.2
1029 45
102 §5.2
136.2 1173
.4 21
i35 793
105.8 BE B
LW EG
1.9 006
192.5 1787
135.5 1211
28.5 313
L.E) (1.7
(0.5) (0.7)
(0.1} jo.L)
(0.1 -
0.4 0.3
240.1 FEEE
106 1041
0.1 F99.2
105.2 105.1
1.5 1004
10:0.2 1003
743 711
0.2 02
L& I3
10.7 160.7
147.7 1477
118.% 1187
311 0.8
50 45 5
96.7 i
1.3 TE.B
125.8 1248
T5.5 45
503.1 d812
118 113
10,350.7 31238
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18. Loans and other borrowings [continued)

Group
2024 0248
&m Em
incheded in:
Current liabilities 555.6 14650
Non-currant liabilties 9,785.1 80588
Of which are leases:
Current liabll mes 54 54
Mon-current liabifities 23.1 258
The Company

The Company has no loans and other borrowings (2023: none).

The value of the capital and interest elements of the index-linked loans & linked to movements in
inflation. The increase in the capital value of index-linked loans during the year of £229.9.0 million
{2023: £363.0 million) has been taken to the income statement as part of interest payable,

These koans are shown net of Bsue costs and borrowings premium of £44.6 million (2023: £35.1 million).
The issue costs are amortised at the effective interest rate based on the carrying amount of debt aver
the fife of the underlying instruments,

A security agreement dated 30 July 2002 between Anglian Water Services Financing Plc. Anglian Water
Services Limited, Anglian Water Services Overseas Holdings Limited, Anglian Water Services Holdings
Limited and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited (as Agent and Trustee for itself and each of the Finance
Parties to the Global Secured Medium Term Note Programme) created a fixed and floating charge over
the assats of Anglian Water Services Limited to the extent permissible under the Water Industry Act
1991. In addition there is a fixed charge over the ksued share capital of Anglian Water Services
Financing Plc, Anglian Water Senvices Limited and Anglian Water Services UK Parent Limited. Ar 31
March 2024, this charge appiles to £7,947,7 million (2023: £6,845.0 millian) of the debt listed above.

A security agreement dated 31 lanuary 2011 between Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc, Osprey
Acquisitions Limited and Deutsche Trustes Company Limited [as agent and trustee for itself and each of
the Finance Parties o the Guaranteed Securad Medium Term Mote Programme) created a fived and
floating charge over the assets of Anglizn Water (Osprey) Financing Plc and Osprey Acquisitions Uimited.
in addition there is 3 fixed charge over the issued share capital of Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc
and AWG Parent Co Limited, At 31 March 2024, this charge applies 1o £1,021.1 million {2023 £1,018.4
million) of the debt listed above.

Loans and other borrowing labilities disclosed within borrowings on the balance sheet are the anly
instruments designatad as fair value hedge ftems by the Group.
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18. Loans and other borrowings [continued)

The table below details the impact of fair value hedge adjustments on the instruments subject w fair

value hedge accounting:

g

£ 250 millkon Green Bond 1 625% 2025

EX00 million 4.5% fixed rate 2026

LES150 milllon 3.2%% private placemants 2026
105535 million 1.16% private placements 2026
£200 milln LET15% Nad rate 3037

£73.3 million 4.334% private placements 2028
£246 milion &, 293% ficed rate 2030

£35 millicn 2 14% fixed rate 2036

£40 million 2.14% fixed rate 2036

AP 7 billion & B5% fixed rate 2040

2023

USS170 milfion 3.84% privete plecements 2023
£250 million Green Bong 1.6255% 2025

£200 million 4.5% ficed rate 2026

WES150 million 3.25% private placements 2026
LS535 million 1.16% prvate placements 2006
£200 milian 2.6215% twad rate 3027

£73 3 million 4. 994% private placements 2028
£246 million & 293% fuad rate 1030

£35 million 2 34% fixed rate 2036

£40 million 2 14% fixed rate 2036

1Y 7 hillion 0.B5% fiaed rate 2040

— iyt
Accumulated  Distounted
Carrying Froparnian hetige hadge
value hedged  adjustment B adjustment
£m ] Em Em
2403 100 118 =
156 3 50 41 -
1156 6 4.5 =
2513 100 23 =
1935 41 73 =
&7.4 100 74 -
2514 M 348 -
258 100 53 -
45 100 10.6 -
258 100 106
L1708 713 -
138 & Ga 14
1338 100 17.8 -
154 & 50 53
118 4 Fi- a5 -
256 D 24
1917 41 o -
6.2 100 BB
2303 Fatl 4.5 =
53 100 5.0
95 100 102 =
6 100 84 -
1,308 4 B30 =

% The accumulated hedge adjustment noted above is included within the carmying value of each
instrument. The movement in the accumulated hedge adjustment is shown within fair value gains on
derivative financial instruments in the income statement.
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19,

Financial instruments
Financial assets by category

At 31 March 2024

Investments
Cwrrant - cath dapotity

Cath and cath eguivalants
Currant

Trade and other récehvablas
Currgm

Deriative Minancial instruments
Currarm
Hon-turrent

At 31 March 2023

Inyesiments
Currant - cash deposits

Cash and cash aguivalanis
Currer

Trade and other receivablas
Curnant

Bervative fimanclal Instruments
Currend
Hon-Current

BAszats at
faw valus

ardd hoss

21639
2169

74
1841
137.0

162
1ra

478
&3
1132

Trade and other receivabies above exclude prepaymients and VAT.

05 A

B178

12233

SI4 0

SElG

10088

Imeoctments
B aamnelasad

;i

5511

552.1

316.7

367

Tot=l

§52.1
Bl
Bi7.G

0.9

233.1
2.009.4

3167
518.0
5E18

558

1944
1 666.8
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19. Financial instruments |continued)

Financial assets by category (continued)
Campany
Aszois ak
amertised
cost and investments
Eash a1 amartsed
euEvalents cast Tetal
£m Em Em
At 31 March 2024
Ivestmants
Mon-currant - oadd pb3.l
Trade and other recevablas
Non-currgnt 5-13.._!3! - S-tﬂ:.ﬂ
S48.0 B3 1.211.2
At 31 March 2023
Investments
MNon-current g 6631 663.2
Trade and other recevables
Han-cusrent S48 0 - 480
480 BbE3.1 12113

Trade and other receivabbes above excluds prepayments and VAT.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
Financizl liabilities by category (continued|

Grou
Liabilities at ther
tair walae fabdities
through Derivatives hedd at
prafit used for amaoltised
and hass hedging cozt Total
Em Em Em _Em
At 31 March 2024
Bormowings
iCurrent - - 555 555.6
Mon-current - = 97851 5.785.1
Trade and other payables
Lurrent d = 3581 358.1
Dernatwve financial mstruments
Currant 746 132 = SLE
Mon-currant BEG g 106.6 - To6.5
T68.5 119.8 10.695.8 11.5688.1
At 31 March 2023
Borrowings
Current - - 11850 1.165.0
Kan-currant - - 2054 8 80588
Trade and ather gayabiles
Lurrent . = 7D 33740
Dernvative financid nstruments
Lurrent lin 288 - 34
Non-turrent 8077 85.1 S, .
B313 1145 g 570 10,5180

Trade and other payables above exclude receipts in advance, other taxes and deferred income.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
Financizl liabilities by category (continued|

At 31 March 2024
Trade and other payables
Current

At 31 March 2023

Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Currant

Cosnpasy .
Qthar
lRabilitaes
mald at
amortised
Ce51 Torzl
Em Em
01 0.1
0.1 1
0.1 0.1
0l n.i
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Grouwp
2024 Folb
AREETY Liakilities il Lixhdigiasy
£m gm £m Em
Designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate twaps [.2) 1113 [0.8)
Cross currency interest rale swaps Tl (19.49) jL 7L E] [E.2)
Energy swaps 24 [23.8) Lok (26.2)
9.5 43.5) 772 (36.0)
Designated as Tair value hedpes
Interest rate swaps {54.3) 09 (&4.0)
Cross currency IRterast rale swaps Fl [£1.6) 35.1 (145
1.6 (76.4) 6.0 (TES)
Derivative financial instruments designated as
hedges 171 [115.8) 1132 [114.9)
Derrvative financial instruments not designated as
hedpes
Interest rate swaps B%.1 (ED.2) a4 [104.9)
RPI swaps 1143 (454, 3] 1119 (505.0)
P swape 18.5 (205.00 14.7 (222.4)
Total derivative financial instruments 134.0 (B89.3) 1302 (2472
Derivative firancial instruments can be analysad a5
follonars:
Currant 0.8 [91.8) 358 (534
Ken=current 2331 [796.5) _Ibd g (938
134.0 (BBS.3) 150.2 [547.2]

At 31 March 2024, the figed interast rates vary from 1.70 per cent 1o 5.86 per cent, floating rates vary
from SONIA plus 11.20 bps to SONIA plus 326,36 bps, RPHIinked interest rates vary from 1.27 per cent to
2.97 per cent plus RP and CPHinked intérest rates vary from negative 1.21 per cent plus CP1to 1.69 per
cent plus CPL Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income and acourmulated in the cash
flow hedge reserve on interest rate and cross-currency interest rate swap contracts will be continuoushy
released to the income statement within finance costs in ine with the repayment of the related
borrowings. Gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash
flow hedge reserve on energy hedges will be released to the income statement within operating costs in

lirse with the expiry of the power season to which the gains and losses relate,

The Company

The Company has no derivative financial instruments (2023: none).
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19. Financial instruments |continued)

In sccordance with IFRS 9, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded derivatives that are
required 1o be separately accounted for if they do not mest certain requiremsents set out in the

standard, There were no amounts recorded in the Income statemant for gaing or losses on embedded

dernatves for the year ended 31 March 2024 [2023: £nil).
Leases
The minimurm fease payments in respect of all leases fall due as follows:

Within one year
Bebween two-and Tve years
After fhse years

Future finance charges on leases
Present valls of lease Rallinegs

B4
1E.8
a5
T

(6.2)

.5

2073
Em
E.5

20.0

111

8.0

(7]

313
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

2024 2033
Carmying Fair Carmying Fair
wvalue valow vl valum
Em £m £m _&m
Cash and cash equivalents G054 B605.4 Eigd S1g.0
Current assel myvastmanis - Cash deposity 552.1 551.1 16T 3167
Borrowings
Current (555.5) (553.4]) {1, 165.0) {1168 0)
Nor-current (4, 785,1) [%,911.3) |8,058.E8) [B.54T 5)
Intefast and croLs CUrrERcy INTETEEt Frate SWaks -
assets
LCurrent - - 0.4 3.0
Mor-current g38 18 547 54.7
Inferast and croke currancy NTerest rale Swaps -
lbabdities
Current [1.1] (1.1] [E0.7) (10.7)
Non-current [175.1) {175.1) (1798 [170.8)
AP awaps - assets
Curment . - 14 14
Non-current 1253 1253 1200 1200
A swops - lahifitieg
Current {TE.5] (78.5] [2003) (2.3
Noh-curment [d05.8) [405.8] [484.T) [a54.7)
Pl swape - assets
Current - = £E5 5.5
Non-cusrent 185 185 52 92
CP swiaps - liabilimies
Lurrant - - {0L5) 0.5)
Nor-current [205.0) [205.01 [221.4) [221.9)
et debt [9.817.1) [9,941.1) {9.0B6.8) [9,628.5)
Emergy derivatives - assets
Currant [1 5] 0.g 154 8.4
Mon-current 15 15 115 i15
Enefgy derivatives - Habibities
Curmant [13.2] {13.2) [21.9) (21.5)
Non-current [10.6) (10.6] 7.3] ir.3
(9838.5)  [99625)  (9,0861) (98278
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities {continued)

Thie fair value of loans and other borrowings represents the market value of publicly traded debt
instruments of, if in respect of debt not publicly traded, the cost which the Group wauld incur i it
efacted 10 transfer these borrowings, calculated by discounting future cash flows at prevailing rates
including credit spreads experienced on publicly traded debt instruments.

The falr value of interest rate denvative financlal instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
methodology with referance 1o discounted ectimated future cash flows using observable yield curves.
The fair value of cross-currency interest rate derivatives is determined using discounted cash flow
methedology, with the foreign currency legs caloulated with reference to observable foreign interest
rate yield curves and the foreign exchangs rate as ar 31 March. The fair valus of the Group’s energy
derivatives s caloulated using discounted cash flow analysis, with reference to obsenvable market
energy prices at 31 March.

Fair values of other non-current investmeants, non-current trade and other receivables and non-current
trade and other payables have been estimated a5 being materially equal 1o carrying value,

Derivative transactions expose the Group to credit risk against the counterparties concerned. The Group
has credit protection measures in place within agreements which provide protection in the event of
counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only enters into derivative transactions with
banks of high credit standing (as measured by reputable rating agencies) and also seeks to diversify
exposure such that concentration with individual banks is avoided.

In accordance with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’, the financial instruments carried at fair value on
the balance sheet have been classified as either level 2 or level 3 for fair valuation purposes. Both
classifications are valued by reference to valuation technigues using observable inputs other than
guoted prices in active markets. Level 2 instruments were valued using discounted cash flow method
baced on phservable inputs. The fair value is then adjusted for credit risk. The level 3 instrument
valuation relates to CPl-linked transactions where inputs are obtained from a less liquid market. In bath
cases, valuations have been obtained by discounting the estimated future cash flows at a rate that
reflects credit risk.

There have been no transfers between leval 1, level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements in the year,

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the
date of the event or change in crcumstances that caused the transfer occurred.

Levied 3 derivative financial instruments

Level 3 derwvative financia! instruments comprise CPHinked inflation swaps which are traded based on 3
spread to liguid RPT inflation markets often referred to as 'the wedge’. As the market for CP swaps is still
developing, the wedge is not currently observable in a liguid market and as such these swaps have been
clazzified as level 3 instruments.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)

Movernents in the year to 31 March for assets and fiabdlities measured at fair vaiue using level 3
valuation Inputs are presented below:

024 i P
_Em m
At 1 Agril (207.7) [A227)
Met {losses)fgains for the periad {3.5) a44
SEtTemants 4.6 N6
At 31 March [186.5) (207.7)

Gains and losses in the period are recognised in the income statement.

The impact (on 2 post-1ax basis) on the income statement of reasonably possible changes in the CP
inflation rate assumptions used in valuing instruments classified as level 3 within the fair value hisrarchy

are as follows:
e Firrt]
Em Em
Gain /{loss)
1% increase in Infiation rates [134.9) (143.6)
1% decrease in inflation rates 108.7 1211

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation in the current environment, one per cent hac been used for sensitivity anabysis as this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
term.

Control of treasury

The treasury team, which reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer, substantially manages the
financing, including debt, interest costs and foreign exchange for the Group. Treasury policy continues
to be focused on the efficient and effective management of cash and finandal resources within the
Group. The activities of the treasury function include the following:

» ensure that lenders’ covenants are mat;

o sepure funds through a balanced approach to financial markets and maturities;

* manage interest rates to minimise financial exposures and minimise interest costs,

o invest temporany surplus cash to best advantage at minimal financial risk;

*  maintain an excellent reputation with providers of finance and rating agences;

» enhance controd of financial resources;

* mohitor counterparty credit exposure,
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19,

Financial instruments |continued)
Financing structure

The Group's regulated water and water recycling business, Anglian Water Services Limited, is funded
predomirately by debt in the form of long-term bonds and other debt instruments through its financing
subsidiary Anglian Water Services Financing Pic. At 31 March 2024, Anglian Water's net debt to capital
walue ratio (net debrt as defined in the Common Terms Agreement expressed as a percentage of Anglian
Water's regulated capital value) was 68.8 per cent (2023: 65.6 per cent]

The Group has also raied finance within Ospray Holdeo Limited, and Osprey Acguisitions Limited
through its financing subsidiary Anglian Water (Osprey) Financing Plc.

Borrowing covenants

The Groug's borrowings are raised by Osprey Holdco Limited, Osprey Acquisitions Limited, Anglan
Water |Osprey) Financing Pic and Anghian Water Services Financing Plc. The treasury function monitors
compliance against all financial obligations and it s the Group's policy to manage the balance sheet so
as to ensure operation within covenant restrictions, There were no covenant breaches in the year,
Please refer 1o compliance certificate sent 1o security trustee and uploaded on our website* for detailed
covenants.

Management of financial risk

Financial risks faced by the Group Include funding, nterest rate, contractual, currency, liquidity and
credit risks. The Group regularly reviews these risks and has approved written policies covering treasury
strategy and the use of financial instruments to manage risks,

A Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, including the Chief Financial Officer and the Group
Treasurer, meets monthly with the specific remit of reviewing treasury matters. Relevant treasury
matters are reported to the board.

The Group aims to meet its funding requirements primarily through accessing a range of financial
markets such as public bond markets, private placements, bank loans and linance leases, Surplus cash 5
invested in short-term bank deposits, commercial paper, centificates of deposit, treasury bills and AAA
rated maney funds.

The Group also enters into defivative transactions [comprising currency, index-linked, interest rate and
energy swaps) to economically manage the interest, currency and commaodity risks to which the Group
is exposed.

Market risk

] Forelgn currency

The Group has currency exposures resulting from debt raised in currencies other than sterling and very

smiall purchases in foreign currencies. The Group's forelgn exchange policy allows for a range of hedge
instruments, including forward foreign exchange, swaps and options, to hedge such exposures.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk {continued)

i) Foreign currency {continued)
All hedges are undertaken for commerdial reasons with the objective of minirmising the impact of
exchange rate fluctuations on niet assets and profits. The Group has no material enhedged monetary

assets and lighifities denominated in a currency different from the local currency of the particular
operation and has no material net exposure to movements in currency rates,

Where exposures arise out of debt ssuances in currencies other than sterling, this risk is hedged using
CTOSS CUFTency INferest rate swaps ofy the date the debt Exuance & contracted. The Group assesces the
economic relationship by comparing the currency cash flows on the underlying debt item with the
currency cash fliows on the hedge instrument 1o ensure an exact offser of the specific forelgn currancy
flows of the debt i achieved, This results in 3 notional hedge ratio of one for all foreign currency hedge
relationships. Both cash flow hedge accounting and fair value hedge accounting are applied 1o manage
foreign currency risks a5 appropriate and detailed below,
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk (continued)
[} Forelgn currency (continued)

Growup
Wilithin Between Between
e one and fiue and
year ol years 25 years Total
mi m m m
At 31 March 2024
Foreign currency borrowings - hedged item
Py - . 22,5000 22,500.0
ush - 1380 - 380
Cab - - 4500 3540.0
Cross currency mierest rate swap - cathfow hedge
147 . - [155000)  (15.500.0)
usD - (84.0) - (B9.0

CAD =

(350.00 (350.0)

Cross currency mterest rate swap - fair value hedge

I¥y > . {F.000.0) {7 /Dol 0
sk o {2450 = [1243.0)
Hiet curmency expoture - -

Weighted average spot rate

IFY - - 154 4 S
ush t 14 =

CAD . - 1@

At 31 Maorck 2033

Foreign cutrency borrowings - hedgad item

=y - <, 14,0000 14,000.0
uso 1700 1850 5340 F08.0
CAD = = 350.0 3500
Cross currency interect rate swap - cashflow hedge

Y T p {T.000.00 (T.000.00
usp {10.8] (36.0] (53.0) (988
CAD - - (350.0) [350.0)

Cross curmency Interest rate swap - falr value hedge
¥y - - [7.03000) [7.000.0)
ush [159.2] [225.0] 3 [208.2)

MEt currency aposuse =

Weighted average spotrats

1=y = o 1383 -
ush i5 14 13

CAD . . ig
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk {continued)

i} Foreign currency (continued)

Hedge ineffectiveness on currency hedging primarily results from situations where we have taken the
economic decision (in line with Treasury policy) to chamge our foed and floating portfolio mix. Whare
this has required existing hedged positions to be changed, the existing hedge is de-designated and the
replacerment hadge will generate effectivenass. This ineffectivensacs reprasents the difference between
the amartisation of the effective balance of the hedge on the date of de-decignation (releaced on 3
straight line basis) and the dynamic change in the value of the derivative as it trends to 2ero, In addition,
ineffectiveness can result from credit risk (which is present in the derhvative but cannot be modelied as
part of the hedged risk),

Fair valuation movements related to foreign currency basis which forms part of the pricing of cross
currency interest rate swaps, are treated as a cost of hedging for all foreign currency hedge designations
within the Group, A5 such, it is sxcluded from hedge relationships and is only a source of ineffectiveness
where hedge accounting has been interrupted.

The changes in fair value of the foreign currency basis spread, accumufated in the cash flow hedging
reserve, are amortised to profit or loss on & rational basis over the term of the hedging relationship.

ii} Interest rate ond inflation rate risk

The Group's policy for the management of interest rate risk is to achieve a balanced mix of funding at
indexed (to RP1 or CPf), fived and floating rates of interest. To guard against the adverse movements in
interest rates having a detrimental impact on the business and to enable covenanted obligations and
eredit ratings to be met, the overall underlying debt portfolio s maintained at between 45 and 55 per
cent of RCV for index-linked debt and between 5 per cent and 15 per cent for floating rate debt, with
the rernaining being fixed rate. Within these hedging levels, the Group endeavours to obtain the finest
rates {lowest borrowing and finest depositing rates) consistent with ensuring that the relevant treasury
objectives are met in full, Le. the provision of adeguate finance for Anglian Water Senvices Group at all
times and maintaining security of principal on investments.

The Group's interest rate rigk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Graup to cash flow interest rate risk, which Is partially offset by cash held st variable rates.
Borrowings issued at fixed rate expose the Group 1o fair value inTerest rate sk, Treasury manages its
interest rate risk by monitoring market rates in refation to the debt (and investment) portfolios,
analysing the effect of likely movements in interest rates and 1aking action as deemed appropriate,
within the hedging limits outlined above,
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk {continued)
ii) Interest rate ond inflation rate risk (continued)

Thie table below summarises the impact of derivatives on interest rate and inflation risks within the debe

portfolio:
Group
Posr Effactwe
Dabt Savap T inbarest:
pasitisn impact pesitian rate
Em tm £m b ]
At 31 March 2024 N - ' N
Fined (5,487.7) 15216 [3.566.1) 52
Floating (1,387 [533.3) [1,835.0) 83
Index-linked (3,319.3) (17358 (50553 B8
leases 124.1) * (24.1) 7
(10,230.8) (353.6)  (10,584.4)
AF 31 Barch 1023
Fixeed {5,072.9) 1,505.0 (3,567.9) 48
Floating {936.7) (1228)  [LOS9S} 218
indgu-linked (3,073.0) {1.723.1) [4.795.1) T8
Leases {27.1) (27.1) 15
(%,109.7) [339.9) 19448 £}

Where exposures arising out of debt issuances are swapped this risk is hedged using cross currency

interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps or inflation swaps. The Group assesses the economic

relationship by comparing the cash flows on the underlving debt instrument with the offsetting cash
flows on the hedge to ensure an exact offset of the spedified notional value of the debt is achieved. This
results in a notional hedge ratio of one for all interest rate hedge refationships, Both cash flow hedge
accounting and fair value hedge accounting are applied as appropriate.
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Financial instruments |continued)

Market risk {continued)
ii) Interest rate and inflotion rate risk {continued)

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting primarily consist of those relationships which swap

dabt into inflation. The table below outlines the Group's exposures to interest rates from dervative
swaps in isofation {excluding offsetting debt instrument cashflows).

At 31 March 2024
fnterest rote swaps
Flosting 1 foed
Fixed tofloating
FHuzd 1o fieed

Inflation swaps
Floating 1o &P
Fiwed o LRI
Floating to CF

Cross curmency swaps
)

usp
CAD

Tatal

At 31 March 2023
Interest rate swaps
Hoating o fmed
Flaied to Mlosting
Foeed to foued

Inflation swaps
Floating to RPI
Flyed ta CP)
Floating to CPI

Cross currency swaps
1Py

USh

CAD

Total

) Group
Within  Betwesn  Betwesn
one ne and fivmand  After 25 Mark to Eniwrest rate
wear  fiwe years 25 years years market  [weighted svesags]
£m Em Em £m Em  payable recehable
- 95.0 2500 - {22.3] 41 33
75.0 785 G450 {46.5] 5.0 X
- 316.2 5151 6.2 38 15
150.0 = 215.0 15049 [358.4] 3.1 5.7
- - 5659 100.0 [1575) 1o ik
F 1504 ™ {29.1] 14 55
z = 1858 [30.4] 45 1.3
- 165.8 - - 143 50 3.1
- 2248 f10.1] E 4.5
2230 L33 27220 2105 (6334)
89.0 500 113 28 13
- iz 1483 - (76.1] <8 18
2188 3625 (54.3] 35 1.7
150:0 2350 1508 {391:0) 35 30
- - 5655 00 {165 1] 05 16
= 150.4 {42.5] (] 18
- - 1f.2 (16.7] 32 .49
1105 17 404 470 34 A5
= = 2148 (0.3} EN.| 45
1105 13287 22682 2908 (6977]
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk {continued)
ii) Interest rate ond inflation rate risk (continued)
We foflow critical terms match approach for assessing hedge effectivensss. Hedge ineffectivenass can

result from courterpanty credit risk (which is present in the derivative but not in the hedged risk), The
maturity profile of interest rate swaps in a cash fiow hedge or fair value hedge relationship are given

below.
e — - Group gnd Campary
Within Batwasen Batwean
one one and fweand  After 35 Mark to Imteress rate
year  five years 25 yaars PEAE marker (ursighted averags)
£m Em £m £m Em payabla  receivable
Ar 31 March 2024
Interest rale swaps
Floating to Tied — Cash
ficwr hedge . 5.0 : . {0.2] 41 e
Fleed to Aoating — Falr
Walus hodge : 5545 750 - (54.8) LE 18
At 31 Mareh 2023
Interest rate swaps
Floating to fixed = Casth
flow hedge = 250 250.0 = 3038 LE il
Fioeed to floating - Fair
Valus hedge - 4512 1483 - 1563.1] 29 ia

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging
derivatives. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined
interest rate shift.

The sensitivity of the Group's profits and equity, including the impact on derivative financial
instruments, to potential changes in interest rates at 31 March is as follows.

. fGroup.
2034 b r |
£m £rn
Increasef|decrease] In equity
1% increase in interest rates 0.3 152
1% decreass ininterest rates (0.2} (170
Increasef|decrease) in profit before tax
1% Incraase In Interest rates T1.E 1690
1% decreasa in inferest rates [5Eh3) (217.8)

Given the bong-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
aof inflation Iin the current environment, one per cent has been used for sensithvity anakysis as this
represents 2 reasonable slternative markst movenant, as well as 2 useful benchmark change In the long
term,
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19.  Financial instruments [continued)
a) Market risk {continued)
ii) Interest rate and inflation rate risk (continued)
The following assumptions were made in calculating the interest rate sensitivity analysis:

» cash flow and fair value hedge relationships remain effective;

« the main fair value sensitivity to interest rates is in relation to inflation-linked derivatives;
o cash flow sersitivity is calculated on floating interest rate net debr, and

» 3l other factors are held constant,

Debt instruments
The following analysis shows the impact of a one per cent change in RP and a one per cent change in
CPl over the 12-month period to the reporting date on index-finked debt instruments.

The finance cost of the Group's index-linked debt instruments and derivatives varies with changes in
mflation rather than interest rates, These instrumants form an economic hedge with the Group's
revenues and regulatory assets, which are linkad 1o RPE and CPI-H inflation.

inflation risk is reported monthly to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group, which manages
inflation risk by identifying opportunities to amend the economic hedge currently in place where
deemed necessary,

The sensitivity a1 31 March of the Group's profit before tax to changes in RFI snd CPion debt and
derivative instruments i st out in the following tables.

Group
2024 2023
n A
increasef|decrease) in profit before tax
1% increase in inflation (28.1) [22.8)
1% decrease in inflation 281 118

Given the long-term maturity of the financial instruments that make up the portfolio, despite high leveds
of infiation In the currant environment, one percant has been wsed for sensitivity anahysis s this
represents a reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
tarm.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
a) Market risk {continued)
ii) Interest rate and inflation rate risk (continued)
The fair values of the Group's RPHinked derfvatives are based on estimated future cash flows,

discounted to the reporting date, and these will be impacted by an increase or decrease in AP rates as
showwn in the following table. The sensitivity to CPI rates has been induded in the level 3 dischosure and

as such has not bean repaated,
. Group
ikl 20013
Em Em
Increasef(decrease) in profit before tax
1% incraase in 21 [137.1) (143 3]
1% decrease m RPI 112.5 112 3

Given the loAg-Term maturty of the financial insTruments that make up the portfolio, despite high levels
of inflation A the current emaronment, one per cent has been used for sensithaty analysis as this
represents @ reasonable alternative market movement, as well as a useful benchmark change in the long
Lerm.,

i} Commaodity price risk
The Group recovers (ts electricity costs through revenie, set in real terms by Ofwat, to cover costs for

each five-year regulatory pricing perod, To the extent that electricity prices remain floating over this
period, this exposes the Group to volatility In its operating cash flow,

The Group's policy Is to manage this risk either through forward purchases to fix the cost of future
biocks of electricity with the contracted energy supplier, through the purchase of wholesale electricity
swaps with financial counterparties, or through direct peneration. Where swap contracts are utilised,
the Group designates all the swaps in cash flow hedge relationships.

Within Betwesn Betwesn
oRE N and five and fllari 10
year fove years X5 years market
L W W Em
Ar 31 March 2024
Elactricity swap 17.2 51.0 . {21.4)
Ax 31 March 2023
ERectricity swap g27 855 4.0 07

Hedge ineffectiveness primarily results from counterparty credit risk {which is present in the derivative
but cannot be modelled as part of the hedged risk). There & no hedge ineffectiveness on any of our
swap contracts,
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189,

b)

Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk {continued)

i} Commaodity price risk (continued)

Assurming afl energy hedges were in effective hedging refationships, a 10 per cent increase/decreass in
commodity prices would have the following impact:

Group
2034 Foir
El:n. £m

Increasef{decrease) in equity
1% incradse in origingl prices 3.7 10.3
108 doerease in original prices (3.7 (10.3)

10 per cent has been used for sensitivity analysis as this represents a reasonable alternatise market
maovement, as well as a useful benchmark change.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises principally from trading and treasury activities. From a trading perspective, the Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk due to minimising the risk through the effective
management of customer relationships and through the collateralisation inherent in the licensing of
business retail activities. The Group's largest trade receivable balance is in Anglian Water Services
Limited, whose operating licence prevents the disconnection of water supply to domestic customers
even where bills are unpaid. Irrecoverable debt is taken into consideration as part of the price review

procecs by Ofwat, and therefore no additional provision is considered necessary in excess of the
prowision for expected credit loss allowance included in note 15

Piacements of cash on deposit expose the Group to credit risk against the counterparties concemed.
The Group has credit protection measures in place within agreemeants that provide protection in the
event of counterparty rating downgrade or default. The Group only places cash deposits with banks of
uppar investment grade (2s measured by reputable rating agencies) and also weeks 1o diversify exposure
such that concentration with individual banks is avoided. The credit rating applied to all counterparties
i reviewed manthly and on an angoing basis.

All eash and eash deposits are held with institutions with a minimum of two short-term ratings of
P1/AL/FL or higher, or in the tase of money market funds with a minimum of two ratings of Aaam
MAL-+/AAAM/AAAmmS or higher.

in the case of derivatives, the following table sets out the Group's financial assets and liabllities and the
impact of any enforceable master netting arrangements.

Financial assets and liabilities on different transactions ars only reported net If the transactions are vath
the same counterparty, 3 legal nght of offset exists and the cash flows are intended 1o be settled on 2
net biasis, Amounts that do not meet the criteria for offsetting on the balance sheet but could be settled
net in the event of default of either party have been reflected in the offsetting column below,
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19. Financial instruments |continued)
b) Credit risk [continued)

Group policy requires that transactions are ohly executed with counterparties which are hoth (a) from
the lending Group and (b rated at least A- (long-term) or Al (short-term) by Standard & Poor’s,

Moody's or Fitch.

Group
Diffsetting
Mot amaoumt nait
Grosz  presentedin  pressnted in
[AImying 1he halance the balance iH
AMOUNES shaat sheat amount
Em Im Em Em
Al 31 March 2023
Derivative finamcial assets 2340 2340 [12.4) 1316
Derivative financial Fabilities (8893} [8E9.9) 124 [ET6.9)
At 31 March 2023
Derivative MNnangial assans 2502 2502 {93.1} 1571
Darivative financial kabiitias (247 2) {947.32) 931 (B54.1)

Gross amounts offset represent equal and opposite transactions with the same counterparties and same
terms on which no settlements are paid, Offserting not presented in the batance sheet reflects the
extlent 1o which derivative assets and liabilities could be offset with the same counterparty in the event
of counterparty default.

A1 31 March, the maximum exposure 1o credit risk for the Group is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the Group balance sheet:

fGroup
2024 2033
Em £m
Cash and cash equivalents al5.4 10D
Trade and other receivebles 657.4 5589
Inyestmants - cash deposits 5521 3167
Derivative financhal assets 134.0 1503
Camaany
2034 01
I_rﬂ. Em

Trade and other recetvables B0 ML

Note 2c details the assessment made for the expected credit losses for trade and other receivables.
Mone of the other financial azzets are credit impaired,
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b)

c)

d)

Financial instruments |continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Company, s part of the Anglian Water Senvices Financing Group, guarantees unconditionally and
irrevocably all the borrowings and derivatives of Anglian Water Sendces Financing Plic, which at 31
March 2024 amounted to £8 911 9 million (2023: £8,080.1 million). The borrowings of Anglian Water
Services Holdings Limited and Anglian Water Sendces UK Parent Co Limited are also guaranteed
unponditionally and irrevocably by the Company. Angiian Water Services Holdings Limited and Anglian
Water Services UK Parert Co Limited had no outstanding indebtedness at 31 March 2024 (2023; £nil).

During the period to 31 March 2024, there has been no change to the Group's position from that
disclosed in the 31 March 2023 consolidated financial statements.

Capital risk management

The prime responsibility of the Group’s treasury function s the efficient and effective management of
financial resowrces within the Group, i.e. the provision of adequate finance and liguidity at all times
while maintaining security of principal. This involves focus on effidency, quality and effective control to
improve cash flow certainty and profitability. The treasury function will actively seek opportunities to
raise debt, to reduce the cost of funding and the cost of hedging interest rate and foreign exchange risk
while maintaining a risk-averse position in its liguidity management and in its control of currency and
interest rate exposures, The group does not have externally imposed capital requirements.

Recognising the level of gearing in the Group, and the long-term nature of the Group's asset base, the
Group is primarily funded from the debt capital markets. It is the Group's policy to maintain sufficient
cach and/or borrowing facilities to meet short-term commitrments and to provide working capltal
support/flexibility in treasury oparations in the event of chort-term difficulties in the capital markats.
The treasury tearn actively maintain a good financal reputation with rating agencies, investors, lenders
and other creditors, and aims 1o maintain the relevant key financial ratios used by the credit rating
agencies 10 determine the respective credit ratings, The Group does not have any externally impased
capital requirements.

Ligquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain flexibility, diversification and continuity of funding through access
1o different markets and debt instruments. Daily cash management is undertaken to calculate cash
position znd dealing requirements, and weekly and monthly cash forecasts are prepared to demanstrale
short/medium-term liguidity, covenant compliance and to inform investment strategy. Regular meetings
are held with cazh forecasters to understand cash variances and challenge latest forecasts. Consolidated
cash forecasts are presented to the Finance, Treasury and Energy Policy Group on a monthly basis.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity to cover 12 months’ working capital requirements, and the non-
regulated businesses are run on a cash-positive basis, Intermal policy is to maintain 18 months’ liguidity
in terms of capital expenditure and operating costs in Anglian Water Services Limited, and to refinance
maturing debt at least three months in advance, to ensure covenant compliance.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)

d) Liguidity risk {continued)

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities available at 31 March in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met at that date:

Group
2034 2003
Em Em

Expires:
Within one yesr 630.0 375.0
Between two and frve years 1.174.0 12550
1.804.0 16300

The Group's borrowing facilitbes of £1 802.0 milllon (2023; £1,630.0 milllon) comprize Class A debt
sevvice reserve fadlities totalling £294.0 million provided by HSBC Bank Ple, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation and Assured Guaranty; a E131.0 million operating and capital maintenance expenditure
reserve facility provided by Bardays Bank Plc, BNP Paribas Pic, Uoyds TSB Bank Plc and Bank of Nova
Scotia; two syndicated loan facilities totalling £925.0 million for working capital and capital expenditure
requirernents managed by Barclays Bank Ple in the robe of facility agent and syndicated to a pool of
relationship banks; a bilateral facility of £50 million with MUFG Bank and a bilateral facility of £60,0
million with Bank of China Umited for general corporate purposes.

Ospray Acquisitions Limited Group's borrowing facilities, additionally, consists of £324,0 million
undrawn revolving loan facilities for general corporate reguirements,

Borrowing facilities at Aigrette Financing Limited Group comprizes an additional £30.0 millien revolving
laan facility provided by Mational Westminster Bank Pic.
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19. Financial instruments |continued)

d) Liquidity risk {continued)

The table below analyses the Group's fingncial liabilities and derivative financial inslruments into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payable:

e Group
Within  Between  Between
ane one and free and  After 25
year  five years 25 years YEATS Total
£m £m Em_ Em £m
At 31 March 2024
Borrowings [7710] [4,285.7) [B,7508] (26B5E) (17.218.3)
Derivative financizl instrurnents (net sertiad] (77.5] {217.8) {834.4] [240.1) 11.389.9)
Derivative financial mstruments (gross settied
outflow] [22.4) {250.2] {472.3) [744.5)
Darivatve financial instrumants (gross settled
inflow) 68 24510 3663 . G281
Laases [6.4] i18.3] i3.5] {3.6) [34.7]
[BE1.1) {5.231.5) {8.357.1) (29096) (18.759.3)
At 31 March 2023
Borrowings [L367.6) [3403.4) (7857.2) (28023] [15430.5)
Derivative financizl instruments (net settied] {117 [£03.8) [776.7) [1243) [L3BG 4]
Derivative financial mstrurnents (gross settled
autflaw] [1315) {185.7) [£44.0] [#E5.2]
Derivatve financial instruments [gross settled
inflow] i58.5 208.0 35918 . TE0S
Leases (6.3 200 (73] 3.7 (379
(L3583) (38079) (BE933) {30002 (168398
Company
Within Betwean Batweoan
one one mnd frve @nd Afeer 25
year v yeary 15 years YEArs Tutal
_fm _fm Em Em _&m
At 31 March 2024
Trade and othar payables 1) = = =1 _ [ 5 4]
(0.1 (.1
Ar 31 March 2023
Trede and other payables 10.1) f0.1)
101 = = = i01)

We have used spot FX rates and forward interest rates to caleulate undiscounted cashflows.
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20.  Deferred tax

Brralerared Eetirement  Tax losses
tax Financial hanefit carmd
depretiation  nsruments  ohligstion Toreard et Totsl
At 1 Aprif 2023 1,860.0 (a4 1) 140 [366.9) 7.8) L.405.0
Charged/(credited) directly to
[P statamant 1323 A0 14 [18£.3) [1.5) 6.5
Charged directly 1o othar
comprahgnsiva income - {1.9) gl e c T [9.0)
At 31 March 2024 1,998.9 {42.2) 8.3 (553.2) (9.3} L402.5
At 1 April 2023 16888 [Z58.7) E78 [BE 1) (3.5} 13931
Charged/{credited) directly to
Incoma statemant 1712 1646 [ [$80.8) a.r 63.8
Charged directhy to otiher
carmprehensive income E— B> {31.7] e ———t R
At 31 March 2002 1,860,0 (=43 144 [366.9) (7.8} 1.405.0

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with 1AS 12 'Incorme Taxes'.
The Group has the following deferrad tax assets that are not recognised in the financial statements:

2024 M3
£m Em
Corporate interest restrictions 715 5749

Mew legislation was introduced from April 2017, restricting the amount of interest that a group can
offset against its tax Habilities in any year. Any amounts restricted are avaflable to carry forward against
future tax liabilities, so long as the company has the capacity to do so. The Directors bedieve it is
uncertain that the Group will have the capacity to utilise this disallowed interest, and therefore the
Group has not recogniced a deferred 1ax azeet in respect of these restrictions,

The Company
The Company Ras no deferred tax (2023 none).
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1.  Net retirement benefit surplus

Pension arrangements for the majosity of the Company’s UK employees are of the funded defined
benefit type through the AWG Pension Scheme (“AWGPS”) Main section and Hartlepool section (a
defined benafit scheme for the employees of the former Hartlepool Water Limited, where the pension
scheme was transferred on 1 April 2000 which 15 now a section of the AWGPS), The defined benefit
pension arrangements are dosed 10 new pension accrual with effect from 31 March 2018

The Company also manages an unfunded pension arrangement which has been valued by independant
actuaries [o take account of the requirements of LAS19 a< 3t 31 March 2024, The provigion for unfunded
pension obligations relates to the cost of enhancements of former employees, aver and above their
entitlement in the Company's pension schemes, The majority of these employeas ceased their
employment following redundancy pragrammes principally between 10 and 20 years ago. These
pension enhancerments are payable until the death of these former employees (or their dependants)
and payments are expected to be made over approximately 25 years.

The assets and liabilities refating 1o the defined benefit scheme for the employees of the former
Hartlepool Water Limited are held in 3 segregated section of the AWGPS. Hartlepool Water Limited was
acquired in July 1997, with trade and assets transferred 1o Anglian Water on 1 April 2000, However, &5
the Trustees assess the funding requirements of the Hartlepool section separately from the rest of
AWGPS, the Hartlepood section has been separatety disclosed in the tables below.

On 23 May 2022 a buy-out of the Hartkepool section was completed resulting in a settiement of
liabilities. However, we note there are still some residual assets in the section.

On 14 September 2022, the Scheme completed a full buy-in of the MPLAP section, with the result that
persions payable in the MPLAP section are matched by annuity polices.

Within these schemes, employess are entitled to retirement bensfits based on their final sakary and

length of service at the time of leaving, or closure of, the schemes, payable on attainment of retirement
age (or earlier death).

On 31 March 2018, following 2 period of consultation with representatives of all employess, the defined
benefit sections of the AWGPS (including the Hartlepool section) were closed for future accruals. From 1
April 2018 all employees now have the option to participate in & new high guality defined contribution
scheme which offers an eguitable scheme with mare flexible benefits.

The Group also has pension obfigations to former emplovees through the Morrison Pension & Life
Assurance Plan (‘MPLAP). In addition, pensions in payment to a number of former employees are
enfunded.

The administration and investment of the pengon funds are maintained separately from the finances of
the Group.

Full valuations as at 31 March 2020 have been completed for the AWGPS {including the Hartlepool
section) scheme, and for MPLAP, the results of which have been used as a basis for the 145 19
"‘Employee Benefits’ disclosures as at 31 March 2024,
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

The Group has a plan in place with the scheme’s trustees to address the funding deficit for the Main
Section of the AWGPS by 2026, through a series of annual deficit recovery contributions.

During the year, the Group contributed £nil (2023: £21.7 million) deficit reduction payments. There
were no deficit reduction payments (2023: nonej for the Hartlepood Section due to the funding position
an the funding basis at the 31 March 2020 valuation.

Contributions to MPLAP, including an allowance for expences, were Enil (2023: £4.4 million] during the
yEar.

in the year to 31 March 2025 employvers’ contributions are expected to be Enil.

The approximate weighted average duration of all the defined benefit obligation for AWGPS i 14 years,

The Group also operates a number of defined contribution schemes in the UK, and contributions to
these schemes amounted to £22.9 miflion (2023: £20.5 million). There is £nil outstanding balance on the
defined contribution scheme at year end (2023: Enil).

Court Ruling

A High Court legal rding in June 2023 (Virgin Media Limited v NTL Pension Trustees || Limited) decided
that certain rube amendments between 1997 and 2016 contracted out defined benefit schemes were
invalid if they were not accompanied by the correct actuarial confirmation. If the rufing stands it will
form part of case law and will be applied across other pension schemes, The judgement is subject to
appeal with a hearing scheduled for 25 June 2024,

The lawyers for the IMI 2024 Deferred Fund (the Fund), Sguire Patton Boggs, in conjunction with the
Fund administrators, Wills Towers Watson Ltd, are currenthy carrying out a review of the past amending
deeds. The risk of potential impact remaing and continues to be ascesded.
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

a) Principal actuarial assumptions

The liabilities of the Group’s pension schames have been valued using the projected unit method and
using the following assumptions:

: Ll
224 23
kpa bad
Discount rate 4.8 47
Inflation szt
RFI i3 N
Pl 28/2.7% 2gf17%
incressgs o deferred benefits durng deferment
RPI i3 34
iR 2.9/2.7% 2673 78
Increases to inflation related pensions in payment 3
BFI 3.2 3.3
CPI _LONFAM  2e/w/aT
years years
Longevity ot age 65 for cirrent penskoners [years)
Men 5% 31 970 4
Waman 243933 8 34 4433 giE
Longeuity 3t ag= 65 Tof futuse pensionars (yesrs)
Men 2881 78 33 il 7
Womaen 255510521 5 gligge i

A For RPI pension increases capped at 5 per cont par annupm.

* The life expectancy shown for future pensioners is for thase reaching 65 in 2044,
2 Life expectancies for ‘AWGPS' and ‘Unfunded pensioners’

# Lifo expectancies for ‘MPLAP'

& Inflation related assumptions for MPLAP
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1.
b)

€)

Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

consitivil fesi

The following table sets out the sensitivity of the fiabilities within the schemesto changes in the
finandial and demographic assumptions.

Unfunded
Changein  AWGPS Hartlepool  MPLAP  pensions  Towl®
arsumptian Em £m £m Em £Em
Ar 31 March 2024
Discount rate +.05%pa 6573 - 8/10 A2 .75/85
Rate of RPI inflation +/-05%pa  G66/60 - 5/-5 2f1 7366
Life expectancy +-1year  34/31 - B/-6 11 438
At 31 March 2023
Discount rate +-0.5% pa £E/76 - 1011 -1/t -BOfEg
Rzte of RPI inflation +/-0.5% pa 57/-56 - 555 21 BB
Ute expactancy H-lyear 3333 R 1 ao/-40

¥ pue fo rounding. s0me rowe rmay nof 5dd up to the hotal.

Changes to market conditions that influence the assumptions above may also have an impact on the
value of the schemes’ investment holdings. The extent to which these are managed is discussed in
section (o) below. The sensitivities in the table above have been caleulated by changing the key
assurmption and leaving all others fived, with the exception of the RPHinflation assumption, which has a
corresponding mpact on Consumier Prices Index ("CPI') inflation, pension increases and salary Increases
due 1o the way the assumptions are derived, These changes in assumptions represent a reasonable
alternative range, as well as a useful benchmark change,

Risk and risk management

The Group's defined benefit pension schames, in common with the majority of such schemes in the UK,
have 3 number of areas of risk. These areas of risk, and the ways in which the group manages them, are
set out below.

The risks are considered below from both 3 funding perspective [which drives the cash commitrments of
the Growp) and from an sccounting perspective, i, the extent 10 which such risks affect the amounts
recorded in the Group's financial statements,
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

c) Risk and risk management (continued)

Asset volatility

For the purpese of setting the contribution requiréments, the calculation of the value of the liabilities
uses 3 discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return
to be generated from the investment portfalio. Under [AS 19, the defined benefit obligation is calculated
using 3 discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields.

The schemes hold a propartion of thetr assets in retum-seekang funds. The return on these asets may
be volatife and are not correlated 1o the value of the Habilities. This means that the deficit may be
volatile in the sharter term, which may lead 1o an increase in the contribution reguirements and an
increate inthe net defined benefit lisbility recorded on the balance cheet,

The Group believes that returm-seeking assets offer an appropriate level of return over the long-term for
the level of risk that is taken. The schemes’ ather assets are well diversified by investing in a range of
asset classes including government bonds and corporate bonds. The allocation 1o growth assels i
monitored o ensure i1 remains appropriate given the schemes’ long-term objectives.

Change in bond yields

A fall in bond vields intreases the value placed on the liabilities for reporting purposes and for setting
the Group's contribution reguirements, Howsver, in this scenario the schemes’ Investment in corporate
and government bonds and lability-driven investments is expected to increase and therefore offset
some of the increase in the value placed on the fiabilities,

Price infiati

The majority of the schemes' benefit obligations are linked to inflation and higher out-turn inflation will
lead to a higher benefit obligation {although in most cases caps on the level of inflaticnary increases are
in place to protect the plan against extreme Inflation). A significant propartion of the schemes’ assets do
not provide 3 direct hedge against changes in inflation as they are sither fixed-interest in nature
{corporate bonds snd government bonds), or have an indirect fink to inflation (equities).

Life expectancy
The majority of the schemes’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member and, as such,

the schames’ liabilities are sensitive to these assumptions. This is parficutarly significant where the
longer duration and inflatlon-linked nature of the payments result in higher sensitivity to changes in life
expectancy, The schemes do not contain 3 hedge against increases in future fife expectancy.
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

d) Amounts recognised in comprehensive income

ey
Unfunded
AWGFS  Hartlopool MPLAR pEnsions Total
£m Em £m £m _&m
FLiFL]
Amounts credited/(charged) to fimance
st
Interest income on scheme assets 51.3 b - 581
Intesest cost on schama lisbikties (47.2) — [6.8) {L3) [55.3)
Netinterest income/[expense) 41 - (1.5) 2.6
Amaounts credited/{charged) to the income
satement 4,1 - 11.5) 2.6
Amounts aredited/(charged) 1o other
comprehensive income
Returm on plan ssets [xciuding smownts
included in ngt interast) (6.0 05 [1.49) - [7.4)
Actuarizl losses arlsing from:
Charges in financial ssumptions 351 14 0.9 384
Experience adjustments (8.8) 05 (02 {95
Het charge to other comprehensive income 2T S 0.7 (28.5)

177



Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)
d} Amounts recognised in comprehensive income |continued)

Unfunded
AWGEFS Hartlzpaol MPLAF DEnshan Total
Em £ Ty Erm Em
2023
Amounts oredited eharged) o finance
Costs:
InEarest InCoMme on schame assats 432 0.2 6.9 - 503
Interest cost on scheme lishilities {37.4] 0.1} i5.4] {1.1) [44.00
Wit interest income|axpansa) =8| 0l 15 (11) B3
Amounts credied)[charged) to the meoma
statement 58 0.1 15 Ly 63
Amounts credited,|[cherged) to other
comprehentive intome
Retum on plan asieds (poduding amownts
included in net interest| [519.2] (3.3} {1084 . (B30.9)
Actuarial losses arlsing from
Changes in financial assumptions 4393 i3 57.4 85 G085
Experiance adjustments {745} = &9} (23] (B4 1)
MNet [charge)/credit to other comprehensive
InCome (154.8) [L.op (579) 721 [206.5]
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)
g] Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2024

Equities

Corporate bonds
Govermment bonds

Propefty
AETnathags

Fooled LD Investmeants (with def of LD

Dierivatives

Repurchases

Imsuramoe contract

Cash and cash equivzlents
Othar

Total assets

Fresent value of scherme habilities

W&t penslon surplus

Comprising

Fension schemes with 2 net surplus,

included in non-furrent assets

Fension schermes with a met deficit,

included in non-turrent fizbilEties

AWOPS

£8.3
3260
788.7
333
731
752
(26.5)
(425.1)

1175

1,061.5
{550.1)

624

624

62.4

145.6
0.4
145.0
{145.6)

0.4

04

04

(30.9)
(30.9)

(3031

1309

Grou

Toal

J26.0
Ty
13.3
73.8

126.3)
(425.1)
145.6
118.3

1.208.6
{1.175.5)

13.0
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)
e] Amounts recognised in the balance sheet |continued)

2023

Equities

Corporate bonds
Govermment bonds
Fropefty
Alternatives

Fooled LD Investmeants (with def of LD

Dierivatives

Repurchases

Imsuramoe contract

Cash and cash equivzlents

Totat afsets

Fresent valuz of scheme liabilitias
Mt pansion surplus

Comprising:

Fendgion schamas with 3 nat surplus,

included in non-Cwrrent assets

Pensicn schemes with a net deficiy

includad in non-current lablitles

N Groug
Unfundoed
AWGPS Hastlepont MPLAD PEMEHINE Total
Em Em Em Em Em
84.0 . . - 24,0
2571 - - . 297.1
11367 0.6 . 5 11403
7.0 3 - = £7.0
815 . . . 816
73.0 - - - 7.0
150.4) = E = (50.4)
{730.3) - - - [730.3)
. . 148.0 149.0
1552 = 0.4 = 155.6
11179 08 146.4 s 13678
(1,029.9) - 1145.0) {33.0)  (L2118)
880 0 DA {33.0] 56,0
g2 0 0.6 0.4 . g0
_ = {330 (33.0)
BB.0 08 04 {33.01 56.0

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group’s own financial instrumants, nor any property
occupled by, nos other assets used by, the Group. Most of the assets kave quoted prices in active
markets, but there are corporate bonds, alternative investments and insurance contracts, which are

unguated amoaunting 1o £98.3 million (2023: £235.0 million],
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M. Net retirement benefit surplus [continued)

f] Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

Group
Unfended
AWGPS  Hartlepool MPLAR pEnEIon Totsl
£m Em Em Em Em
&1 1 April 2023 L1I7%5 06 145 4 L.267.9
interast income on scheme assets 513 BB . |
Employers’ contributhons - - - 458 1.3
Banefits padd (517} = [E.3) [2.9) |62.9)
Return on plan aesets (aucleding interest
intams) (36.0) 05 [L.9) = [57.4]
At 31 March 2024 1LD6L.5 11 146.0 1. 1.6
At 1 April 2022 16320 185 235.0 19055
irterest income on scheme assets 432 aa B9 - 0.3
Emplayers contributions 218 = 43 237 28.8
Bonafits paid [59.9) {01} [E4) iy (711
Curtsilments/Settlements [14.7) - (14.7)
Raturn on plan asien (suciuding Interest
ncone) [519.2) {33 [10d.4) [630.9)
At 31 Maich 2023 11178 0.6 1404 1.267.9
gl Reconciliation of scheme Rabilities
Group
Uinfanded
AWGPS  Hartiepool MPLAP penzians Total
Em Em Em £m Em
Ar 1 April 2033 {1,083} - [1a%.0) (23.0] 11.211.9)
Interest cosl on stheme labilities 27243 % [6E) (15) [55.3)
Benafits pald 51.7 - g3 18 62.9
Actuarial gaing 263 - 149 0.7 28,5
At 31 March 2024 {984.1) - {145.6) [30.9) (1.175.5)
At 1 Apnil 2022 (141648]) (1700 [202.6) [41.58] 11.678.2)
Interest cost on scheme liabilites {37.4) {01} [5.8) i1.1) [44.0
Barmafits paid 594 il 85 17 71.2
Actuarnial g2ins 3644 23 S5 1.2 4.4
Curtailraents and settlerments - 147 - - 14.7
AL 31 March 2023 {1.029.9} = [145.0] {33.0] i1.211.9)
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22, Stated capital

i Sl Comphy
2024 2023
£m Em

Allotted, issued and fully paid

14,843 754 A ardinary no par value thared -
a56,246 B ordinary no par walue shares -
105,631,487 794 redesmzble praference no par values shares -

There were nd movemants in the number of shares allorted, ssued and fully paid in either the current
oF preceding year,

The B ordinary shares rank pan passu in all respects with the A ordinary shares except that the holders
of B ardinary shares shall not have a right 1o speak or vote at any general meetings or by written
resolution in respect of their haldings of B ordinary shares in redation to the appointment or removal of
Directors,

The holders of preference shares shall be entitled to recelve any dividends resolved 1o be distributed
pro rata to their holdings of preference shares. On a distribution of assets of the Company among its
members on a winding up or other return of capital {other than a redemption or purchase by the
Company of its own shares), the holders of the preference shares shall be entitled to receive in priority
to any holder of any other class of shares, an amount equal to the aggregate of the capital paid up on
their preference shares and participate in any surplus arising. The preference shares are redeemable at
the option of the Company at a price to be determinad by the Board of Directors. Tha preference shanes
do not carmy amy voting nghts. During the year endad 31 March 2024, no dividends were paid (2023:
£91.2 million) by the Company to its consortium of shareholders based on their respective shareholding
as el out in page 2.
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23, Hedging reserve

ar 1 April

Losses on energy cash Tow energy hedges

[Lessesi/gaing on other cash flow hadges

Amounts ransferred to the income statement

Amiounts transferred 1o the Income statement from dacontinued cash Now
hedges

Ewchange movement on hedging instruments related to debts in cash flow
hedges

Daferrad tax movernant on hedge relationships

At 31 March

Cost of hedging reserve

At 1 Agril

[Losses)/gains on hedge relationshigs

Defarred tax movamant on hedge relationships
At 31 March

The hedging recerve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains and losses arising on the

2024 2023
£m tm
17.8 W04

(50,2} {32.9)
(0.9 48 7
1.5 {40.0j

1.8 EQ
14.6 111
13 o
14.9 17.8
2074 203
£m m
17 0.3
2.7 18
0.6 (0.4
jo.4) 17

change in fair value of hadging instruments, excluding those fair value movements identified as costs of
hediging within the spedific hedge relationship. The cost of hedging resenve captures the movement in

the fair value of the ost of hedging component.

The Company
The Company has no hedging reserve (2023; nane).
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23, Hedging reserve [continued)

The tahle below provides additional information in relation to the annual movements and cumufative

closing positions on the cash flow hedge reserves.

Group
Annual movemants Cumulative resemnes
Deformed
Hedge Total hedge Total hedge fax
Hedzed mem  ineffecrivensss TEGEFVES reserves  onhedges  Toral hedge
gainf{loss) gain continuing  discontinued rasErvas TEEErVes
£ Erm Em iy Er L
At 31 March 2024
Cagh fiow hedge of
mierest rate risk [73.2) 31 160 (4.6} 145
At 31 March 2023
Cash fiow hedge of
mierest rate risk 126.1) = S 135.4) (B.5), 135

24, Capital commitments

The Group has a substantial long-term investment programme within Anglian Water, which includes
expenditure to meet regulatory requirements, shortfalis in performance and condition, and to provide
for new demand and grawth. The commitments shown below reflect the value outstanding of orders

placed at 31 March.

Proporty, plant and gquipment
Intangible assets

Giroup
Mk Ml
Em Em
305.8 2158
SBE 262
3644 #431

There were no capital commitments relating 1o the Group's share of joint ventures.

The Company
The Company has no such commitments (2023 none).
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25,  Lease arrangements
The Group leases various items of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are included
within property, plant and equipment on the balance sheet, further details can be found In note 12,
Lease liabilities are included within Bormowings on the balance sheat, further detalls can be found in

nate 18,
Group
2074 20213
£m Em
Additians 1o night-of-ise assels 1.6 b.d
Daprechation charge for nght-of-use assats {6.9] [6.5]
Carrying amount of rght-of-use assets 65.6 65
Intarest axpancg on leass labilives 1.1 08
Expence relating to shart-term leases 24 E i)
Total cash outfiow for leeses comprising interést and capital payments {8.1 (7.2
Reconciliation of lease lability
Cortractual undisoounted cash Nows 347 379
Etface of discounting i6.2) (66
Lease labifity 285 33

The Group leases certain items of plant and egspment, a5 well as vehicles, under short-term leases. At
31 March 2024, the Group had £0.4 million {2023: £0.1 million) outstanding commitrents in respect of
Tuture minkmum lease payments under non-canceliable short-term keases. The Group does not typically
leace low value astets and therefors no material costs were incurred individuslly or in aggregate in
refation to such assets,

A matunty anaksis of leace liabilities is induded within note 19,

Leases as lessor
The Group leases out its investment properties. During the year to 31 March 2024, rental income of £1.9
million {2023: £2.0 milllon) was ncluded within réevenus,
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26. Contingencies
In April 2020, circa 100 property search companies served proceedings on all the Water and Sewerage
Undertakers (“WASCs") in England and Wales, including Anglian Water Services Limited (" Anglian
Water"), seeking damages on the basis that information which the search companies had reguested
should have been provided free of charge or for a nominal fee pursuant to the Envirenmental
Information Regulations (“EIRY). In common with its co-defendants, Anglian Water has filed a robust
defence. A first stage trial took place during November and Diecember 2023 during which the court
heard arguments focussing on the extent to which the information requested by the Claimants fell
within the scope of the EIR. The court also heard evidence regarding the extent to which the
information was made available, At this stage the Directors consider, based on the judgement received
i relation to the first stage trial and legal advice received, that the daim is unlikely to succeed and, in
any event, would not to be material to the financial standing of the Company.

Ofwat and the Ermiranment Agency ("EA") launched industry-wide investigations in 2021 into

com pliance with conditions of environmental permits. Cfwat's focus is potential non-compliance with
legisiation and with licence conditions (referred 1o as the Flow to Full Treatment investigation). In
December 2023, Dfwat issued a press release explaining that it had notified Northumbrizn Water,
Thames Water and Yorkshire Water of its provisional findings in ight of the evidence that had been
gathered and that it was continuing to progress three further wastewater enforcement cases opened as
part of its investipation (including the case against Anglian Water), The EA's investigation (referred Lo as
Operation Standard) is also-ongoing. The Company has provided comprehensive information to bath
regulators and continues to engage positively with them,

in December 2023, Professor Carolyn Roberts (acting as proposed the Proposed Class Representative)
ssued proceedings against Anglian Water alleging that the Company has abused {and continues to
abusej its dominant position, in breach of section 18 of the Competition Act 1958. Paraliel proceedings
have been issued against five other WASCs. Professor Roberts alleges that the WASCs have provided
misteading information to the EA and to Ofwat with the result that Ofwat has allowed comparies to
charge customers higher prices for sewerage services than would otherwise have been permitted. As it
i proposed to progress the claim as a class action in the Competstion Appeal Tribunal on behaif of all
relevant customers, the caim will need 1o be cermificated before it can proceed 1o 3 substantive

trail. The Directors consider that this application of the Competition Act is extremely novel and that
thera are a number of significant hurdles which must be evercome by the Oaimant in connection with
this litigation, Accordingly, there is no basis to condude that the dlaim will be successful. There is also
material overkap between this claim and Ofwat’s and the EA's investigations (referred to above).

As iz normal for 8 company of this size and nature, it is subject to a number of other claims, disputes and
litigation., The Directors consider an appropriate position has been taken in reflecting such items in these
financial statements.
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27,

B)

Uttimate parent undertaking and controlling party

Anglian Water Group Limited, a limited liability company which is incorporated in lersey but tax resident
in the United Kingdom due to its business being centrally managed and controlled there, is the ultimate
parent company and controlling party of the Group. Anglian Water Group Limited ks itself owned and
uitimately controlled by 3 consortium of investors consisting of the CPPIB (Hong Kong) Limited, First
Sentier Investors, Infinity Investments 5.4, Global InfraCo {HX) E. Limited and Carmulodunum
Investments Ltd.

The address of the principal place of business for Anglian Water Group Limited is Lancaster House,
Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE23 6XU.

Related party transactions
Transactions with shareholders

The consortiurm of investars owning Anglian Water Group Limited are considered 1o be refated parties of
the Company as they each have the ability to influence the financial and operating policies of both the
Company and the Group.

On 08 June 2023, 3 loan of £462.0 million, with a maturity date of 29 June 2027 and an interest rate of
Bank of England base rate plus 6.5 per cent, was issued 1o the members of the consortium of investors
owning Anghan Water Group Limited, At 31 March 2024, the amount outstanding was £462.0 million
{2023: £462 .0 million), with interest of £41.1 millien [2023; £19.2 million) accrued but not paid. During
the year, interest of £25.4 million (2023; £25.4 million) was paid in respect of these loan notes.

During the year to 31 March 2024, there were no other transactions (2023; nane) with the shareholders.
Transactions with key management

Key management personnel comprise afl the directors and members of the management board during
the year, A scheme is in place 10 encourage investment in the Group by key management on an
equivalent basis as the consortium of shareholders, During the year £0.1 million (2023: £0.3 milllion) was
invested by key management, incurring a loss of £0.2 million in the yvear (2023: £0.1 million eaming). No
repayment was made in the year a5 part of this scheme. The £1.8m bond held by key management in
previous years has matured and there are no other bonds held by key management as a1 31 March

2024

Remuneration of key managemenl personnel

2024 2023

£m_ £m

Short-term employee benefits 7.2 6.9
Post-amployment banafins 04 03
756 74
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c) Transactions with joint ventures
The Group's transactions with its joint ventures are summarised below.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group made gross sales on an arms-length basis of £204.3
million (2023: £192.0 million} to the Wave joint venture, and recognised interest recesvable of £2.2
million (2023: £1.9 million). At 31 March 2024, the following amounts were due from the Wave joint
venlure:

*  A£10.7 million {2023 £10.7 million) 5.5 per cent mediurn-term loan repayable on 31 August 2027,
or such other date as mutually agreed betwesn the parties, included within investrmants in joint
ventures;

* A £16.7 million (2023: £16.7 million) loan at 12 manth LIBOR plus 2.75 per cent with no fixed
repaymeant date, included within trade and other raceivables;

* A F33 million (2023: £4.6 million | short-term working capital facility at one month LBOR plus 2.75
per cent, induded within trade and other recaivables; and

o Accrued income of £13.4 million [2023; £8.3 million), trade recenables of Enil million {2023: £nil)
and interest recaivable of £2.2 miltion (2023: £1.7 million), included within trade and other
recafvables.

d) Parent company
The Company's related party transactions are summarised below:

024 HIH
£m Em

Loans and other bormwings dos from
Subsidiaries 548.0 480

29,  Alternative performance measures

Financial measures or metrics used in this report that are not defined by IFRS are alternative
performance measures. The Group uses such measures for performance analysis bacause they provide
additional useful Information on the performance and position of the Group. Since the Group defines its
own alternative performance measures, these might not be directly comparable 1o other comparies’
alternative performance measures, Thase measures are nol intended 1o be 3 substiture for, or superior
ta, IFRS measurements and have been conststently applied within each year presented In these financial
statements.
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29,  Alternative performance measures (continued)

a)

ERITDA

Calculared as profit before net finance costs, tax, depraciation, and amortisation to gve a measure of
the Company's overall financial performance. Each element of this APM is shown on the face of the
income statement.

B)

Group

2024 2023

Em £

EBITDA 805.1 8000

et finance costs [419.8) {148.7)

Tax chargs 7.1 {e4.5]

Depreciation and amortisstion [391.8) (381.7)

Share of [oint ventures’ profit/{loss) after tax 2.4 [0.£]
{Lossl/profit for the period (11.2) i

Adjusted finance costs

Caleulated as net finance costs excluding fair value gains on derivative finanelal instruments. These fair
value gains are volatile, non-cash movernents that distort the actual underlying economic performance,

c)

Calculared as loss before tax excluding fair value gains on dervative financial instruments. The

Group
1034 1003
Em Em

Met finance costs excluding Tair value gaing on derivative financial
nstruments (624.7) [Fa5.0)
Fair value gains on derivative finandial instruments N B45.3

Met finance costs, ncluding fair value gams on derivative fimandal

instruments [419.8) (149.7)

Adjusted loss before tax/Loss before fair value gains

calcutation is shown on the face of the income statement. These fair value gains are volatile, non-cash
movernents that distort the actual underlying econarmic performance.

1014

Em

Adjusted loss before taxfLoss before fair value gains [211.4)

Tax charge (.1

Fair valug gains on derfvative lnansial Instruments 4.9

Share of joint venture's profit/[loss) after tax 4
(Lass)/profit for the pericd L2

Group
2023
im
(376.7)
(64.5)
B453
04

AT
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29,  Alternative performance measures (continued)
d}) Adjusted net debt

Adjusted net debt comprises borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents, and dervative financial
mstruments [excluding those in respect of fair value energy hedges). This measure 5 used because it
provides additional useful information in respect of the financing of the business, See note 16 and

below.

Met cash and cash equivalents
Current asset invastmants
Barrowings

Bt delit excluding derivalives

Dervatives
Less: gnergy darhvatig
Agjustad net delnt

Group

124 2023

im £m

605.4 51E.0

5521 3157
(10.540.7) 82238

{3.183.2) (B,389.1)

[655.3) (B87.7)
4 07

[9.817.1) (5.087.3)

As Anglian Water Senvices Limited accounts for the vast majority of the Group, the day-to-day operation
of the business is predominantly managed by employees of Anglian Water Services Limited. Due to this
relationship, the Group's values and reputation are highly integrated with that of Anglian Water Services
Limited and therefore interested parties should read the disclosure below, which is an extract from the
Anglian Water Services Limited annual integrated report {AIR]. As such, the alternative performance

rveasures referenced below refer to Anglian Water Services Limited.

) Interest cover

interest cover is the ability of the Company to pay interest of on its outstanding debt out of operating
cash flows. The table below shows the operating cash value less ROV depreciation, compared to the net

interast paid during the year to show the interest cover,

Cerating cash
RCY run off

Interest cash
et interest mcome excluded under CTA

Interest cover ratic

Group

2024 2023
£m £m
767.1 T10.9
{475.2} (423.5)
2919 267 4
(1818} [184.6)
(2.5) {0.8]
{184.3} [185.2)
(L6} 16

190



Anglian Water Group Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2024

29,  Alternative performance measures (continued)

i} Capital iInvestment

Capital investment s the total property, plant, and equipment, and intangibles additions less capitalised
interest, adopted assets, and capital additions in the non-appointad business. This is used as a measure

10 help 15 monitor how we are achieving our Business Plan commitments,

Property, plant and eguipment additions
Intangibe assets addition
Capitatised intarest

Adopted assats
Mon-appointed busingss
ftemms showr a5 stock
Capital investment

gl Free cash flow

. Giroup
1024 FIUrE]
Em £m
LO44.0 T34
58.2 B13
(1.0) (40.8)
(48.2) (46.0)
[1.3) (14
(18.3) {1.5]
963.4 725.0

Free cash flow is used in determining cach conversion and ks calculated as cash from operating actwvities,

less net interest of cash deposits, less capital maintenance,

Crperating cash

Intgrest on cash

Less: nat Interest income excluded under CTA
Capltal malntenance

Free cash fhow

30. Events after the balance sheet date

There have been no events between the balance sheet date, 2nd the date on which the financial

Group

2024 2023
im Em
7671 7ihe
{181.8) (184 B
(2.5} i€
1341.0) (326.2)
241.8 126 5

statements were approved by the Board, which would require adjustment to the financial statements or

any additional disclosures,
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1.

Group undertakings

The Group's subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2024 are shown below. Unless otherwise disclosed, all
subsidiary undertakings are Incorporated in the UK, are 100 per cent owned, and with a share class of

ordinary shares.

Owned directly by Anglian Water Group Limited
Dsprey Hoddeo Limined

Al subsidiary undertakings

Algrette Financing Limitad

Aizrette Financing [lssuer] Ple

Alexander Morrison Limited

Alpheus Ermdronmental Umined

Ambury Developments Limitsd

Anghan Venture Holdings Limited

Anghian Water {Irgland | Liméited

Angfign Water {Dsprey] Financing Plc
Anghian Water Direct Limited

Angiian Waber internations Holdings Uimited
Anghan Water Internationg! Limitad

Anghian Water Zervices Financing Flc

Angiian Watgr Services Holdings Limitad
Anglizn Water Services Limited

Anghian Water Services UK Parent Co Uimited
AVH Parks Limitad [formerty AWGE Utilinies Limited)
AVH Solar Limited

AWGE Business Centres Limited

AWG C4 Limitad

AWG Central Services Limited

AWGE Corporate Services Limited

AWG Group Limited

AWG Land Holdings Limited

AWG Quilet Centers Umited

AWG Parant Co Limitad

AWG Property Develepments [Ireland) Umited
AWGE Property Director Limited

AWE Property Limited

AWG Residantial Limaed

Hogistered

office

Parcentage
holding

o oo o o@D oo b oo R b o o B & b B ooy B @ b O oG
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3. Group undertakings [continued)

Al subisidiary undertakings (continued)
AWG Shelf 11 Limdmed

Cambuskang Aztadl Portfodio Limited
Ceftic Anglizn Water Limited

Chester [19493) Limited

C5 Amaniizs Limited

CWRP Relocation Limitéd

DBAWS B19 Limited

OMW5s 322 Umited

DAWS B23 Limited

DRAWS 524 (1P

Edmund Homigs Limited

Graham Street Airdre Retil Portfolio Limited
Macrocom [T43) Umited

Morrison [Oldeo) Limited

Morrson Glasha Limited

horrson International Lemited
Brrsan Limited

Morrisan Property Investrments Limited
Morrson Residential Properties Linited
NVE Rathdowngy Limited

(OHL Land Holdings Limited

OHL Piper Limsited

OHL Progarty Holdings Limitad

Ciprey Acguisitions Limited

Orsgrey Investoo Limited

Rutland Ingurance Limited

Tide Serwices Limited

Valuetype Limited

Wave environmental Limited

Wave Haldings Limited

Wave Uitifities Umited

Wave Warer Limdred

Ragistarad Percentaga
office holding

1]

]

£

a 575
]

E]

[i]

/]

b

b

E]

b

o

4]

b

B

]

b

B

4 e
]

@

]

E]

a

i §9.95%
a

a

]

]

1]

o
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3. Group undertakings [continued)

Ragistered Parcentage

office holding
Joint ventures
Anghan Water Bugina [Mational] Livited ] St
AWG Qutiets [Rathdowney) Limited L 0%
Cambridge 4 LLP E] 0%
City Road Properties [Chester) Limitad i E0%
Crowwood Grange esated Limited b 0%
Hofowstone Limited E Si
Kings Waterfront Properties Lirited 8 St
Mis rsah Gueent Limited E 50%
Motrzon Lengghan IRL Limited £ GO%
Marrian Properties Limited B L
Mofriton Residentisl Properties Limited b 0%
KWW Business Limited g S0
Bathdowney Shopping Centra Management Company Limited i Sk
Wava Ltd g S0k

B The principal place of business of these companies is the same as the registered office address,
Registered offices
a) Lancaster House, Lancaster Way, Ermine Business Park, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire, PE2S 6XU,
United Kingdom.
b} c/oBrodies LLP, Capital Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh EH3 8BP.
] Sulte 8 Northwood House, Northwood Business Campus, Santry, Dublin 9, Ireland,
d) 1 Stokes Place, 5t Stephens Green, Dublin 2, ireland,
] &th Aoor, Southbank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4, Ireland,
fl PO Bax 33, Dorey Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY1 4AT, Guernsey, Channel Islands.
gl Northumbria House, Abbey Road, Pity Me, Durham, DHL 5F), United Kingdorn.
For all companies, the registered office is located in the country of incorporation.
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3. Group undertakings [continued)
Registered offices

Under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006, Osprey Holdeo Limited gives a parent company

guarantee in respect of all outstanding liabilities as at 31 March 2024, until the liabilities are satisfied in

full, for the following subsidiary companies. Under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, the
following subsidianies are therefore exempt from the requirements relating to the audit of individual

ACCoUnEs,

Subsidiary undertakings guaranteed by Osprey Holdoo Limited

Alexander Marricon Limited
Alpheus Emvirgnmantal Lirdred
Ambury Developments Limited
Anglian Venrture Holdings Lirmbed
Anglian Water Dirgct Limited

Anglian Water International Holdings Limitad

Anglan Water Internaticnal Lirvited
AWG Buginess Cantred Limited
AWG C4 Umited

AWGE Centrad Sarvices Lentted
AWG Group Limited

AWG Land Hoddings Limited
AWE Parent Co Limited

AWG Property Limited

AWDE Residential Limited
Morrmon (Sldco] Limited
AWGE Shelf 11 Limimad

AWH Parks Limited

AVH Soler Limited

CWRP Relocation Limited

Grahiam Street Airdrie Betail Portfolio Limited

Macrooom {743) Limited
Maorrmon Intematonal Limited
Morrigon Limited

OHL Land Holdings Limited
OHL Propary Holdings Limited
Tide Seérvices Limited
Valuetype Limitad

Wave Water Umited

SCOSEERT
07455451
C4173504
Ooaladldl
D3306535
02024769
02729389
15842645
11787247
04172712
CX3EEE1E
04530863
03936045
SCO67120
SCOR2 292
SC17I835
SC115080
10177651
14271717
11219644
SCITI0A2
SCXIRi0A
SC1205512
Q4700725
12185858
11781560
1731452002
Q2559548
QE70IT4S
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3. Group undertakings [continued)
Dissolved companies

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the following Group subsidiares were dissalved:

Company Name Date of dissobuthon
Anglizn Water Facilities Management Holdings (UK} Limited 20 February 2024
AW Crogtive Technologies Limited 13 March 2024
AWG [UK] Holdings Limited 12 Mareh 2024
AWG Property Solutions Limited 20 February 2024
H2Ga Limited 20 February 2024
Morrison Holdings Limited 20 February 2024
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Anglian Water Group
Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of Anglian Water Group Limited
Report on the sudit of the financial statements
Opinion

I our opinon:

o ihe financial statements of Anglian Water Group Limited (the "parent company’) ard its subsidiaries {the
‘groug’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
March 2024 and of the group's profit for the year ther ended;

« The group financia! statements hawve been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS) a5 ssued by the
international Accounting Standards Board {1A58); and

o thefinancal statement: have bean proparly prepared in accordance with the Companies [lerzey) Law 1531

We have sudited the financial statements which comprise

the group intome statement;

the group statement of comprehensive income;

the group and company balance theets

the group and company stetements of changss in equity
the group and compaiy cash flow statement; and

+ therelated notes 1o 31

- & & =

The financial reporting framework that has been applisd In their preparation is appheable law and United
kKingdom adopted international accounting standzards and, as regards the parent company financial statements,
&= applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies [fersey| Law 1951

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Audming (UK] (ESAs (U]} and applcable

lzw. Our responsibilties under those standards are further described in the suditor's responsbilities for the
sudit of the financial statements saction of our report

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financia! statements in the UL, including the Financlal Reporting Councll's {the
'FRC's’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffioent and appropnste to provide 3
bas:s for our apinon.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In 3uditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors” use of the going concern basés of
scounting in the preparstion of the financizl statements iz appropriste
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Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessmant of the group’s and parent comparny's ability to continue to sdopt
the going concern basis of accounting included:

Testing key controls over the cashilow forecasting and going concern assessment;
»  Understanding Management's process to model the impact of going concern and sgresing relevant data
paints in the mode! to supporting documentation;

s Azzessing the sophistcation of the model used to prepare the forecasts, testing of the clerical accuracy of
those forecasts and assessing the historical acouracy of forecasis prepared by Management:

®  Assedwsing the assumphions used in establishing Management’s base case, including comparison of key
assumptions to plans for the remainder of tha Asset Management Period |"AMP*) 7, the submitted AMP &
business plan and independent dats sources where relevant,

s Evaluating lliquidity, Inciuding In the scenario whers futurs financing s restricted;

= Evaluating the external financing to establish and assess the covenant requirements attached to this
Tnancing;

»  Confirming the availability of committed undrawn borrowing facikties of £1,174m as disclosed in note 15d;

s  Recalculsting and assessing the amount of headroom in the forecasts (liquidity and covenants) and
recaloulating compliznce with covenants during the year ended 31 March 2024;

s Evzluating the sensitivity snalysis including downside risks prepared by Management in the contaxt of
operztional performance challenges, additional spend on capital projects, oyber risks and the broader sooo-
economic conditions; and

»  Assessing the appropriateness of the disclosures in the finangal siatements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matenal uncertainties relating to events or
eenditions that, Indvidually or collectively, rmay cast significant doubt on the greup's and parent cormpany's

ability to continue a5 3 going concern for 3 penod of at least twehwe months from when the financa! statements
zre authorised Tor issue.

Cur rasponsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respact o going concern are destribed in the
relevant sactions of this report.

Other information
Tha other information comgrises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial

staternents and our auditor's report thereon. The Deractors are responsibie for the other information contained
within the annial report. Our oginion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent othenwise expliotly stated in our report, we do not express any formof assurance
conclusion thareon

Qur responsibility 1510 read the other information and, in doing 50, considar whether the other information is
matenally inconsistent with the financia! statements or our knowladge obtainad in the course of the audd. or
atherwise appaars to be materially misstated | we wdentify such material inconsistencies or apparent matenal
misstatements, we are required to determing whether this gives nise to s material misstatement in the financial
statements themsehves. if, based on the work we have performed, we condude that there is 3 matenal
mizstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors
As explzined more fully in the Diractors’ Responsibifities Stetement. the Directors are responsible for the

praparstion of the financial ststements and for being satisfied that they give & true and fair view, 3nd for such
internal control 3s the Directars determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statemants, the Directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
company's ability to continue as @ going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Directors eithar intend to liguidate the group or the
parent company or to cease pperations, or have no realistic alternatve but todo so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Ouwr objectives are to obtan reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance; but is not 3 gusrantee that an sudst conducted in
accordance with 15As |UK) will always detect 2 matenal misstatement when it ests. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, indidually or in the ageregate, they could reasonably be
evpactad to influance the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financa! statements.

A further description of our rezponsiblines for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at- www Tre org ukfauditoreres ponsibilities, This description farms part of our auditar’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considerad capable of datecting imegularities, incuding fraud
irregularnities, incuding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures

in line with our responsibifibes, qutlined above, to detect material misstaternents in respect of rregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capabie of detecting irreguiarities, including fraud k=
detziied below

We considerad the nature of the group’s industry and &s control environment, and reviewed the group’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations, We
5o enquired of management, internal 3udit Audit Committee and the Directors zbout their own identification
and assessment of the risks of irregularities, including those that are specific to the group’s business sector,

We obtained an understanding of the lega’ and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that.

» had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disciosures in the financial statements.
Theze inciuded Companies (lersey) Law 1591, Environmental Agency reguistions, pensions legizlation, tax
lagisiation and the licence conditions imposed by The Water Servites Regufation Authority (Ofwat), and

¢ 0o not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to
the groug’s ability 1o operate or to aveld a materal penalty,

We discussed amang the zudit engagement tesm and relevant internal specizlists such as tax, financial
instrumant valuations, pensions and IT specialists regarding the opportunities and incentives that may axist
within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.
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Az 3 result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the foliowing areas, and
our procedures performed to address tham are described below:

in addressing the risk of fraud through bad debt provisioning, we:

» gbtained an understanding of relevant contrals within the bad dabt provision estimation process;

s utilised data analytics to perform a recalcuiation of debtor apeing toverfy the accuracy of Information
within the aged dett repaort in order to assess whether customers are accurately categorised Dased an
infarmation within Management's financial reparting system;

» challenged the base bad debt provision by agreeing the recoverability assumptions to cash collection
rates and tested the mechanica’ accuracy of the caloulation,

s a3sessed whether any discrepancies exist between the provision recognised snd thst supported by
other macro-economic indicators that may impact the ability of customers to make payments;

o assessed whether the provision has been calculated In line with the policy of the group and with IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments’; and

» 3czasced the accuracy and completeness of the cash collection trends used in the provision rate
calcutation by reconcifing billing and SAP data and tested a sample of cash collections both during the
year 2nd post period end.

in addressing the ritk of fraud in respect of the Ingppropriale capitaiisation of costs, we

o pbtained an understanding of and tested, relevant controls around the classification of costs 25 capital
gxpendiure,

» Tested 2 sample of capital projects by agreeing the costs incurred to third-party documentation and
assessing the appropriateness of the dlassification in accordance with the capetalisation policy.

In common with alf audits under (545 (UK}, we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. In addressing tha risk of fraud through management override of controls, we
tested the approprizteness of jpurnal entries and other adjustments; assessed wihether the judgements made in
making accounting estimates are indicative of 3 potential bias: and evaluated the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the sbave, our procedures to respond to the risks (dentified included the following:

« reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulabions describec as having a direct effect on the
fimancial statements;

» performing anafytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may
indicate ricks of material misstatement due to fraud:

s enguiring of Management, internal audit and in-house [ external legal counssl concerning actual and
patential lingation and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

s reading minutss of meetings of thoce charged with governance, and reviewing intemal audit repors,
and reviewing cormespondence with HMRC.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies {Jersey] Law 1991 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our

opinion

= adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
2udit have not been received from Branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the sccounting records and
returns: or

s certain disclosures of Directors” remureration specified by law are not made; or
s we have not recetved all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit:

We have nothing to report in respect of these matiers

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, i accordance with Artice 1134 of the

Companies |lersay] Law 1951 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we a~e required 1o state ta them in an auditor's repart and for no other purpase. To
the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assumie responsibility to anyone other than te

company and the company’'s members as 2 body, for cur audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have
fermad

leckeeth)

kate Hadley (S2nior statutony suditor)
For and on behalf of Defoitte LLP
Statutony Auditor

Birmingham, Uinited Kngdom
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